

1969 Assembly Bill 1086

Date published:
December 27, 1969

CHAPTER 276, LAWS OF 1969

AN ACT to make diverse changes in the statutes and session laws, relating to the statutory implementation of changes made by chapters 75 and 327, laws of 1967 (the executive branch reorganization acts), in constitutional offices, departments and independent agencies.

The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do enact as follows:

SECTION 1. 7.70 (2) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 2. 13.48 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

13.48 (2) BUILDING COMMISSION; POWERS AND DUTIES. (a) There is created a ~~state~~ building commission ~~which shall consist~~ consisting of the governor, who shall be chairman, and 6 members of the legislature of whom 3 shall be from each house, to be appointed as are standing committees in the respective houses. The 2 major political parties shall be represented in the membership from each house. Of the members appointed from either house, one shall be a member of the visiting committee created by s. 13.47. One citizen member shall be appointed by the governor to serve at the pleasure of the governor. The ~~director of the bureau~~ *head of the engineering, function and* the ranking architect in the department of administration, and the ~~commissioner~~ *secretary* of administration shall be nonvoting advisory members. The terms of all legislative members shall expire on the 2nd Wednesday in January of the odd-numbered year. The members shall act without liability except for misconduct. Members of the commission who are not members of the legislature shall be reimbursed for their actual and necessary expenses incurred as members of the commission from the appropriation made by s. 20.505.

SECTION 3. 13.83 (3) (b) 3.h of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

13.83 (3) (b) 3.h. The department of industry, labor and human relations.

SECTION 4. 13.84 (2) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

13.84 (2) (c) The attorney general or ~~his~~ a representative of the department of justice selected by the attorney general;

SECTION 5. 13.93 (1m) of the statutes is amended to read:

13.93 (1m) The revisor of statutes shall prepare and deliver to the department of administration, as soon as practicable after the end of the regular legislative session of 1969, a printer's copy for a volume to be designated "Wisconsin Annotations" and to contain the Wisconsin constitution, notes of the legislative history of the sections of the statutes and annotations of court decisions interpreting the Wisconsin constitution and statutes, and such other matter as the revisor deems important. The department shall order printed, and the ~~state~~ contract printer shall print and deliver, the number of copies ordered. This edition of the annotations shall be printed and published as supplement to the 1969 Wisconsin statutes; and the laws and the contract governing the printing and distribution of those statutes shall, as far as applicable, govern the printing and sale of the annotations, except that the annotations shall be sold at a price fixed by the ~~director of purchases and services~~ department at approximately the cost thereof and there shall be no free distribution thereof except as provided in ss. 35.84 (2) (a), (k), (L), (4) (c) and (5) (a), 35.85 (5) and (11m) and 44.06 (1). The ~~director of purchase and services~~ department shall designate the type, and shall determine the number of copies to be printed.

SECTION 6. Chapter 14 (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

CHAPTER 14.

~~STATE OFFICERS~~ CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICES AND INTERSTATE BODIES.

SECTION 7. 14.01 and 14.02 of the statutes are renumbered 8.25 (4) (a) and (b).

SECTION 8. Subchapter I (title) of chapter 14 and 14.01 to 14.017 of the statutes are created to read:

SUBCHAPTER I.

EXECUTIVE OFFICE.

14.01 EXECUTIVE OFFICE; CREATION. There is created an executive office under the direction and supervision of the governor.

14.011 SAME; PROGRAM RESPONSIBILITIES. The executive office shall have the program responsibilities specified for the office under this subchapter and chs. 1, 15, 21, 964 and 965 and ss. 12.22, 12.25, 13.03, 13.58, 14.58 (7), 16.05 (2), 16.40 (4), 16.42 (5), 16.44 to 16.47, 16.50, 16.52 (6) (c), 16.53 (1) (c) 7, 16.54, 16.75 (6), 16.82 (4) (b), 16.87, 16.93 (3) (c), 17.05, 17.07, 17.08, 17.09 (5), 17.10 (1), 17.11 (1) and (2), 17.16, 17.18 (2), 17.19 (2) and (4), 17.20, 17.21, 17.27 (4), 19.11, 20.445 (9) (x) 5 and 6, 20.865 (1) (c) 2, 20.906 (1), 20.914, 20.915 (1), 20.916 (3), 20.918, 20.921 (1) (a) 4, 22.41, 25.29 (6) (b), 29.174 (5), 30.03 (2), 30.11 (5) (c), 30.251, 32.02 (2), 32.21, 35.095, 35.265, 35.29 (2), 35.50 (1), 35.53 (2), 36.06 (6) (b) 4, 36.10 (1), 45.38 (2) (a) 4, 46.035 (2) (a) 4, 46.16 (6), 48.993 (1), 50.07 (1) (c), 52.10, 57.071, 57.08 to 57.13, 58.05 (6), 59.031 (7), 59.11 (3), 59.29 (1), 59.96, 59.965, 66.048 (2), 66.296 (3), 66.94, 66.941, 66.945, 66.99, 84.06, 84.07 (1b), 84.09, 84.40 (2) (f), 87.12, 87.18, 93.03, 93.06 (3), 93.09 (6), 93.22 (2), 94.19 (1), 100.31, 101.10 (17), 101.34 (1), 101.345, 101.55, 102.64 (3), 103.50 (5), 108.161 (9), 108.19 (3) and (4), 110.20 (2) (d), 114.33, 126.04, 126.43, 137.01 (1), 137.02 (1), 140.055 (2), 143.07 (8), 144.21 (7) (d),

165.05 (2), 165.08, 165.25, 176.90 (8), 182.220, 182.33, 182.47 (2), 198.08 (6), 200.10, 200.18 (3), 201.03 (8) (b), 206.38 (5), 210.02 (1), 210.04 (5), 220.025 (1), 251.181, 286.15, 286.32 (6), 289.14 (1), 341.12 (2), 341.41, 347.05 and 959.05 (2). In addition:

(1) DIVISION OF HIGHWAY SAFETY COORDINATION. The division of highway safety coordination shall have the program responsibilities specified for the division under s. 14.21.

14.013 SAME; SPECIFIED DIVISIONS. (1) DIVISION OF HIGHWAY SAFETY COORDINATION. There is created in the executive office a division of highway safety coordination under the direction and supervision of the highway safety coordinator who shall be nominated by the governor, and with the advice and consent of the senate appointed, to serve at the pleasure of the governor. The coordinator shall have at least 5 years experience in fields relating to highway safety and shall be appointed on the basis of recognized interest, administrative ability, training and experience in and knowledge of the problems and needs in the field of highway safety.

14.017 SAME; COUNCILS. (1) COUNCIL ON HIGHWAY SAFETY. There is created in the executive office a council on highway safety. Section 15.09 applies to the council. The council shall consist of 15 members, as follows:

- (a) Five citizen members appointed for staggered 3-year terms.
- (b) Five state officers, part of whose duties shall be related to transportation and highway safety, appointed for staggered 3-year terms.
- (c) Three members of the assembly highways committee appointed by the speaker of the assembly.
- (d) Two members of the senate highways committee appointed by the president pro tempore of the senate.

SECTION 9. 14.03 and 14.04 of the statutes are renumbered 19.10 and 19.11.

SECTION 10. 14.05 of the statutes is renumbered 14.60 and amended to read:

14.60 STATE TREASURER'S BOND. The bond of the *state* treasurer shall extend to the faithful execution of the duties of the office of *state* treasurer until his successor is elected and fully qualified; ~~and, if~~. If he elects to give bond guaranteed by a surety company, the costs thereof and of any additional bond required of and furnished by him and so guaranteed shall be borne by the state and shall be paid out of the appropriation to the ~~treasury department~~ office of the *state treasurer*; if the annual cost thereof does not exceed ~~one-fourth of one per cent, per annum,~~ 0.25 of the amount of said bond.

SECTION 11. 14.06 of the statutes is renumbered 19.11 (3).

SECTION 12. 14.07 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 13. 14.08 of the statutes is renumbered 16.835.

SECTION 14. 14.09 of the statutes is renumbered 14.02 and 14.02 (title), as renumbered, is amended to read:

14.02 EMPLOYES.

SECTION 15. 14.10 and 14.11 of the statutes are renumbered 14.07 (1) and (2), respectively.

SECTION 16. 14.12 and 14.13 of the statutes are renumbered 14.11 (1) and (2), respectively, and 14.11 (title), as renumbered, is amended to read:

14.11 LEGAL ACTIONS AND PROCEEDINGS.

SECTION 17. 14.14 of the statutes is renumbered 14.12.

SECTION 18. 14.15 of the statutes is renumbered 14.05.

SECTION 19. 14.16 of the statutes is renumbered 19.11 (4).

SECTION 20. 14.17 of the statutes is renumbered 14.04.

SECTION 21. 14.18 of the statutes is renumbered 14.08.

SECTION 22. 14.19 of the statutes is renumbered 14.15.

SECTION 23. 14.20 of the statutes is renumbered 14.13.

SECTION 24. 14.21 of the statutes is renumbered 14.14.

SECTION 25. 14.225 of the statutes is renumbered 14.06.

SECTION 26. 14.23 of the statutes is renumbered 14.16 and amended to read:

14.16 (1) ARBOR AND BIRD DAY. The governor, by proclamation, may set apart one day each year to be designated as Arbor and Bird Day, and may request its observance by all schools, colleges and other institutions by the planting of trees, the adornment of school and public grounds, and by suitable exercises having for their object the advancement of the study of arboriculture, the promotion of a spirit of protection to birds and trees, and the cultivation of an appreciative sentiment concerning them. ~~He~~

(2) CITIZENSHIP DAY. ~~The governor may also set aside, in said manner by proclamation, the 3rd Sunday in May in each year to be designated as Citizenship Day, and shall request its observance by all circuit court judges, county boards, municipalities, colleges and other institutions, and by suitable exercises for all those persons who have recently become enfranchised either by naturalization or by reaching their majority with~~ on the necessity of exercising responsible, vigilant and intelligent citizenship to safeguard and maintain our inalienable American liberties, freedom of person, stability, strength, endurance of our democratic institutions, ideals and leadership. ~~He~~

(3) LABOR DAY. ~~The governor may also set apart, in said manner by proclamation, one day in each year to be observed as Labor Day.~~

(4) VETERANS DAY. The governor shall annually issue a proclamation calling attention to the fact that November 11 is the anniversary of Veterans Day, and requesting the people throughout the state to observe by appropriate exercises the hour at which the armistice following World War I was concluded.

(5) MOTHER'S DAY. The governor ~~is authorized to~~ *may* annually proclaim the 2nd Sunday in May as Mother's Day and ~~to~~ urge the people and organizations to display the American flag as a public expression of love and reverence for the mothers of our state and as a symbol of a united effort to inspire better homes and closer union between the state, its homes and its sons and daughters.

(6) GOLD STAR MOTHER'S DAY. The governor may annually proclaim the last Sunday in September as Gold Star Mother's Day and call upon the people and organizations to display the American flag and hold appropriate meetings in their homes, churches and other suitable places as a public expression of love, sorrow and reverence for the gold star mothers of our state.

SECTION 27. 14.233 of the statutes is renumbered 14.03.

SECTION 28. 14.234 (1) and (3) to (6) of the statutes are renumbered 14.21 (1) to (5) and 14.21 (1), (3) and (5) (intro.), as renumbered, are amended to read:

14.21 DIVISION OF HIGHWAY SAFETY COORDINATION. (1) DUTIES. ~~There is created in the executive office of the governor an office of state highway safety, headed by a state highway safety co-ordinator, who shall be the principal executive officer responsible for the execution of the duties and functions assigned to the office, and the necessary staff employees. The office division of highway safety coordination shall co-ordinate co-ordinate~~ the highway safety activities of the various agencies of state government; evaluate and make recommendations to the governor with

respect to program proposals submitted by state agencies and political subdivisions for federal and state funds in conjunction with the federal highway safety program; advise the governor on matters relating to highway safety and the implementation of the federal highway safety program in this state; and assist governmental units and private organizations in the planning and execution of programs relating to highway safety.

(3) COUNCIL ON HIGHWAY SAFETY. ~~An advisory committee~~ *The council on state highway safety is created to* shall confer with the ~~co-ordinator~~ *highway safety coordinator* on matters of highway safety and with respect to the functions of the ~~state highway safety co-ordinator~~ *coordinator* and ~~to shall~~ advise the ~~co-ordinator~~ *coordinator* and the governor on such matters. The ~~committee~~ *council* shall meet with the ~~co-ordinator~~ *coordinator* at least once each quarter. ~~The committee shall consist of 15 members of which 5 members shall be citizens appointed by the governor and 5 members shall be state officers appointed by the governor, part of whose duties shall be related to transportation and highway safety. Three members shall be members of the assembly highways committee, appointed by the speaker of the assembly. Two members shall be members of the senate highways committee, appointed by the president pro tempore of the senate. The appointments shall be for staggered 3 year terms expiring on May 1 of odd-numbered years. Citizen members of the advisory committee shall receive no compensation for their services, but shall be reimbursed for their actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their duties as members of the committee.~~

(5) (intro.) ~~The co-ordinator~~ *division* shall furnish all information requested by the governor or by any member of the legislature, and ~~make all reports required of him by statute. The co-ordinator shall prepare and submit to the governor and the legislature an annual report annually in accordance with s. 15.04 (4), including therein a report relating to the implementation of the comprehensive highway safety program in this state. This report shall include but not be limited to:~~

SECTION 29. 14.234 (2) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 30. 14.235 of the statutes is renumbered 43.55.

SECTION 31. 14.238 of the statutes is renumbered 14.16 (7).

SECTION 32. 14.24 of the statutes is renumbered 14.17.

SECTION 33. 14.25 of the statutes is renumbered 14.46 and amended to read:

14.46 ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF STATE. The secretary of state may appoint, in writing, an assistant secretary of state who may perform and execute any of the duties of the secretary of state, except as ~~commissioner~~ *a member of the board of commissioners* of the public lands. The assistant secretary shall take and subscribe the oath of office prescribed by the constitution and shall give bond to the secretary of state in such sum and with such conditions as the ~~said~~ *secretary of state* prescribes, conditioned for the faithful discharge of his duties. Such oath shall be filed and preserved in the executive office.

SECTION 34. 14.26 of the statutes is renumbered 14.45.

SECTION 35. 14.27 of the statutes is renumbered 14.43.

SECTION 36. 14.29 of the statutes is renumbered 14.38 and 14.38 (4) and (8), as renumbered, are amended to read:

14.38 (4) ANNUAL REPORT. ~~Report biennially to the governor, within 60 days after June 30 in each even numbered year~~ *annually in accordance with s. 15.04 (4) all matters pertaining to his office as secretary* and, when required, furnish the governor or either branch of the legislature, in writing, any information relative to the performance of the duties of his office.

(8) RECORD FEES. Keep a record of all fees received by ~~him~~ *his office* and include a summary of such record in his ~~biennial~~ *annual* report under s. 15.04 (4).

SECTION 37. Subchapter II (title) of chapter 14 and 14.31, 14.311 and 14.32 of the statutes are created to read:

SUBCHAPTER II.

OFFICE OF THE LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR.

14.31 OFFICE OF LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR; CREATION. There is created an office of the lieutenant governor under the direction and supervision of the lieutenant governor.

14.311 SAME; PROGRAM RESPONSIBILITIES. The office of the lieutenant governor shall have the program responsibilities specified for the office under this subchapter.

14.32 SERVICE AS ACTING GOVERNOR. (1) When acting as governor because of the temporary absence or temporary disability of the governor, the lieutenant governor shall receive additional compensation of \$25 per day.

(2) When acting as governor because of a vacancy in the office of governor created by the happening of any contingency specified in s. 17.03, the lieutenant governor shall receive the annual salary and all other rights, privileges and emoluments of the office of governor. The annual salary paid in such instance shall be in lieu of all other compensation provided for the lieutenant governor.

(3) Compensation for service by the lieutenant governor under this section shall be paid from the appropriation in s. 20.525 (1) (b).

SECTION 38. SUBCHAPTER III (title) of chapter 14 and 14.36 to 14.365 of the statutes are created to read:

SUBCHAPTER III.

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE.

14.36 OFFICE OF SECRETARY OF STATE; CREATION. There is created an office of the secretary of state under the direction and supervision of the secretary of state.

14.361 SAME; PROGRAM RESPONSIBILITIES. The office of the secretary of state shall have the program responsibilities specified for the office under this subchapter, title II, chs. 35, 137, 180, 181 and 185, subch. III of ch. 13 and ss. 13.03, 13.11, 13.17, 14.12, 18.05, 59.03 (2) (c), 62.075 (5), 66.01 (3), 66.018 (5), 68.10, 70.24, 70.57 (3), 71.13 (6), 76.29 (2), 76.38 (12), 97.023, 100.14 (2), 132.11, 134.45 (3) (b), 164.08, 182.031, 182.34 (7), 188.26, 190.01 and 201.42 (5). In addition:

(1) BOARD OF STATE CANVASSERS. The board of state canvassers shall have the program responsibilities specified for the board under s. 7.70.

14.365 SAME; ATTACHED BOARDS. (1) BOARD OF STATE CANVASSERS. There is created a board of state canvassers which is attached to the office of the secretary of state under s. 15.03. The board shall consist of the secretary of state, the state treasurer and the attorney general. Two members constitute a quorum, but if only one member attends a meeting of the board, the clerk of the supreme court shall attend without delay upon notification by the attending member and, together with the attending member, shall form the board. If a member of the board is a candidate for an office to be canvassed by the board, upon the request of an opposing candidate for that office, the chief justice shall designate some other state officer or a circuit court judge to serve in lieu of such member at the board meeting when votes for that office are canvassed.

SECTION 39. 14.41 of the statutes is renumbered 14.62 and amended to read:

14.62 ASSISTANT STATE TREASURER; OATH; BOND; POWERS. The *state* treasurer may appoint, in writing, an assistant state treasurer who may perform and execute any of the duties of the *state* treasurer, except as ~~commissioner~~ *a member of the board of commissioners* of the public lands. The assistant *state* treasurer shall take and subscribe the oath of office prescribed by the constitution and shall give bond to the *state* treasurer, in such sum and with such conditions as the *state* treasurer prescribes, conditioned for the faithful discharge of his duties. The oath of the assistant *state* treasurer and the certificate of his appointment shall be filed and preserved in the office of the secretary of state. Such employes as the *state* treasurer ~~may require~~ *requires* shall give bond to this state in such sum and with such conditions as the *state* treasurer prescribes, conditioned for the faithful discharge of their duties; the cost thereof to be charged to the appropriations made by s. 20.585.

SECTION 40. 14.42 of the statutes is renumbered 14.58 and 14.58 (1) (c) and (7), as renumbered, are amended to read:

14.58 (1) (c) ~~By~~ *In the name of the state treasurer, by any clerk in his department office designated by him in the name of the treasurer; or*

(7) Permit at all times inspection and examination of the books, papers and transactions of his office by the governor, secretary of state, attorney general, department of administration, ~~department of~~ *or state audit auditor*, or by the legislature, ~~or any committee thereof, or of either branch thereof.~~

SECTION 41. 14.44 of the statutes is renumbered 34.095 and amended to read:

34.095 Whenever the ownership, control or power to vote a majority interest in the stock of any state or national bank doing business in Wisconsin ~~shall be~~ *is held* or in any manner exercised by any foreign corporation, association or trust which ~~shall have~~ *has not have* filed its articles of incorporation and obtained authority to do business in this state as provided in ss. 180.801, 180.813 to 180.821 and 180.845, such bank shall not be qualified to act as a *public* depository for any public funds of this state ~~or of any subdivision thereof moneys~~, nor as a depository for reserve funds of state banks until ~~the said sections shall be~~ *are* complied with by such foreign corporation, association or trust.

SECTION 42. 14.49 of the statutes is renumbered 14.58 (19) and amended to read:

14.58 (19) APPORTION INTEREST. ~~The~~ *Apportion at least quarterly* the total interest earned on state moneys in all depositories ~~shall be apportioned quarterly or oftener by the state treasurer among, added to and become a part of the several funds. Interest so apportioned shall be added to and become a part of such funds.~~

SECTION 43. 14.52 and 14.525 of the statutes are renumbered 165.055 and 165.065, respectively, and amended to read:

165.055 APPOINTMENTS. (1) The attorney general may appoint a deputy attorney general and assistants each of whom shall be an attorney at law admitted to practice in this state. *Such appointments shall be made in writing and filed in the office of the secretary of state, and such appointees shall take and subscribe the constitutional oath of office which shall also be filed. Appointees shall perform such duties as the attorney general prescribes.*

(2) The attorney general shall fix the deputy attorney general's salary at not to exceed \$500 more than the maximum of the highest classified salary range in the ~~office of the attorney general~~ *department of justice*. The deputy attorney general shall give a bond to the state in the sum of \$5,000, with good and sufficient sureties, to be approved by the governor, conditioned for the faithful performance of his duties, ~~and in the absence~~

or disability of the attorney general, he may do and perform all the acts provided by statute to be performed by the attorney general, and the attorney general shall be responsible for all acts of his deputy. Said appointees shall perform such duties as the attorney general prescribes. Such appointments shall be made by writing filed in the office of the secretary of state, and such appointees shall take and subscribe the constitutional oath of office, which shall also be filed.

165.065 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL—ANTITRUST. (1) ~~Of the assistant attorneys general appointed under s. 14.52, one~~ *One assistant attorney general* shall be assigned to the investigation and prosecution of violations arising under ch. 133 and shall carry out the duties imposed on the attorney general by said chapter. ~~All officers, departments, bureaus and commissions of the state government shall report to the assistant attorney general in charge of antitrust prosecutions ch. 133. All violations of ch. 133 which shall come to their~~ *the attention and they of any officer or agency of state government shall be reported to this assistant attorney general. All officers and agencies shall* ~~co-operate~~ *cooperate* with and assist ~~him~~ *the department of justice* in the investigation and prosecution of such violations.

(2) The assistant attorney general in charge of antitrust investigations and prosecutions is to ~~co-operate~~ *cooperate* actively with the antitrust division of the U.S. department of justice in everything that concerns monopolistic practices in Wisconsin, and also to ~~co-operate~~ *cooperate* actively with the ~~state~~ department of agriculture in the work which this agency is carrying on under s. 100.20 of the marketing law with regard to monopolistic practices in the field of agriculture and with the federal trade commission on matters arising in or affecting Wisconsin which pertain to its jurisdiction.

SECTION 44. 14.526 of the statutes is renumbered 165.70 and amended to read:

165.70 INVESTIGATION OF STATE-WIDE CRIME. (1) ~~There is created within the office of the attorney general the~~ *The division of criminal investigation for the purpose of investigating shall investigate* crime which is state-wide in nature, importance or influence.

(2) ~~Of the~~ *An* assistant ~~attorneys~~ *attorney* general appointed under s. 14.52, ~~one~~ shall be assigned to initiating and supervising the investigations referred to in sub. (1), and.

(3) The attorney general shall appoint, under the classified service, not to exceed 5 investigators ~~for said division who to assist in the investigations referred to in sub. (1).~~

(4) ~~The officers referred to in subs. (2) and (3) shall have the same general police powers as are conferred upon peace officers.~~

~~(3)~~ (5) Local district attorneys, sheriffs and chiefs of police are directed to ~~co-operate~~ *cooperate* and assist the personnel of the division in the detection of the crimes enumerated herein.

SECTION 45. 14.53 (intro.) and (7) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 46. 14.53 (1), (2), (3), (5m), (6), (8) and (12) of the statutes are renumbered 165.25 (1), (2), (3), (4), (5), (7) and (6), respectively, and 165.25 (4), (5) and (7), as renumbered, are amended to read:

165.25 (4) ~~The attorney general~~ *department of justice* shall furnish all legal services required by the ~~state of Wisconsin~~ *investment board, the highway commission, the motor vehicle department of transportation, the conservation commission department of natural resources, the state teachers retirement board and the board of trustees of the Wisconsin retirement fund board,* together with such other services, including stenographic and investigational, as are necessarily connected with such legal work. ~~The attorney general~~ *department* shall at the end of each fiscal year

render to the respective departments herein enumerated a statement of the total cost of such legal and other services including travel expenses and legal expenses enumerated in s. ~~20.180 (1) (c)~~ [20.455 (1) (d)]. Upon receipt of such statement, the respective department head shall certify the amount thereof to the department of administration to be paid into the general fund ~~of the state treasury~~ out of his proper appropriation.

(5) ~~Prepare, whenever~~ *Whenever* requested by the head of any department of the state government, *the department of justice shall prepare* proper drafts of forms for contracts and other writings which may be wanted for the use of the state.

(7) ~~Keep~~ *The department shall keep* a record of all actions and demands prosecuted or defended by ~~him~~ *the department* on behalf of the state and all proceedings had in relation thereto.

SECTION 47. 14.53 (4), (5), (5a), (9), (10), (11) and (13) of the statutes are renumbered 165.015 (1), (2), (3), (4), (5) and (6) and 165.09, respectively.

SECTION 48. 14.531 of the statutes is renumbered 165.08 and amended to read:

165.08 POWER TO COMPROMISE. Any civil action prosecuted by the ~~attorney general~~ *department* by direction of any officer, department, board or commission, shall be compromised or discontinued when so directed by such officer, department, board or commission. Any civil action prosecuted by the *department on the initiative of the attorney general* ~~on his initiative~~, or at the request of any individual may ~~on approval of the governor~~, be compromised or discontinued *with the approval of the governor*. In any criminal action prosecuted by the attorney general, ~~he and the deputy and assistant attorney general~~ *the department* shall have the same powers with reference to such action as are vested in district attorneys.

SECTION 49. Subchapter IV (title) of chapter 14 and 14.56 and 14.561 of the statutes are created to read:

SUBCHAPTER IV.

OFFICE OF THE STATE TREASURER.

14.56 OFFICE OF STATE TREASURER; CREATION. There is created an office of the state treasurer under the direction and supervision of the state treasurer.

14.561 SAME; PROGRAM RESPONSIBILITIES. The office of the state treasurer shall have the program responsibilities specified for the office under this subchapter and ch. 20 and ss. 18.05, 74.27, 74.73 (2), 76.13 (2), 76.15 (2), 76.22 (3), 76.23, 76.29, 76.33, 76.39, 76.43, 78.69, 87.13, 94.16, 94.22 (1), 94.80, 102.63, 102.65, 108.15, 108.16, 108.20, 139.10, 139.12, 139.39, 146.13 (1), 146.14, 180.785, 181.64, 185.75, 200.17, 203.16, 209.01, 210.02, 210.04, 210.05, 212.03, 215.31, 223.02, 235.61, 318.03 (4), 344.39 and 344.41.

SECTION 50. 14.58 (7m) of the statutes is created to read:

14.58 (7m) ANNUAL REPORT. Report annually in accordance with s. 15.04 (4) all matters pertaining to his office.

SECTION 51. 14.66 of the statutes is renumbered 18.05.

SECTION 52. 14.69 of the statutes is renumbered 14.40.

SECTION 53. 14.72 of the statutes is renumbered 13.58.

SECTION 54. 14.73 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 55. 14.75 of the statutes is renumbered 14.80 and 14.80 (1) and (2) (intro.), as renumbered, are amended to read:

14.80 INTERSTATE INDIAN COMMISSION. (1) There is created an interstate Indian ~~committee~~ *commission* of 2 members, one an Indian, ap-

pointed by the governor for such term as ~~may be fixed by him~~ *he fixes*, to represent the state on the governor's interstate Indian council. The members of the ~~committee~~ *commission* shall be reimbursed for their actual and necessary expenses as members of the ~~committee~~ *commission* from the appropriation made by s. 20.505 ~~(6)~~ (5) (a), on vouchers approved by the governor.

(2) (intro.) The ~~committee~~ *commission* shall:

SECTION 56. 14.752 of the statutes is renumbered 14.82 and 14.82 (1) (intro.) and (3) (intro.), as renumbered, are amended to read:

14.82 (1) (intro.) There is created a commission of 5 citizens ~~appointed~~ *nominated* by the governor, *and* with the advice and consent of the senate ~~appointed~~, for staggered terms of 5 years, to constitute the representation of this state on the joint Minnesota-Wisconsin boundary area commission. Vacancies shall be filled for the balance of the unexpired term. In order to assist the commission in the execution of its functions, there is further created a legislative advisory committee comprising 4 senators and 6 assemblymen appointed as are standing committees in the respective houses, and there is further created a technical advisory committee consisting of 2 members appointed by the governor and of one member each appointed by the governing board or ~~chief executive~~ head of each of the following agencies, to represent such agencies: the ~~attorney general~~ *department of justice*, the department of administration, the department of agriculture, the ~~conservation commission~~ *department of natural resources*, the ~~state board of health~~ *department of health and social services*, the public service commission and the department of ~~resource development~~ *local affairs and development*. The members of the commission and the members of its advisory committees shall serve without compensation but shall be reimbursed for actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their duties, from the appropriation made by s. 20.315 (1), on vouchers approved by the Wisconsin member of the commission selected to serve as its chairman or vice chairman. All other expenses incurred by the commission in the course of exercising its powers and duties, unless met in some other manner specifically provided by statute, shall be paid by the commission out of its own funds.

(3) (intro.) There is created a commission of 5 citizens ~~appointed~~ *nominated* by the governor, and with the advice and consent of the senate ~~appointed~~, for staggered terms of 5 years, to constitute the representation of this state on the joint Michigan-Wisconsin boundary area commission. Vacancies shall be filled for the balance of the unexpired term. In order to assist the commission in the execution of its functions, there is further created a legislative advisory committee comprising 4 senators and 6 assemblymen appointed as are standing committees in the respective houses, and there is further created a technical advisory committee consisting of 2 members appointed by the governor and of one member each appointed by the governing board or chief executive head of each of the following agencies, to represent such agencies: the ~~attorney general~~ *department of justice*, the department of administration, the department of agriculture, the ~~conservation commission~~ *department of natural resources*, the ~~state board of health~~ *department of health and social services*, the public service commission and the department of ~~resource development~~ *local affairs and development*. The members of the commission and the members of its advisory committees shall serve without compensation but shall be reimbursed for actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their duties, from the appropriation made by s. 20.315 (3), on vouchers approved by the Wisconsin member of the commission selected to serve as its chairman or vice chairman. All other expenses incurred by the commission in the course of exercising its powers and duties, unless met in some other manner specifically provided by statute,

shall be paid by the commission out of its own funds.

SECTION 57. 14.755 of the statutes is renumbered 14.85 and 14.85 (intro.), as renumbered, is amended to read:

14.85 MISSISSIPPI RIVER PARKWAY PLANNING COMMISSION. (intro.) A ~~committee commission~~ of 10, to be entitled the Mississippi river parkway planning ~~committee commission~~, shall be appointed by the governor for such terms as may be fixed by him, from a list of 3 or more persons submitted to him by each of the county boards of the 8 counties bordering on the Mississippi river, one ~~committee commission~~ member to be appointed from each of the following counties: Pierce, Pepin, Buffalo, Trempealeau, Vernon and Crawford, and 2 each from La Crosse and Grant counties. The ~~committee commission~~ shall select its own chairman. The ~~committee commission~~ may select as its secretary a member of the staff of the planning function of the department of ~~resource~~ local affairs and development, with the consent of the ~~director~~ *secretary of local affairs and development*. The members of the ~~committee commission~~ and its secretary shall serve without compensation but the secretary shall be paid for actual and necessary expenses from the appropriation made by s. 20.355 on vouchers approved by the governor. The ~~committee commission~~ shall:

SECTION 58. Subchapter V (title) of chapter 14 of the statutes is created to read:

SUBCHAPTER V.

INTERSTATE BODIES AND AGREEMENTS.

(to precede section 14.76)

SECTION 59. 14.77 of the statutes is renumbered 14.76.

SECTION 60. 14.84 of the statutes is renumbered 22.43 and amended to read:

22.43 OLYMPIC ICE RINK. The ~~state building commission~~ shall plan and ~~proceed with the construction and the floodlighting thereof, of, construct and floodlight~~ an official 400 meter Olympic outdoor refrigerated speed-skating ice rink in the northwest area of state fair park adjacent to and west of the "Youth Building," including such remodeling of the "Youth Building" or such construction of other buildings in the area, as it deems practical and feasible for the purpose of providing housing or storage space for equipment and vehicles in connection with said ice rink facility. The commission may authorize the ~~exposition board~~ *department* to enter into lease and sublease agreements for the rental of such speed-skating rink, pursuant to s. ~~27.305~~ 22.41, with nonprofit corporations organized under ch. 181. This project is designed to furnish and shall provide a suitable outdoor speed-skating rink where international amateur athletes entered in ice skating events of the Olympic games may compete and, when not so used, for the use of the public for recreational purposes, for a period of 6 months each year commencing October 1. The construction authorized by this section shall be referred to as the "Olympic ~~Speed Skating~~ Ice Rink Project".

SECTION 61. 14.86, 14.87, 14.88 and 14.89 of the statutes are renumbered 13.482, 13.484, 13.486 and 13.488, respectively.

SECTION 62. 14.90 of the statutes is renumbered 66.77.

SECTION 63. 14.98 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 64. 14.99 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 65. 15.06 (5) and (6) of the statutes are amended to read:

15.06 (5) Every commission shall meet on the call of the chairman or a majority of the members. Every commission shall maintain its offices in Madison, but may meet or *hold hearings* at such other locations as will best serve the citizens of this state.

(6) A majority of the membership of a commission constitutes a

quorum to do business, *except that vacancies shall not prevent a commission from doing business.*

SECTION 66. 15.099 of the statutes is amended to read:

15.099 Sections ~~14.011, 14.311, 14.361, 14.561~~, 15.101, 15.131, 15.161, 15.191, 15.221, 15.251, 15.281, 15.311, 15.341, 15.371, 15.401, 15.431, 15.461, 15.491, 15.551, 15.581, 15.611, 15.641, 15.671, 15.701, 15.731, 15.761, 15.791, 15.821, 15.851, 15.881, 15.911 and 15.941 are intended to set forth the program responsibilities of the several units of the executive branch. No statutory power, duty or function specified elsewhere for a unit shall be deemed impliedly repealed for the sole reason that reference to it has been omitted in these sections.

SECTION 67. 15.10 of the statutes is amended to read:

15.10 There is created a department of administration under the direction and supervision of the secretary of administration. *The secretary of administration shall be appointed on the basis of recognized interest, administrative and executive ability, training and experience in and knowledge of problems and needs in the field of general administration.*

SECTION 68. 15.101 (intro.), (1) and (3) of the statutes are amended to read:

15.101 (intro.) The department of administration shall have the program responsibilities specified for the department under chs. 16 and 35, subch. V of ch. 111 and ss. 12.25 (2), 13.36, 13.48, ~~14.72, 14.73, 14.752 (1), 14.86, 16.007 (2), 16.95 (2), 20.006, 20.944, 20.953, 20.956 (2), 20.957, 13.58, 13.93 (1m), 14.40 (6), 20.004, 20.904 (2), 20.906 (2), 20.907 (2), 20.910, 20.912 (2) and (3), 20.915 (1), 20.921 (3) (a), 21.13, 22.40 (4), 24.20, 25.06, 25.08, 25.09, 25.14, ~~25.155~~, 25.40, 27.015, ~~27.30 (5)~~, 36.10, 36.185 (5) (a), 37.04, 37.07, 41.44 (3), 41.57 (3), 42.23, 42.46, 42.48, 44.06, 45.01, 46.09, ~~49.29~~, 46.106 (2), (3) and (6), 49.173 (4), 49.45 (2) (a) 4, 49.50, 50.04 (9), 51.08 (6), 51.09 (5), 51.24 (2) and (9), 66.912, 66.915 (5) (c), 66.917 (1a), 66.919, 66.99 (8), 70.60 (1), 70.82, 70.97, 71.13 (3) (g), 71.14, 74.27, 76.26, 76.29 (1), 76.38 (7), 76.39 (4) (d), 76.48 (8), 77.63 (1) and (1a) (b), 77.64, 78.69, 94.80, 95.25 (4), 114.065 (3), 139.12, 142.08, 157.55, 176.62, 194.51, 197.20, 210.03, 210.04 (5), 210.05, 210.05 (12), (13) (a) and (c), 220.08 (14), 227.026 (3), 251.20, 253.07, 267.23, 285.04, 286.43, 318.03 and, 341.12 (4) and 345.08. In addition:~~

(1) The tax appeals commission shall have the program responsibilities specified for the commission under ch. 73 and ss. 70.64, 70.94 (3) (a) and 71.12.

(3) The personnel board shall have the program responsibilities specified for the board under ~~ss. 16.06, 16.105, 16.17 (4), 16.32~~ subch. II of ch. 16.

SECTION 69. 15.107 (2) and (3) of the statutes are amended to read:

15.107 (2) There is created in the department of administration a legislative compensation council consisting of 6 members, appointed for staggered 6-year terms. Persons appointed to the council shall have an interest in and understanding of the legislative process, and of the many and varied tasks which members of the legislature are called upon to perform in the service of and as representatives of their constituents. No person may be appointed to the council unless he has at the time of his appointment already attained the highest level of competency in his private business or profession. *The director of personnel shall designate an employe of the department of administration, to be approved by the council, to serve as the council's nonvoting secretary.*

(3) There is created in the department of administration a council on printing consisting of 6 members, of whom 2 shall be from state agencies, 2 shall be representatives of the major trade association representing the commercial printing industry in the state and 2 shall be persons knowledgeable in graphic communication who do not represent either the state or

CHAPTER 276

732

the printing industry, appointed by the secretary of administration for 2-year terms. *The secretary of administration shall designate an employe of the department of administration to serve as the council's nonvoting secretary.*

SECTION 70. 15.131 of the statutes is amended to read:

15.131 The department of agriculture shall have the program responsibilities specified for the department under title XII and ss. ~~14.225, 14.752 (1), 14.06, 26.30 (2), 27.015, 29.29 (4), 26.217, 29.60 (5) (c), 37.30, 59.871, 61.72, 66.075, 68.07, 70.423, 70.425, 133.25, 140.45 (4) and 174.05 to 174.12 174.07, 174.08 and 174.11.~~

SECTION 71. 15.137 (3) of the statutes is created to read:

15.137 (3) COUNCIL ON MEAT INSPECTION. There is created in the department of agriculture a council on meat inspection consisting of not less than 7 members appointed by and serving at the pleasure of the secretary of agriculture.

SECTION 72. 15.221 (intro.) and (1) of the statutes are amended to read:

15.221 (intro.) The department of industry, labor and human relations shall have the program responsibilities specified for the department under chs. 101 to 106 and 108 and ss. 45.50 (1), 55.01, 56.21, 66.191, 66.293, 111.33, to 111.36, 132.13, 140.53, 140.56, 140.58, 140.59, 146.04, 146.085, 160.09, 160.10, 167.10, 167.11 and 167.27. In addition:

(1) The division of equal rights shall have the program responsibilities specified for the division under ss. 16.765, 101.60 ~~to~~ and 101.62 and ~~111.34.~~

SECTION 73. 15.251 of the statutes is amended to read:

15.251 The department of justice shall have the program responsibilities specified for the department under ch. ~~14~~ 165 and ss. ~~7.70 (2), 8.50 (1) (a), 10.01 (2) (c), 12.45, 12.56 (2), 13.52, 13.69, 14.11 (1), 14.12, 14.38 (12), 16.007, 16.55, 16.77, 16.80, 16.94, 16.94, 16.94, 18.05, 19.015 to 19.019 (1) (d) and (e) 20.455, 24.02, 24.03, 25.12, 27.01 (3), 28.06 (5), 30.03, 35.59, 43.01, 46.16 (7), 52.10 (16), 59.07 (44), 66.054, 66.912, 66.919 (2), 67.02 (3), 69.07, 71.11 (49), 71.13 (4), 72.15 (12), 72.18, 72.81, 73.03 (22) and (27), 73.04 76.14, 76.37 (4), 77.07 (2), 78.70, 78.81, 88.54 (6), 93.05, 98.14, 100.20 (4), 100.24, 101.24, 101.31 (14) and (15), 102.23 (4), 102.64, 108.09 (7), 108.14 (3m), 110.10 (14), 111.12, 114.065, 133.01 to 133.03, 133.06, 133.19, 133.20, 133.22, 133.23, 134.45, 135.11 (15), 135.12, 139.08 (2), (3) and (4), 139.12, 139.22, 139.39 (1), (2) and (3), 140.29, 140.58 (4), 143.04, 144.09, 144.536, 146.04, 146.07, 146.19 (2) (f), 147.195, 152.01 (6), ~~165.01 (4), 168.17, 169.20, 174.13, 175.13, 175.15, 176.121, 176.65 (1), 176.90, 180.769, 180.771, 182.220, 185.72, 185.73, 185.84, 186.26, 189.17 (5), 189.20, 194.15, 195.07 (2), 200.10, 200.14, 200.20, 215.02 (19) and (13), 215.03 (4), 215.11 (7), 220.12, 220.25, 221.18, 221.205, 221.28, 224.06 (7), 227.025, 227.26, 231.34, 234.23, 251.181, 251.19, 256.47, 268.025, 269.56 (11), 274.05, 276.48, 280.02, 280.20, 285.01, 286.13, 286.15, 286.325, 286.35 to 286.37, 286.41, 286.43, 286.44, 288.05, 294.04, 295.20, 295.21, 318.02, 318.03, 885.07, 945.10 and 963.03 (2).~~ In addition:~~

(1) CRIME LABORATORY DIVISION. The crime laboratory division shall have the program responsibilities specified for the division under *subch. III* of ch. 165 and s. 963.04 (8).

(2) DIVISION OF CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION. The division of criminal investigation shall have the program responsibilities specified for the division under ss. ~~14.526, 73.035, 200.03 (11) and 200.10 to 200.25~~ *subch. II* of ch. 165 and s. 176.05 (5).

SECTION 74. 15.257 (2) of the statutes is created to read:

15.257 (2) UNIVERSITY AND CRIME LABORATORY COOPERATION COUNCIL. There is created in the department of justice a university and crime laboratory cooperation council appointed by the president of the university of

Wisconsin and consisting of staff members of such university departments as the president determines are working with the laboratory.

SECTION 75. 15.281 (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

15.281 (intro.) The department of local affairs and development shall have the program responsibilities specified for the department under chs. 22 and 236 and ss. ~~14.84, 27.30, 27.305,~~ 66.013 to 66.021, 66.92 (3), 66.945, 70.27 (8) and 84.03 (9) (b). In addition:

SECTION 76. 15.341 (intro.) and (1) of the statutes are amended to read:

15.341 (intro.) The department of natural resources shall have the program responsibilities specified for the department under chs. 23, 26, 28, 29, 30 and 144 and ss. 13.48 (10), ~~14.752 (1),~~ 24.085, 25.29, 27.01, 27.011, 27.015, 31.02, 31.185, 31.30, 31.36 (4), 36.215, 36.217, 36.245, 44.12, 44.13, ~~46.70,~~ 59.971 (6), 60.18 (5), 60.29 (44), 60.303 (5), 60.315, 66.941 (6), 70.11 (21), 70.113, 70.118, 70.335, 77.02, 77.03, 77.05, 77.06, 77.08, 77.10, 77.11, 77.14, 77.16, 80.05, 80.39, 80.41, ~~84.01 (19), 84.02(3), 84.11 (3), 87.30, 92.18,~~ 88.31, 236.13 (2m), 236.16 (3) and 236.45 (5). In addition:

(1) The division of ~~land resources~~ *trust lands and investments* shall have the program responsibilities specified for the division under chs. 23 and 24 and ss. 25.01 to 25.10, 26.08, 66.03 (10), (10a) and (11), 66.64, 74.57 and 190.15.

SECTION 77. 15.343 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

15.343 (1) There is created a division of ~~land resources~~ *trust lands and investments* which is attached to the department of natural resources under s. 15.03. This division is under the direction and supervision of the board of commissioners of ~~the~~ public lands created by article X, section 7 of the state constitution ~~and consists~~ *to consist* of the secretary of state, state treasurer and attorney general.

SECTION 78. 15.347 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

15.347 (3) There is created in the department of natural resources a recreation council. The council shall consist of the governor, the secretary of natural resources, the secretary of health and social services, the chairman of the highway commission, the chairman of the soil conservation board and the ~~recreation specialist in the department of natural resources~~ *secretary of local affairs and development*. The governor shall serve as chairman of the council.

SECTION 79. 15.347 (5) and (6) of the statutes are created to read:

15.347 (5) WATER RESOURCES COUNCIL. There is created in the department of natural resources a water resources council consisting of one member selected annually by each regional board under s. 144.025 (5) from its citizen members.

(6) AIR POLLUTION CONTROL COUNCIL. There is created in the department of natural resources an air pollution control council consisting of 7 members familiar with air pollution and control, appointed for staggered 3-year terms.

SECTION 80. 15.371 (intro.), (2) and (3) of the statutes are amended to read:

15.371 (intro.) The department of public instruction shall have the program responsibilities specified for the department under title XIV and ss. ~~14.08, 14.225, 16.835, 17.26 (4), 20.255, 20.920, 25.09, 35.85 (6), 35.86, 36.02, 36.227 (6), 37.01, 37.13, 37.30, 41.30, 41.42 (2), 41.44, 41.55, 43.00~~ 38.39, 38.42 (2), 38.44, 42.39, 43.10 (1), 43.17, 43.19, 43.24, ~~47.095, 70.057 (3),~~ 43.55, 143.17 and 887.23. In addition:

(2) The division for handicapped children shall have the program responsibilities specified for the division under ch. 142, subch. IV of ch. 115 and ss. 115.53 (6), 115.57 and 119.09 (4).

CHAPTER 276

734

(3) The division for library services shall have the program responsibilities specified for the division under ss. 43.09, ~~43.10 (2)~~, ~~43.11 (3)~~, ~~43.12~~, ~~43.13~~ and to 43.14.

SECTION 81. 15.375 (1) (title) of the statutes is created to read:

15.375 (1) EDUCATIONAL APPROVAL BOARD.

SECTION 82. 15.431 of the statutes is amended to read:

15.431 The department of revenue shall have the program responsibilities specified for the department under title X, chs. 139, 168 and 176 and ss. ~~13.44 (2)~~ 25.06, 25.08, 25.09, 25.12, 36.30, 67.03, 68.02 to 68.06, 121.06, 128.14 (1), 311.05 and 963.03 ~~(2)~~.

SECTION 83. 15.491 of the statutes is amended to read:

15.491 The department of veterans affairs shall have the program responsibilities specified for the department under ch. 45 and ss. 25.17 (3) (bg), 25.36, 51.02 (1) (b), 51.12 (5), 66.39, (1), (11) and (13) and 66.92 ~~and 278.16~~.

SECTION 84. 15.551 (intro.), (1) and (3) of the statutes are amended to read:

15.551 (intro.) The office of the commissioner of banking shall have the program responsibilities specified for the office under chs. 186, 214, 216, 217, 220, 221, 222 and ss. 34.03, 34.04 ~~34.05 (1) and (4)~~, 34.08, 34.09, 34.10, 35.86, 43.28, 138.07, 138.09, 218.01, 218.02, 218.04, 218.05, 223.02, 223.03 (10), 223.12, 224.06 and 224.10. In addition:

(1) The banking review board shall have the program responsibilities specified for the board under ss. ~~220.02 (2)~~, 220.035, 220.04 (4) and (6), 220.05 (2), 220.07 (2), 220.08, 220.085, 221.01, 221.046 and 221.205.

(3) The credit union review board shall have the program responsibilities specified for the board under ss. 186.015, 186.02, 186.4 (1), 186.23, 186.24 ~~and~~, 186.29 and 186.30 (1).

SECTION 85. 15.641 (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

15.641 (intro.) The ~~co-ordinating~~ *coordinating* council for higher education shall have the program responsibilities specified for the ~~co-ordinating~~ *coordinating* council under subch. I of ch. 39 and ss. 36.06 (10), 37.02 (5), 41.13 (5) and 41.155 (1). In addition:

SECTION 86. 15.671 of the statutes is amended to read:

15.671 The higher educational aids board shall have the program responsibilities specified for the board under subch. II of ch. 39 and ss. 25.17 (3) (bf), 36.161, 37.11 (12) and 41.13 (11).

SECTION 87. 15.677 of the statutes is created to read:

15.677 SAME; COUNCILS. (1) COUNCIL ON STUDENT AID. There is created in the higher educational aids board a council on student aid appointed by the higher educational aids board to consist of guidance counselors from Wisconsin public and private high schools and financial aid officers from public and private institutions of higher education.

SECTION 88. 15.70 and 15.701 of the statutes are amended to read:

15.70 HISTORICAL SOCIETY; CONTINUATION. There is continued the state historical society of Wisconsin initially organized under chapter 17, laws of 1853, to be known for statutory purposes as the historical society, *under the direction and supervision of a board of curators. This board is not subject to s. 15.07.*

15.701 The historical society shall have the program responsibilities specified for the historical society under ~~chapter 17, laws of 1853~~, ch. 44 and ss. 16.80, 18.01 (5), 18.03 ~~(3)~~, 27.01 (2) (d), 27.012, ~~35.24~~, 35.85 (12), 35.86 ~~43.11~~, 59.716, ~~59.717~~ and 220.08 (17).

SECTION 89. 15.707 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

15.707 (1) There is created in the historical society ~~an~~ a historical

markers council. The council shall consist of the director of the historical society, the state superintendent of public instruction, the chairman of the highway commission, the secretary of natural resources and the secretary of the department of local affairs and development, or their designees. The director of the ~~state~~ historical society or his designee shall serve as secretary of the council.

SECTION 90. 15.731 of the statutes is amended to read:

15.731 The office of the commissioner of insurance shall have the program responsibilities specified for the office under chs. 199 to 212 and 645 and ss. 23.14 (16), ~~66.911, 66.919 (2), 66.412, 72.15 (4), 72.76 (3) and (4), 102.31, 102.65, 148.03, 151.17, 152.53, 182.032, 185.983, 185.984, 185.992, 185.994, 189.13 (7) and (8), 314.06 and 954.44.~~

SECTION 91. 15.761 of the statutes is amended to read:

15.761 The investment board shall have the program responsibilities specified for the board under ss. ~~14.42, 14.58 (16), 16.40, 23.14 (6), 25.14, 25.15, 25.155, 25.156, 25.16, 25.17, 25.18, to 25.19, 38.24, 42.243, 42.65, 42.66, 66.904 (1) (a), 66.9065 (7) (b), 66.912 (1) (q), 66.914 (1), 67.04 (9), 70.115, 71.20 (4), 102.49 (8), 102.59 (4), 102.65 and (10), 210.05 (2), 220.08 (15) and 231.45.~~

SECTION 92. 15.79 of the statutes is amended to read:

15.79 There is created a public service commission. No member of the commission may have a financial interest in a railroad, public utility or motor carrier. If any member voluntarily becomes so interested, his office thereby shall become vacant. If he involuntarily becomes so interested, he shall divest himself of such interest within a reasonable time; failing to do so, his office shall become vacant. No commissioner may serve on or under any committee of a political party. *Each commissioner shall hold office until his successor is appointed and qualified.*

SECTION 93. 15.791 of the statutes is amended to read:

15.791 The public service commission shall have the program responsibilities specified for the commission under chs. 184 and 190 to 198 and ss. ~~14.752, 18.01 (5) (b), 24.39 (4) (c), 25.40 (1) (b), 26.20, 30.21 (2) (b), 30.33, 31.02 (5), 31.095, 31.15, 31.16, 31.17, 31.185 (3), 31.22, 31.27, 32.02 (13), 32.03 (3), 32.07 (4), 32.075, 35.28, 35.29 (2), 35.84, 59.96 (6) (ab), 59.965 (5) (g) and (h), 60.30 to 60.315, 62.16 (2) (b), 66.03 (4), 66.047, 66.06 to 66.072, 66.076, 66.077, 66.208, 66.30 (3n), 66.94 (30), 66.941 (4) (g), 71.18 (2), 84.05, 84.13 (1), ~~88.31, 88.66 (2), 88.87 (4), 88.88 (2), 103.37 (4), 146.07, 146.085, 182.0135, 182.017, 182.018, 182.36 and, 346.45 and 347.43.~~~~

SECTION 94. 15.821 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

15.821 (1) The savings and loan review board shall have the program responsibilities specified for the board under ss. ~~215.02 to 215.07~~ 215.02 (1), (6) (a), (7) (a), (10) (a) and (16) (b) and (d), 215.04, 215.05 (1), 215.06 (1), 215.07 (2) and (18), 215.09 and, 215.13 (26) (e), 215.16 (7), 215.19 (4), 215.21 (5) (a), 215.24 (4), 215.30 (1) and (2) and 215.32 (1).

SECTION 95. 15.881 of the statutes is amended to read:

15.881 The board of regents of state universities shall have the program responsibilities specified for the board of regents under ch. 37 and ss. 17.07 (6), 20.265, 20.920, 32.02, ~~43.11~~ 44.14 (2), 84.27, 143.17 and 887.23.

SECTION 96. 15.911 of the statutes is amended to read:

15.911 The board of regents of the university of Wisconsin shall have the program responsibilities specified for the board of regents under ~~chs.~~ chs. 36, 42 and 142 and ss. ~~16.21 (7), 25.17 (9), 16.31, 20.285 22.20 (1), 27.015 (12), 28.07, 32.02, 142.07, 142.08 37.29, 37.30, 39.05 (2), 41.55, 46.115, 66.191, 66.30 (2m), 84.27, 88.30, 92.04 (4) (c), 94.14 (1), 94.40, 140.05 (2), 143.17, 155.02 (3), 155.03 (2), 165.05 and 887.23.~~ In addition:

(1) The soil conservation board shall have the program responsibili-

CHAPTER 276

736

ties specified for the board under ~~ss. 80.06, 80.30 (2), 84.02 (3), 84.11 (3) and 92.04 ch. 92 and ss. 36.216 and 88.22 (3).~~

(2) The laboratory of hygiene board shall have the program responsibilities specified for the board under ~~ss. 36.225, 46.13, 143.04 (9), 143.07 (10), 162.03 (1) (d) and 245.06 (1) (b).~~

SECTION 97. 15.941 of the statutes is amended to read:

15.941 The board of vocational, technical and adult education shall have the program responsibilities specified for the board under ch. 41 ~~and ss. 25.01 (3), 36.227, 43.11 and 67.04 (6) and (7) 38 and ss. 20.292, 39.03 (7), 158.03 (4), 159.08 (10), 343.06 (3) and 343.60 (1).~~

SECTION 98. 16.002 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

16.002 DEFINITIONS. In this chapter:

(1) "Department" means the department of administration.

(2) "Secretary" means the secretary of administration.

(3) "Board" means the personnel board.

(4) "Departments" means constitutional offices, departments and independent agencies and includes all societies, associations and other agencies of state government for which appropriations are made by law.

SECTION 99. 16.003 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

16.003 (1) PURPOSE. ~~There is created a department of administration, consisting of a commissioner who shall be the principal executive officer responsible for the formulation of department policies and for the execution of the duties and functions assigned to the department, a deputy commissioner and employes. The department is created to shall carry out the purposes of this chapter by improving the techniques used for such management specialties, not limited by enumeration, as budgeting, accounting, engineering, purchasing, and personnel and records management; by coordinating coordinating and providing services which are used by more than one agency, and by reviewing agencies' programs and management to identify problems and suggest improvements.~~

SECTION 100. 16.003 (2) and (4) to (6) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 101. 16.003 (3) of the statutes is renumbered 16.003 (2) and amended to read:

16.003 (2) The ~~commissioner~~ secretary shall appoint, *under the classified service*, the staff necessary for performing the duties of the department, ~~subject to the classified service~~. When a vacancy occurs in the position of director of personnel the ~~members of the~~ personnel board shall prepare and conduct an examination for the position in the manner usually followed and prescribed by ~~ch. 14 subch. II~~ for all other positions, and the governor shall make the appointment from the top 3 names certified to the ~~commissioner~~ secretary.

SECTION 102. 16.004 (1) and (2) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 103. 16.004 (3) to (8) of the statutes are renumbered 16.004 (1) to (6) and 16.004 (2) to (5), as renumbered, are amended to read:

16.004 (2) The ~~commissioner~~ secretary shall furnish all information requested by the governor or by any member of the legislature, ~~and make all reports required of him by statute~~. The ~~commissioner~~ secretary shall report to the governor and the board on government operations by July 15 of each year recommendations and legislative proposals which will improve the administration of the state's agencies, ~~and make a report on the work performed and accomplishments of the department of administration, which shall be a public document.~~

(3) (a) The ~~commissioner and his assistants~~ department, when directed by the governor, shall be authorized and shall make investigations of *investigate* any irregularities, and ~~of~~ all phases of operating cost and

functions, of ~~any or~~ all executive or administrative departments, institutions, boards and commissions in the state government so as to determine the feasibility of consolidating, creating or rearranging departments for the purpose of effecting the elimination of unnecessary state functions, avoiding duplication, reducing the cost of administration and increasing efficiency.

(b) The ~~commissioner~~ secretary may hold either public or private hearings to inform himself of any matters relating to his functions and for that purpose shall be clothed with the powers relating to witnesses given by s. 885.01 (4) and the provisions of s. 885.12 shall apply.

(4) The ~~commissioner~~ secretary and such assistants as shall be designated by him ~~employes of the department as he designates~~ may enter into any department, institution, board or commission departments and examine ~~its~~ their books, and accounts, rules and regulations and any other matter which in the ~~commissioner's~~ secretary's judgment should be examined and may interrogate the department's employes publicly or privately relative thereto.

(5) Every department, ~~its~~ All departments, and their officers and employes, shall ~~co-operate~~ cooperate with the ~~commissioner~~ secretary and shall comply with his every request relating to his functions.

SECTION 104. 16.007 (1) and (8) of the statutes are amended to read:

16.007 CLAIMS BOARD. (1) ~~There is created a claims commission to~~ The claims board shall receive, investigate and make recommendations on all claims presented against the state which are filed pursuant to s. 16.53 (8). No claim or bill relating to such a claim shall be considered by the legislature until a recommendation thereon has been made by the claims ~~commission~~ board.

(8) EXPENSES. ~~Members of the commission shall receive no remuneration for the function beyond their actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their duties. The commission is authorized to~~ board may pay the actual and necessary expenses of employes of the office of the attorney general department of justice or the department of administration authorized by the ~~commission~~ board to secure material information necessary to the disposition of ~~the~~ a claim.

SECTION 105. 16.007 (2) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 106. 16.007 (3) to (6a) of the statutes are renumbered 16.007 (2) to (6) and 16.007 (3), (4) and (6), as renumbered, are amended to read:

16.007 (3) When a claim has been referred to the claims ~~commission~~ board, it shall shedule such claim for hearing, giving the claimant at least 10 days' written notice of the date, time and place thereof. The ~~commission~~ board shall keep a record of its proceedings, but such proceedings may be recorded by a permanent recording device without transcription. It may require sworn testimony and may summon and compel attendance of witnesses and the production of documents and records. Any member of the ~~commission~~ board may sign and issue a subpoena. ~~Three members shall constitute a quorum.~~

(4) The several ~~agencies of the state government~~ departments shall ~~co-operate~~ cooperate with the ~~commission~~ board and shall make their personnel and records available upon request when such request is not inconsistent with other ~~statute law~~ statutes.

(6) SETTLEMENT. Whenever the claims ~~commission~~ board by unanimous vote finds that payment of less than \$500 to a claimant is justified, it may order the amount so found to be justified paid on its own motion without submission of the claim in bill form to the legislature. Such amounts shall be paid upon the certification of the chairman and secre-

CHAPTER 276

738

tary, of the board from the appropriation made by s. 20.505 (3) (a), (g) or (q).

SECTION 107. 16.02 (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

16.02 (intro.) In ~~ss. 16.01 to 16.32~~ this subchapter, unless the context otherwise requires:

SECTION 108. 16.02 (7) of the statutes is created to read:

16.02 (7) "Director" means the director of personnel in the department of administration appointed pursuant to s. 16.003 (2).

SECTION 109. 16.03 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 110. 16.05 (intro.) of the statutes is created to read:

16.05 (intro.) The personnel board shall:

SECTION 111. 16.05 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

16.05 (4) ~~Recommend~~ *Include in its annual report under s. 15.07 (6), recommendations for improvements in the state personnel management practices to the governor in a public biennial report, which shall be transmitted to the presiding officers of each house of the legislature.*

SECTION 112. 16.055 of the statutes is amended to read:

16.055 The ~~bureau~~ director of personnel shall, when requested by the proper authorities, render service in accordance with this ~~chapter~~ subchapter to counties, cities and villages, and shall charge the cost of such service to the city, village or county for which it is performed.

SECTION 113. 16.09 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

16.09 LEGISLATIVE COMPENSATION COUNCIL. The legislative compensation council shall biennially review the salaries established under s. 20.923 (2) for members of the legislature, and shall submit its recommendations, in writing, to the director of personnel and the personnel board for appropriate action under s. 16.105 (2) (a), (3) and (4). Such recommendations shall be submitted to the director and the board no later than September 1 of the even-numbered year.

SECTION 114. 16.21 (7) of the statutes is amended to read:

16.21 (7) To stimulate the interest of qualified students of exceptional merit in government career service, the director of personnel shall ~~co-operate~~ cooperate with the ~~university~~ board of regents of the university of Wisconsin in providing opportunities for recipients of public service scholarship loans to secure employment under the internship plan.

SECTION 115. 16.305 (1) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 116. 16.305 (2) to (6) of the statutes are renumbered 16.305 (1) to (5) and 16.305 (1) (intro.) and (2), as renumbered, are amended to read:

16.305 STATE EMPLOYEES MERIT AWARD BOARD. (1) DUTIES. (intro.) The *state employes merit award* board shall:

(2) The ~~board~~ department shall appoint, under the classified service, a secretary and such other employes as are necessary to carry out ~~its~~ the board's duties. ~~The directors,~~ and shall detail and assign, for the use of the board, such facilities and equipment as the board requires for the proper performance of any state department such assistance as it requires.

SECTION 117. 16.31 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

16.31 (1) Whenever a conservation warden, conservation patrol boat captain, conservation patrol boat engineer, state forest ranger, *conservation* field employe of the ~~conservation~~ department of natural resources who is subject to call for fire control duty, member of the state patrol, state motor vehicle inspector, ~~fire marshal,~~ lifeguard, ~~special agent for the attorney general,~~ investigator employed by the division of criminal investigation of the department of justice, special tax agent, state drivers license examiner, member of the state fair police department, ~~state~~ university

~~policemen of Wisconsin policeman, state beverage tax investigator,~~ engineer, engineering aid, fire watchman employed at the Grand Army home, or guard or institutional aid or a state probation and parole officer or any other employe whose duties include supervision and discipline of inmates or wards of the state at the Wisconsin child center or at a state penal institution, including central state hospital, the state school for boys, the state school for girls, or while on parole supervision outside of the confines of the institutions, or supervision of persons placed on probation by a court of record, or supervision and care of patients at a state mental institution, and university hospitals suffers injury while in the performance of his duties, as defined in subs. (2) and (3), he shall continue to be paid his full monthly salary by his employing department upon the same basis as he was paid prior to the injury. Such full monthly salary shall be paid to the employe while he is unable to work as the result of the injury or until the termination of his employment upon recommendation of the appointing officer and approval of the ~~director of~~ head of the personnel function. When the employe is paid such salary under this section there shall be no deduction from his sick leave credits, compensatory time for overtime accumulations or vacation. At any time during the employe's period of disability the ~~director~~ head of the personnel function may order physical or medical examinations to determine the degree of disability at the expense of the employing department.

SECTION 118. 16.31 (3) (b) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

16.31 (3) (b) (intro.) A conservation warden, conservation patrol boat captain, conservation patrol boat engineer, a member of the state patrol, state motor vehicle inspector, university ~~policemen of Wisconsin policeman,~~ member of the state fair police department, ~~state beverage tax investigator,~~ special tax agent, ~~special agent of the attorney general and fire marshal~~ and investigator employed by the division of criminal investigation of the department of justice at all times while:

SECTION 119. 16.525 of the statutes is amended to read:

16.525 Every association, society, institute or other organization, that receives aid in any form through appropriations from the state shall ~~make~~ report to the department of administration ~~on or before the first day of September in August of each year.~~ Such annual report shall contain a detailed statement of all receipts and expenditures of such association, society, institute or organization for ~~each the fiscal year ending concluded on the preceding June 30,~~ and such portions as are of special importance may be published in the ~~biennial~~ annual report of the department of administration ~~under s. 15.04 (4).~~

SECTION 120. 16.765 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

16.765 (3) Subsections (1) and (2) shall not apply to contracts to meet special requirements or emergencies, if approved by the ~~director~~ administrator of the ~~equal opportunities~~ division of equal rights of the ~~industrial commission~~ department of industry, labor and human relations.

SECTION 121. 16.80 (1) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

16.80 (1) PUBLIC RECORDS BOARD. The public records board shall preserve for permanent use important state records and provide an orderly method for the disposition of other state records.

SECTION 122. 16.81 (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

16.81 (intro.) The ~~executive~~ department of administration may establish and maintain a records management service ~~in the department of administration:~~

SECTION 123. 16.825 of the statutes is amended to read:

16.825 COUNCIL ON PRINTING. ~~An advisory printing committee is created~~ composed of 6 members appointed by the commissioner for 2 year

~~terms.~~ The ~~committee council~~ *on printing* shall confer with the ~~commissioner secretary of administration~~ on policies and procedures with respect to the printing activities of the state and advise him on such matters. The ~~committee council~~ shall meet with the ~~commissioner secretary~~ at least quarterly. The ~~committee council~~ may request reports, through the department, pertinent to its functions from any state agency. ~~Two of the members shall be from state agencies, 2 shall be representatives of the major trade association representing the commercial printing industry in the state, and 2 shall be persons knowledgeable in graphic communication, not representing either the state or the printing industry. The committee shall designate one of its number chairman. The commissioner shall appoint a secretary.~~

SECTION 124. 16.83 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

16.83 (1) PURPOSE. ~~There is created in the department of administration a~~ *The purpose of the state capitol and executive residence board is to direct the continuing and consistent maintenance of the property, decorative furniture and furnishings of the capitol and executive residence.*

SECTION 125. 16.83 (2), (3), (4) and (5) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 126. 16.83 (6) of the statutes is renumbered 16.83 (2).

SECTION 127. 20.225 (2) and (3) of the statutes are consolidated, renumbered 20.225 (2) and revised to read:

20.225 (2) EDUCATIONAL COMMUNICATIONS. (a) *General program operations.* The amounts in the schedule to carry out its functions under ss. 39.11 and 39.13.

(g) *Gifts and grants.* All moneys received from gifts and grants to carry out the purposes for which made.

(m) *Federal grants.* All moneys received from the federal government as authorized by the governor under s. 16.54 for the purposes for which made and received.

(u) *Rentals and improvements.* From the state building trust fund, a sum sufficient for the payment of rentals on leases and subleases entered into by the coordinating council under s. 39.09 on projects designated and approved by the building commission when the projects are initiated and on projects designated and approved by the building commission after initiation thereof.

(v) *Engineering and legal services.* Biennially from the state building trust fund, the amounts in the schedule to provide the engineering and legal services required by the coordinating council in the execution of its functions under s. 39.09.

SECTION 128. 20.285 (2) (j) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.285 (2) (j) All moneys received at the university of Wisconsin-Milwaukee for or on account of any residence halls, commons, dining halls, cafeteria, student union, stationery stand or bookstore, parking facilities, or such other activities as the ~~university of Wisconsin~~ board of regents designates and including such fees covering student activities as allocated by the board of regents and including such moneys received under conveyances consummated under s. 36.06 (6) (b) 1 and leases entered into under s. 36.06 (6) (b) 2 as the ~~board of regents designate~~ *designates* to be receipts under this paragraph shall be paid into the general fund, and are appropriated therefrom, subject to the limitation hereinafter provided, to be used for 1) the operation, maintenance and capital expenditures of such activities, and including the transfer of funds to nonprofit corporations referred to in s. 36.06 (6) to be used by such corporations for the payment of construction costs including architectural and engineering services, for furnishings and equipment, and for temporary financing, and for 2) optional rental payments in addition to the mandatory rental payments under the leases and subleases, in connection with the providing of facilities

for such activities. The amount so appropriated shall not exceed the amounts paid into the general fund as aforesaid after deducting therefrom an amount equal to the amount appropriated under sub. (9) (um) for the payment of rentals by the *board* of regents under s. 36.06 (6) on projects for such activities. The amount appropriated and available under this paragraph shall be determined by the department of administration.

SECTION 129. 20.370 (9) (k) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.370 (9) (k) Biennially from moneys allocated under sub. (7) (g), the amounts in the schedule ~~to the soil conservation board~~ for artificial lake creation under s. 92.18.

SECTION 130. 20.445 (9) (u) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.445 (9) (u) All federal moneys received for the ~~Wisconsin state~~ employment service pursuant to s. 101.37 or for the administration of unemployment compensation under ch. 108, and any moneys paid to the department of industry, labor and human relations for the performance of the functions of the department under ch. 108, and for its conduct of public employment offices consistent with s. 101.37, and for its other efforts to regularize employment; to pay the compensation and expenses of appeal boards and of advisory committees; and to pay allowances stimulating education during unemployment. Any balance remaining in this fund at the close of any fiscal year shall not lapse but shall remain available for the purposes herein specified. Estimated expenditures under this paragraph shall appear in the schedule of subs. (1) to (3) as par. (u).

SECTION 131. 20.455 (1) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.455 (1) (d) A sum sufficient for the payment of expenses incurred by the ~~attorney general, his deputy or assistants~~ *department of justice* in the prosecution or defense of any action or proceeding in which the state may be a party or may have an interest, for any abstract of title, clerk of court's fees, sheriff's fees, or any other expense actually necessary to the prosecution or defense of such cases, for the payment of expenses incurred where the ~~attorney general's office~~ *department of justice* is not involved, and where the statutes provide that such expenses shall be paid from this appropriation, unless such cost or expenses are charged to some other appropriation.

SECTION 132. 20.525 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.525 (1) (b) Such sums as are necessary for the general operations of the executive office. ~~The lieutenant governor when acting as governor, shall receive additional compensation at the rate of \$25 per day. When acting as governor because of a vacancy in the office of governor created by the happening of any contingency specified in s. 17.03, he shall receive the annual salary and all other rights, privileges and emoluments of the office of governor. The annual salary paid in such instances shall be in lieu of all other compensation provided for the lieutenant governor. The governor shall be entitled to his expenses and any expenses in connection with any conferences of governors, as prescribed in s. 14.24 14.17.~~

SECTION 133. 20.765 (1) (c) 3 of the statutes is renumbered 14.33 and amended to read:

14.33 EMPLOYEES. ~~The amounts necessary to~~ *The lieutenant governor may employ one administrative assistant 2 under s. 16.08 (2) (g) for the entire biennial term, and to employ one secretary under s. 16.08 (2) (g) or under the classified service at the same rate as legislative stenographers head clerks for such period and upon such terms as the lieutenant governor determines.*

SECTION 134. 20.923 (2) (a) 3 of the statutes is amended to read:

20.923 (2) (a) 3. Natural resources, department of; ~~division of resource development; administrator;~~ *secretary.*

CHAPTER 276

742

SECTION 135. 20.923 (2) (b) 5 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 136. 20.923 (2) (e) 2 of the statutes is amended to read:

20.923 (2) (e) 2. Higher educational aids board: executive ~~director~~ secretary.

SECTION 137. Chapter 21 (title) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

CHAPTER 21.

DEPARTMENT OF MILITARY AFFAIRS.

SECTION 138. 21.18 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

21.18 (3) All staff officers, appointed under sub. (1), except the aides-de-camp who shall hold office at the pleasure of the governor, and except the adjutant general, whose tenure is governed by ~~sub. (4) s. 15.31~~, shall hold their positions until they ~~shall~~ have reached the age of 65 years, unless retired prior to that time by reason of resignation, disability or for cause to be determined by a court-martial legally convened for that purpose. Vacancies among said officers, other than aides-de-camp, shall be filled by appointment from officers of the Wisconsin national guard.

SECTION 139. 21.18 (4) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 140. 21.19 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

21.19 (1) The adjutant general shall be chief of staff, inspector general and quartermaster general. He shall have the custody of all military records, correspondence and other documents relating to the volunteers of this state, at any time in the service of the United States, and of the national guard heretofore or hereafter organized, except such as are required to be filed with the governor. He shall be the medium of military correspondence with the governor and perform all other duties pertaining to his office or prescribed by law. He shall ~~on or before June 30 in each even numbered year make a report to the governor, to be laid before the legislature, of all the transactions of his department since the last biennial report, setting forth the number, strength and condition of the national guard, and such other matters as he deems important.~~ He shall make and transmit to the president the annual returns required by the laws of the United States and submit to the governor a duly certified copy thereof.

SECTION 141. 21.19 (7) of the statutes is amended to read:

21.19 (7) The adjutant general as quartermaster general shall have charge of all the military property of the state, and shall carefully preserve, repair and account for the same; keep in such manner as the governor ~~shall directs~~, and subject to his inspection, an account of all moneys received and expended by him; perform the customary duties of his office, and of the office of chief of all logistical services, and have the custody of all records, returns and papers pertaining to such office; and he shall ~~on or before October 1 in each even numbered year render a report to the governor, to be laid before the legislature, giving the report required of the adjutant general by s. 15.04 (4) shall include~~ a detailed statement of all moneys received and expended by him, of all military property belonging to the state as owner or bailee and remaining on hand at the date of his last report, and such as may have come into his possession after such date, from what sources the same have been received, to whom issued or how expended, and upon whose order, and the condition of the property remaining on hand, also showing who has the possession, and the condition of all military property issued under the law, so far as the same has been reported to him. The transportation of all troops, arms, accoutrements, stores and other property and the preparation for encampments shall be contracted for by him under direction of the governor.

SECTION 142. 21.43 of the statutes is amended to read:

21.43 The governor shall issue commissions to all officers whose ~~appointments shall be~~ *appointments are* approved by him. Every commission shall be countersigned by the secretary of state and attested by the adjutant general and continue as provided by law. Each officer so commissioned shall take and file with the ~~adjutant general~~ *department of military affairs* the oath of office prescribed by the constitution. All commissioned officers shall take rank according to the date assigned them by their commissions, and when 2 of the same grade rank from the same date, their rank shall be determined by length of service in the national guard, and if of equal service then by lot.

SECTION 143. 21.615 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

21.615 (1) (a) ~~There is created the Wisconsin state~~ *The armory board* which is made a body politic and corporate ~~to consist of 5 members.~~ The ~~adjutant general and the commissioner of administration or their designated representatives shall at all times be ex officio members of the board.~~ The ~~remaining 3 members shall be appointed by the governor from the active list of officers of the Wisconsin national guard or its successor, and any vacancy arising among the 3 members appointed by the governor shall be filled by appointment of the governor in like manner.~~ *The adjutant general of Wisconsin shall be chairman of the board. The board shall elect from its own membership a secretary and a treasurer and the board may change such officers.*

(b) The board shall act by resolution adopted at a meeting thereof called and held in accordance with such bylaws or rules ~~and regulations~~ *as the board may adopt* ~~adopts~~ for the regulation of the conduct of ~~the~~ *its* affairs thereof. Three members of the board shall constitute a quorum ~~for the transaction of business at any meeting which has been duly called and convened, in accordance with the bylaws or rules and regulations of the board, and any action taken by 3 members of the board at any such meeting shall be deemed to be the action of the board for all purposes. The members of the board shall serve without compensation.~~

SECTION 144. 21.615 (2) (c) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 145. 22.03 (3) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 146. 22.04 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

22.04 (2) "Secretary" ~~is means~~ *means* the ~~head secretary of the department under s. 22.06~~ *local affairs and development.*

SECTION 147. 22.04 (3) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 148. 22.05 of the statutes is amended to read:

22.05 PURPOSES. ~~There is created a state department to be known as the department of local affairs and development. The department is created to of local affairs and development shall carry out the purposes of this chapter by advising the governor and legislature on the role of the state in state-local affairs; making continuing study~~ *studies* of the problems affecting state and local government relations and ~~provision of recommendations for relieving these problems; co-ordination of coordinating state agency activities affecting local governments as well as and local government participation in and utilization of federal aid programs; and functioning in any other reasonable manner that will accomplish the stated purposes of this chapter.~~

SECTION 149. 22.06 (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

22.06 (intro.) ~~The head of the department shall be the secretary who shall be nominated by the governor, and with the advice and consent of the senate appointed to serve at the pleasure of the governor. The secretary shall:~~

SECTION 150. 22.06 (2) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

22.06 (2) Establish an office in Milwaukee under a special assistant who shall be selected under the classified service. The special assistant shall administer the department's Milwaukee office and be directly concerned, as the secretary's representative, with urban and metropolitan problems.

SECTION 151. 22.06 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

22.06 (4) Submit and adopt all necessary plans; enter into contracts; accept gifts, grants and federal funds, ~~compile and submit a comprehensive program budget;~~ make rules and regulations; submit a biennial report to the governor and legislature regarding department operation during the past biennium and those anticipated during the next biennium; and do all things necessary and proper to carry out this chapter.

SECTION 152. 22.09, 22.095 and 22.10 of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 153. 22.11 of the statutes is amended to read:

22.11 The successful discharge of this chapter demands that all activities and programs of state agencies which have an impact on community affairs be fully ~~co-ordinated~~ *coordinated*. State agencies shall ~~co-operate~~ *cooperate* fully with the secretary and the governor in fulfilling this chapter. ~~The governor and the secretary may establish such coordination, advisory, or other machinery and may issue such rules and regulations as deemed necessary to carry out this chapter.~~

SECTION 154. 22.12 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 155. 22.14 (2) (c) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

22.14 (2) (c) Provide planning assistance to public planning agencies including, without limitation because of enumeration, cities, villages, towns, counties, regional planning agencies and councils of government, including such entities, when operating or cooperating under s. 66.30, which have the resources and administrative personnel to carry out such planning.

SECTION 156. 22.14 (2) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

22.14 (2) (e) As necessary prepare plans for ~~city, town, village or county or any official metropolitan or regional~~ *any entity or planning agency referred to under par. (c)* at the request of the ~~local governmental unit such entity or planning agency,~~ and shall charge the cost of its services to the requesting ~~local governmental unit or entity or planning agency.~~

SECTION 157. 22.16 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

22.16 EMERGENCY GOVERNMENT. (1) DECLARATION OF POLICY. To prepare the state and its subdivisions to cope with emergencies resulting from enemy action and natural or man-made disasters, it is declared to be necessary to establish an organization for emergency government, conferring upon the governor and others specified the powers and duties provided by this subchapter.

(2) DEFINITIONS. (a) "Emergency government" includes "civil defense" and means all measures undertaken by or on behalf of the state and its subdivisions:

1. To prepare for and minimize the effect of enemy action and natural or man-made disaster upon the civilian population.

2. To effectuate emergency repairs to, or the emergency restoration of, vital public utilities and facilities destroyed or damaged by such action or disaster.

(b) "Civil defense" means all measures undertaken by or on behalf of the state and its subdivisions to prepare for and minimize the effect of enemy action upon the civilian population.

(c) "Enemy action" means hostile action by a foreign power which threatens the security of this state or a portion thereof.

(3) POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE GOVERNOR. (a) The governor shall:

1. Review orders establishing or altering emergency government areas.
2. Review state emergency government plans and modifications thereof.
3. Employe the division of emergency government during a state of emergency proclaimed by him, issue orders and delegate such authority as is deemed necessary to the administrator.
4. Determine responsibilities of state departments and independent agencies in respect to emergency government and by order direct such departments and agencies in utilizing personnel, facilities, supplies and equipment before and during a state of emergency.

(b) The governor may:

1. Proclaim a state of emergency for the state or any portion thereof if he determines that an emergency resulting from enemy action or natural or man-made disaster exists. The duration of such state of emergency shall not exceed 60 days as to emergencies resulting from enemy action or 30 days as to emergencies resulting from natural or man-made disaster, unless either is extended by joint resolution of the legislature. A copy of the proclamation shall be filed with the secretary of state. The proclamation may be revoked at the discretion of either the governor by written order or the legislature by joint resolution.
2. On behalf of the state, enter into mutual aid agreements concerning emergency government with other states.
3. Accept from any source gifts and grants including services for emergency government purposes and may authorize state, county, town and municipal officers to receive such gifts and grants. When grants require county, town or municipal participation, the state may transfer title to equipment acquired through such agreement to participating counties, towns and municipalities.
4. During a state of emergency, declare priority of emergency government contracts over other contracts, allocate materials and facilities in his discretion, and take, use and destroy private property for emergency government purposes. Such taking, use or destruction shall be in the name of the state. Records shall be kept of such action and such records shall be evidence of a claim against the state. Payment of such claim shall be made under s. 16.53 (8).
5. During a state of emergency, issue such orders as he deems necessary for the security of persons and property.

(4) POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE SECRETARY. (a) The secretary shall:

1. Subject to approval by the governor, develop and promulgate a state plan of emergency government for the security of persons and property which shall be mandatory during a state of emergency.
2. Prescribe and carry out state-wide training programs and exercises to develop emergency government proficiency, disseminate information including warnings of enemy action, serve as the principal assistant to the governor in the direction of emergency government activities and coordinate emergency government programs between counties.
3. Furnish guidance and develop and promulgate standards for emergency government programs for counties, towns and municipalities, and prescribe nomenclature for all levels of emergency government.
4. Withhold or recover grants under sub. (13).

(b) The secretary may:

1. Divide the state into emergency government areas composed of whole counties by general or special written orders subject to approval by the governor, and modify the boundaries thereof as changed conditions

warrant. Such areas shall be classified and designated in accordance with standards promulgated under the federal civil defense act of 1950, as amended.

2. Appoint a head of emergency government for each area established in accordance with subd. 1 under the classified service on either a part-time or full-time basis, or may request the governor to designate any state officer or employe as acting area head on a part-time basis.

3. Designate and post highways as emergency government routes closed to all but authorized vehicles when required for training programs and exercises.

4. Prescribe traffic routes and control traffic during a state of emergency.

5. Organize and train state mobile support units to aid any area during a state of emergency. Such units may participate in training programs and exercises both within and outside the state.

(5) POWERS AND DUTIES OF AREA HEADS. Area heads of emergency government may exercise such powers as are delegated and shall perform such duties as are assigned to them by the secretary.

(6) POWERS AND DUTIES OF COUNTIES AND MUNICIPALITIES. (a) The governing body of each county, town and municipality shall adopt an effective program of emergency government consistent with the state plan of emergency government and, except as the county level in counties having a county executive, shall appoint a head of emergency government services. Each such governing body may appropriate funds and levy taxes for this program.

(b) In counties having a county executive under s. 59.031, the county board shall designate the county executive or confirm his appointee as county head of emergency government services.

(c) Each county board shall designate a committee of the board as a county emergency government committee whose chairman shall be the chairman of the county board. The committee, in counties having a county executive under s. 59.031, shall retain policy-making and rule-making powers in the establishment and development of county emergency government plans and programs.

(d) During the continuance of a state of emergency proclaimed by the governor the county board of each county situated within the area to which the governor's proclamation applies may employ the county emergency government organization and the facilities and other resources of said organization to cope with the problems of the emergency, and the governing body of each municipality and town situated within said area shall have similar authority with respect to municipal emergency government organizations, facilities and resources. Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to prohibit counties and municipalities from employing their emergency government organizations, facilities and resources to cope with the problems of local public emergencies except where restrictions are imposed by federal regulations on property donated by the federal government.

(7) POWERS AND DUTIES OF HEAD OF EMERGENCY GOVERNMENT SERVICES. (a) The head of emergency government services in each county, town and municipality shall for his respective county, town or municipality, develop and promulgate emergency government plans consistent with state plans, direct the emergency government program and perform such other duties related to emergency government as are required by the governing body and the emergency government committee of the governing body when applicable.

(b) The head of emergency government services in each county shall coordinate and assist in developing town and municipal emergency

government plans within the county, integrate such plans with the county plan; advise the department of all emergency government planning in the county and submit to the secretary such reports as he requires, direct and coordinate emergency government activities throughout the county during a state of emergency, and direct county-wide emergency government training programs and exercises.

(c) The head of emergency government services in each town and municipality shall direct local emergency government training programs and exercises, direct participation in emergency government programs and exercises ordered by the county head of emergency government services and the secretary, and advise the county head of emergency government services on local emergency government programs and submit to him such reports as he requires.

(8) COOPERATION. (a) Counties, towns and municipalities may cooperate under s. 66.30 to furnish services, combine offices and finance emergency government services.

(b) Counties, towns and municipalities may contract for emergency government services with political subdivisions, emergency government units and civil defense units of this state, and upon prior approval of the secretary, with such entities in bordering states. A copy of each such agreement shall be filed with the secretary within 10 days after execution thereof.

(c) The state and its departments and independent agencies and each county, town and municipality shall furnish whatever services, equipment, supplies and personnel are required of them under this subchapter.

(9) PERSONNEL. (a) No emergency government organization established under this section shall participate in any form of political activity or be employed directly or indirectly for any political activity.

(b) No emergency government organization established under this section shall be employed to interfere with the orderly process of a labor dispute.

(c) No person shall be employed or associated in any capacity in any emergency government organization under this section who advocates a change by force or violence in the constitutional form of government of the United States or this state or who has been convicted of or is under indictment or information charging any subversive act against the United States.

(d) Employes of municipal and county emergency governmental units are employes of the municipality or county to which the unit is attached for purposes of workmen's compensation benefits. Employes of the area and state emergency government units are employes of the state for purposes of workmen's compensation benefits. Volunteer emergency government workers are employes of the emergency government unit with whom duly registered in writing for purposes of workmen's compensation benefits. An emergency government employe or volunteer who engages in emergency government activities upon order of any echelon in the emergency government organization other than that which carries his workmen's compensation coverage shall be eligible for the same benefits as though employed by the governmental unit employing him. Any employment which is part of an emergency government program including but not restricted because of enumeration, test runs and other activities which have a training objective as well as emergency government activities during an emergency proclaimed in accordance with this chapter and which grows out of, and is incidental to, such emergency government activity is covered employment. Members of an emergency government unit who are not acting as employes of a private employer during emergency government activities are employes of the emergency government unit for which acting. If no pay agreement exists or if the contract pay

is less, pay for workmen's compensation purposes shall be computed in accordance with s. 102.11.

(e) Emergency government employes as defined in par. (d) shall be indemnified by their sponsor against any tort liability to third persons incurred in the performance of emergency government activities while acting in good faith and in a reasonable manner. Emergency government activities constitute a governmental function.

(f) If the total liability for workmen's compensation benefits under par. (d), indemnification under par. (e) and loss from destruction of equipment under sub. (10), incurred in any calendar year exceeds \$1 per capita of the sponsor's population, the state shall reimburse the sponsor for the excess. Payment shall be made from the appropriation in s. 20.545 (1) (a) on certificate of the secretary.

(g) Emergency government employes as such shall receive no pay unless specific agreement for pay is made.

(10) BEARING OF LOSSES. Any loss arising from the damage to or destruction of government-owned equipment utilized in any authorized emergency government activity shall be borne by the owner thereof.

(11) POWERS OF PEACE OFFICERS. During any state of emergency proclaimed by the governor or during any training program or exercises authorized by the secretary, any peace officer or traffic officer of the state, or of a county, city, village or town, when legally engaged in traffic control, escort duty or protective service, may carry out such functions at any point within the state but shall be subject to the direction of the secretary through the sheriff of the county in which an assigned function is performed.

(12) RED CROSS NOT AFFECTED. Nothing contained in this section shall limit or in any way affect the responsibility of the American National Red Cross as authorized by the congress of the United States.

(13) AUTHORITY TO WITHHOLD GRANTS. If the secretary finds that any political subdivision of the state has not complied with the requirement of this section that it establish and maintain an operating emergency government organization, he may refuse to approve grants of funds or items of equipment to such political subdivision until it complies. If such political subdivision fails to use funds or items of equipment granted to it through the secretary in accordance with the agreement under which the grant was made, the secretary may refuse to make any additional grants to such political subdivision until it has complied with the conditions of the prior grant, and he may start recovery proceedings on the funds and items of equipment which have not been used in accordance with the conditions of the grant.

(14) PENALTIES. Whoever intentionally fails to comply with the directives of emergency government authorities promulgated under this section during a state of emergency or during any training program or exercises may be fined not more than \$200 or imprisoned not more than 90 days or both.

SECTION 158. 22.161 and 22.162 of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 159. 22.163 to 22.167 and 22.17 to 22.20 of the statutes are renumbered 22.17 to 22.21 and 22.30 to 22.33, respectively.

SECTION 160. 22.17 to 22.19, 22.20 (1), (2) (a) to (e), (4), (6) and (10) and 22.21 (2), as renumbered, are amended to read:

22.17 EMERGENCY SEAT OF STATE GOVERNMENT. (1) Whenever, during the continuance of a state of emergency proclaimed by the governor under authority of s. 22.16, it becomes imprudent, inexpedient or impossible to conduct the affairs of state government at the seat thereof in the city of ~~Madison, Dane county, Wisconsin~~ state capital, the governor shall as often as the exigencies of the situation require, by proclamation, designate an

emergency temporary location for the seat of government at such place within or without this state as he deems advisable ~~under the circumstances,~~ and shall take such action and issue such orders as are necessary for an orderly transition of the affairs of state government to such emergency temporary location. If practicable, the emergency temporary location so designated by the governor shall conform to that provided for in the current ~~civil defense and disaster control~~ *emergency government* plan authorized by s. 22.16. Such emergency temporary location shall remain as the seat of government until the governor establishes a new location under this section, or until the emergency is ~~declared to be ended in the manner provided under s. 22.16~~ and the seat of government is returned to its normal location.

(2) ~~During such time as~~ *While* the seat of government remains at such temporary location all official acts ~~now or hereafter~~ required by law to be performed at the seat of government by any officer, *independent* agency, department or authority of this state, including the convening and meeting of the legislature in regular or special session, shall be as valid and binding when performed at such emergency temporary location as if performed at the normal location ~~of the seat of government.~~

22.18 (1) Whenever, during the ~~continuance~~ of a state of emergency ~~proclaimed by the governor under s. 22.16,~~ it becomes imprudent, inexpedient or impossible to conduct the affairs of local government at the regular or usual place or places thereof, the governing body of each county, town and municipality of this state may meet at any place within or without the territorial limits of such political subdivision on the call of the presiding officer or his successor, and shall proceed to establish and designate by ordinance, resolution or other manner, alternate or substitute sites or places as the emergency temporary locations of government where all, or any part, of the public business may be transacted and conducted during the emergency situation. Such alternate or substitute site or places may be within or without the territorial limits of such county, town or municipality and may be within or without those of the state. If practicable, they shall be the sites or places designated as the emergency temporary locations of government in the current ~~civil defense and disaster control~~ *emergency government* plan ~~authorized by s. 22.16.~~

(2) ~~During the period when~~ *While* the public business is being conducted at an emergency temporary location, the governing body and other officers of a county, town or municipality of this state shall have ~~and~~, possess and shall exercise, at such location, ~~or locations,~~ all of the executive, legislative, administrative and judicial powers and functions conferred upon such body and officers ~~by or under the laws of this state law.~~ Such powers and functions, except judicial, may be exercised in the light of the exigencies of the emergency situation without regard to or compliance with time-consuming procedures and formalities prescribed by law and pertaining thereto. All acts of such body and officers shall be as valid and binding as if performed within the territorial limits of their county, town or municipality.

(3) This section shall control ~~in the event it shall be employed~~ notwithstanding any statutory, charter or ordinance provision to the contrary or in conflict herewith.

22.19 The governing body of any county, town or municipality may enact such ordinances and resolutions as ~~may be~~ *are* necessary to provide for the continuity of government in the event of and throughout the duration of a state of emergency resulting from enemy action ~~in the form of an attack.~~ Such ordinances and resolutions shall provide a method by which temporary emergency appointments to public office are made, except as limited by express constitutional provisions and shall define the scope of the powers and duties which may be exercised, and shall

CHAPTER 276

750

provide for termination of the appointment so made. This section shall control ~~in the event it is employed~~ notwithstanding any statutory provision to the contrary or in conflict ~~therewith~~ *herewith*.

22.20 (1) Because of the possibility of enemy attack upon the United States of ~~unprecedented destructiveness~~, it is determined and declared to be necessary to assure the continuity and effective operation of the ~~governments~~ *government* of this state and of its political subdivisions in the event of such attack, by providing for additional persons who can temporarily exercise the powers and discharge the duties of state and local offices.

(2) (a) "Unavailable" means that during ~~an~~ *a state* of emergency resulting from enemy action ~~in the form of an attack~~, either a vacancy in office exists and there is no deputy authorized to exercise all of the powers and discharge the duties of the office, or that the lawful incumbent of the office, ~~including any deputy exercising the powers and discharging the duties of an office because of a vacancy~~, and his duly authorized deputy are absent or unable to exercise the powers and discharge the duties of the office.

(b) "Emergency interim successor" means a person designated ~~pursuant to~~ *under* this section, if the officer is unavailable, to exercise the powers and discharge the duties of an office until a successor is appointed or elected and qualified as ~~may be provided by the constitution, statutes, charters and ordinances law~~ or until the lawful incumbent is able to resume the exercise of the powers and discharge the duties of the office.

(c) "Office" includes all state and local offices, the powers and duties of which are defined by ~~the constitution, statutes, charters and ordinances law~~, except the office of governor, and except those in the legislature and the judiciary. An "officer" is a person who holds an office.

(d) "Attack" means any action taken by an enemy of the United States causing, or ~~which may threatening~~ to cause, substantial damage or injury to persons or property in the state of ~~Wisconsin~~ in any manner by sabotage or by the use of bombs, missiles, shellfire, or atomic, radiological, chemical, bacteriological or biological means or other weapons or methods.

(e) "Political subdivision" includes counties, cities, towns, ~~villages municipalities~~, special districts, authorities, and other public corporations and entities whether organized and existing under charter or general law.

(4) All state officers, subject to such regulations as the governor (or other official authorized under the constitution or this section to exercise the powers and discharge the duties of the office of governor) may issue, shall, ~~upon approval of this section~~, in addition to any deputy authorized ~~pursuant to law~~ to exercise all of the powers and discharge the duties of the office, designate by title emergency interim successors and specify their order of succession. The officer shall review and revise, as necessary, designations made pursuant to this section to ensure their current status. The officer shall designate a sufficient number of such emergency interim successors so that there will be not less than 3 nor more than 7 such deputies or emergency interim successors or any combination thereof, at any time. If any state officer is unavailable following an attack, and if his deputy, if any, is also unavailable, the powers of his office shall be exercised and the duties of his office shall be discharged by his designated emergency interim successors in the order specified. Such emergency interim successors shall exercise said powers and discharge said duties only until such time as the governor under the constitution or authority other than this section or other official authorized under the constitution or this section to exercise the powers and discharge the duties of the office of governor may, where a vacancy exists, appoint a successor to fill the vacancy or until a successor is otherwise appointed, or elected and qualified

as provided by law; or an officer or his deputy or a preceding named emergency interim successor becomes available to exercise, or resume the exercise of, the powers and discharge the duties of his office.

(6) This section ~~shall be applicable~~ *applies* to officers of all political subdivisions not included in sub. (5). Such officers, subject to such regulations as the executive head of the political subdivision ~~may issue~~ *issues*, shall ~~upon approval of this section,~~ designate by title, if feasible, or by named person, emergency interim successors and specify their order of succession. The officer shall review and revise, as necessary, designations made pursuant to this section to ensure their current status. The officer shall designate a sufficient number of persons so that there will be not less than 3 nor more than 7 deputies or emergency interim successors or any combination thereof at any time. If any officer of any political subdivision or his deputy provided for pursuant to law is unavailable, the powers of the office shall be exercised and duties shall be discharged by his designated emergency interim successors in the order specified. The emergency interim successor shall exercise the powers and discharge the duties of the office to which designated until such time as a vacancy which may exist ~~shall be~~ *is* filled in accordance with the constitution or statutes or until the officer or his deputy or a preceding emergency interim successor again becomes available to exercise the powers and discharge the duties of his office.

(10) Until such time as the persons designated as emergency interim successors are authorized to exercise the powers and discharge the duties of an office in accordance with this section, said persons shall serve in their designated capacities at the pleasure of the designating authority ~~and may be removed or replaced by said designating authority at any time, with or without cause.~~

22.21 (2) Any person owning or controlling real estate or other premises who ~~has~~ *gratuitously granted grants* the use thereof for the purposes stated in sub. (1) shall make known to the licensee any hidden dangers or safety hazards which are known to the owner or occupant of said real estate or premises which might possibly result in ~~the~~ death or injury or loss of property to any person making use thereof.

SECTION 161. 22.22 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

22.22 PRESERVATION OF PUBLIC RECORDS. The public records board shall establish a system for the preservation of essential state public records necessary for the continuity of governmental functions in the event of enemy action. The board shall:

(1) Determine what records are essential for operation during a state of emergency and thereafter through consultation with all state departments and independent agencies and the administrator of emergency government, establish the manner in which such records shall be preserved, and provide therefor.

(2) Require every state department and independent agency to establish and maintain a records preservation program.

(3) Provide for security storage of essential state records.

(4) Furnish state departments and independent agencies with copies of the final plan for preservation of essential public records.

(5) Advise all political subdivisions on preservation of records.

SECTION 162. 22.31 (13) of the statutes, as renumbered, is amended to read:

22.31 (13) ~~Co-ordinate~~ *Coordinate* its comprehensive economic development plans with local and regional economic planning and economic developing agencies, both governmental and nongovernmental, and assist these agencies to implement agreed upon economic ~~resource~~ development plans.

CHAPTER 276

752

SECTION 163. 22.42 of the statutes is created to read:

22.42 OLYMPIC SPORTS. The Olympic sports board shall manage and supervise all activities including publicity in the state fair park in connection with Olympic sports and the facilities and area in connection therewith and shall foster and develop appropriate sports activities within that area. Operating costs of the Olympic sports board shall be paid from the appropriation under s. 20.545 (2) (h).

SECTION 164. Chapter 23 (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

CHAPTER 23.

~~COMMISSIONER OF THE PUBLIC LANDS AND THE~~
CONSERVATION COMMISSION.

SECTION 165. 23.01 of the statutes is amended to read:

23.01 The board created by section 7 of article X of the Wisconsin constitution may be styled in any session law, statute or any action or proceeding in a court of justice as "The Board of Commissioners of the Public Lands."

SECTION 166. 23.03 of the statutes is amended to read:

23.03 The board of commissioners of public lands shall investigate the rights of the state to school and normal lands. The expenses incurred in making such investigations and taking necessary steps to protect common school fund and normal fund lands and timber, as well as the expense of necessary surveys, records, appraisals and sales, shall, upon the approval of ~~said commission~~ the board, be paid out of the gross receipts to the funds to which the proceeds from the sale of such land and timber will be added.

SECTION 167. 23.08 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

23.08 APPRAISERS. The board may select men employed elsewhere in the department to appraise lands or perform other services in field and forest.

SECTION 168. 23.09 (2) to (6) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 169. 23.09 (7) to (19) of the statutes are renumbered 23.09 (2) to (13) and 23.09 (2) (intro.), (e) and (n) and (7), as renumbered, are amended to read:

23.09 (2) DEPARTMENTAL RULES; STUDIES; SURVEYS; SERVICES; PENALTIES; POWERS; LONG-RANGE PLANNING. The ~~commission~~ department may make such rules, inaugurate such studies, investigations and surveys, and establish such services as it deems necessary to carry out the provisions and purposes of this ~~act~~ section, and any violation of this ~~act~~ section, or of any rules promulgated by the ~~commission~~ department, shall constitute a misdemeanor and be punished as hereinafter provided. The ~~commission~~ department shall establish long-range plans, projects and priorities for conservation which shall thereafter be carried out by the director. Such plans, projects and priorities shall be reviewed and projected by the ~~commission~~ every 2 years and a report thereon rendered to the governor by September 1 of each odd numbered year. The ~~commission~~ department may:

(e) Extend and consolidate lands or waters suitable for the above purposes by exchange of other lands or waters under ~~their~~ its supervision.

(n) Accept donations of buildings, facilities and structures constructed upon lands owned by this state and under the jurisdiction of the ~~commission~~ department. The donor of such buildings, facilities and structures may contract for ~~the~~ this construction of same according to plans and specifications provided by the ~~commission~~ department or may enter into a contract for professional architectural and engineering services to develop plans and specifications of such buildings, facilities and structures and contract for the construction of same. Upon the completion of construction, satisfactory to the ~~commission~~ department, title of such

buildings, facilities and structures ~~will be vested shall vest~~ in the state of Wisconsin. No person shall construct any building, facility or structure under this paragraph without the prior approval of the ~~commissioner~~ *department* regarding plans and specifications, materials, suitability, design, capacity or location. The plans and specifications for any building, structure or facility donated under this paragraph shall also be subject to the approval of the ~~state~~ building commission.

(7) Any person violating any rule of the ~~state conservation commission~~ *shall department under this chapter may* be fined not less than \$10 nor more than \$100, or imprisoned not exceeding 6 months or both.

SECTION 170. 23.25 (1) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 171. 23.25 (2), (3) and (4) of the statutes are renumbered 23.25 (1), (2) and (3) and 23.25 (1) (intro.), (2) and (3), as renumbered, are amended to read:

23.25 GEOGRAPHIC POWERS AND DUTIES. (1) The ~~state geographic board~~ *department* shall:

(2) Whenever the ~~state geographic board~~ *shall have department has* given a name to any lake, stream, place or other geographic feature within the state, or determined the correct spelling of any such name, it shall be used in all maps, reports and other publications thereafter issued by the state or any of its political subdivisions, and shall be deemed the official name of such geographic feature.

(3) No person shall in any advertisement or publication attempt to modify local usage or name unnamed geographic features without first obtaining the approval of the ~~state geographic board~~ *department*. In case of a violation of this subsection, the ~~geographic board~~ *shall promptly department may* announce its disapproval and ~~shall~~ thereafter adopt an official name for such feature.

SECTION 172. 23.26 (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

23.26 NATURAL RESOURCES COUNCIL OF STATE AGENCIES.

SECTION 173. 23.26 (2) to (4) of the statutes are repealed and recreated to read:

23.26 (2) The secretary of the natural resources council of state agencies shall call all meetings of the council, notify the members thereof and prepare the agenda for such meetings. He shall also prepare and edit the minutes of the meetings of the council and its reports to the legislature.

(3) The council may appoint subcommittees consisting of officers and employes of the several state departments and independent agencies, and authorize such subcommittees to make investigations and surveys and to report to the council on such matters as are necessary to enable the council to carry out the purposes of this section.

(4) In addition to reports under s. 15.04 (4), the council shall make such additional reports as are required by the legislature or the joint legislative council. The council may make reports of its findings and recommendations to the several state departments and independent agencies.

SECTION 174. 23.26 (5) to (8) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 175. 23.27 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

23.27 SCIENTIFIC AREAS PRESERVATION COUNCIL. The scientific areas preservation council shall:

(1) Determine the acceptance or rejection of areas of special scientific interest offered as donations by individuals or organizations for preservation.

(2) Make recommendations to appropriate federal agencies or national scientific organizations of areas in the state that are considered worthy to be listed as scientific areas of national importance.

(3) Advise the department of natural resources and other agencies on matters pertaining to the acquisition, development, utilization and maintenance of scientific areas, including determinations as to the extent of multiple use that may be allowed on approved scientific areas that are a part of a state park, state forest, public hunting ground or similar property of the department.

(4) Prepare and publish an official state list of scientific areas available for research and the teaching of conservation and natural history, and recommend publication of studies made in connection with these areas.

(5) Cooperate with federal agencies, other states, counties or organizations concerned with similar purposes.

(6) Take such other action as is deemed advisable to facilitate the administration, development, maintenance or protection of the scientific area system or any part thereof.

SECTION 176. 23.99 (2) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 177. 23.99 (1), (3), (4), (5), (5b), (6) and (7) of the statutes are renumbered 23.28 (1) to (7) and 23.28 (title), (2) (intro.), (3), (4), (6) (h) 1, (j) 1, (k) and (L) and (7), as renumbered, are amended to read:

23.28 RECREATION COUNCIL.

(2) The ~~advisory committee~~ *recreation council* shall:

(3) The ~~committee council~~ *council* may reimburse other state agencies for necessary services. When it appears to the ~~committee council~~ *council* that there is an overlapping of authority or responsibility between member agencies in the completion of any priority the ~~committee council~~ *council* shall negotiate a ~~co-operative~~ *cooperative* agreement for completing the priority among the agencies concerned. The ~~committee council~~ *council* may retain necessary consulting services. ~~The committee is attached to the executive office for administrative purposes only.~~

(4) In the fulfillment of its purposes, the ~~committee council~~ *council* may receive such gifts and grants of money or property or services as are not otherwise provided for in the statutes. ~~The proceeds of such gifts or grants of money or property may be expended for the purpose of the gift or grant.~~

(6) (h) 1. The ~~conservation~~ department and the department of public welfare of *natural resources* may select the sites for 2 permanent youth camps in addition to the camp provided by subd. 2.

(j) ~~±~~. A permanent tourist center shall be established ~~in 1961~~ near the Illinois border, adjacent to the interstate highway between Chicago and Milwaukee. Two mobile centers shall be purchased and tried at various experimental locations near Hudson, Beloit and other points adjacent to the interstate highway system.

(k) Projects qualifying under s. 23.09 ~~(16)~~ (10).

~~(L)~~ (m) *Special purchase opportunities*. With the approval of the state recreation ~~advisory committee council~~, \$100,000 may be allocated to take advantage of critical purchase opportunities for lands adjacent to existing parks and state forests.

(7) Projects for the 1965-67 biennium shall include the acquisition of land for and the development of Thunder Mountain state park in Marinette county. If not completed during the biennium, it shall be included in subsequent recommendations under sub. ~~(3)~~ ~~(a)~~ (2) (a).

SECTION 178. 24.01 (7), (8), (10) and (11) of the statutes are created to read:

24.01 (7) "Department" means department of natural resources.

(8) "Secretary" means secretary of natural resources.

(10) "Board" means the board of commissioners of public lands.

(11) "Warden" means conservation warden, and includes county, special and deputy conservation wardens.

SECTION 179. 25.15 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 180. 25.155 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 181. 25.156 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

25.156 (1) The ~~trustees~~ *members of the board* shall be the governing body of the state of Wisconsin investment board and shall prescribe rules and formulate policies deemed necessary and appropriate to carry out ~~the its functions of the board.~~

SECTION 182. 25.156 (5) of the statutes is created to read:

25.156 (5) The members of the board shall be the trustees of the state investment fund.

SECTION 183. 25.16 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

25.16 (2) The executive director shall appoint the employees necessary to perform the duties of the board under the classified service. These shall include investment directors. The ~~trustees~~ *members of the board* shall participate in the selection of such directors. The ~~commissioners on March 1, 1960~~ shall become directors without qualifying under a competitive examination. Such investment directors, other than those who were commissioners on March 1, 1960, shall serve a probationary period of not less than 6 months nor more than 2 years as determined by the ~~trustees~~ *members of the board*. Neither the executive director, any investment director nor any employe shall have any financial interest, either directly or indirectly, in any firm engaged in the sale or marketing of real estate or investments of any kind, nor shall any of them render investment advice to others for remuneration.

SECTION 184. 25.17 (1) (g) of the statutes is amended to read:

25.17 (1) (g) General fund (s. 25.20), including trust funds of the state historical society (~~s. 44.01~~ s. 44.015);

SECTION 185. 26.30 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

26.30 (2) POWERS. The ~~commission~~ *department* is vested with authority and jurisdiction in all matters relating to the prevention, detection and control of forest pests on the forest lands of the state, and to do all things necessary in the exercise of such authority and jurisdiction, except that this shall not be construed to grant any powers or authority to the ~~commission~~ *department* for the silvicultural control of forest pests on any land. ~~It is the intent that this~~ *This* section shall apply only to the detection and control of forest pests on forest lands and ~~nothing in this section shall be construed to~~ *does not* affect the authority of the state department of agriculture as outlined in ~~under~~ *chs. 93 and 94*. The action of the ~~commission~~ *department* under sub. (4) shall be ~~co-ordinated~~ *coordinated* with the state department of agriculture in accordance with s. 20.901. The ~~directors~~ *secretaries* of the ~~conservation~~ *department* ~~natural resources~~ and state department of agriculture shall execute annually a memorandum of agreement to enable the ~~co-ordination~~ *coordination* of pest control work of ~~the 2~~ *their* departments.

SECTION 186. 27.01 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

27.01 (3) ~~The~~ *A representative of the department of justice designated by the attorney general shall act as legal counsel and attorney for said* ~~commission~~ *department of natural resources*, both in proceedings and litigation, and in giving advice and counsel. The respective district attorneys of the county or counties where said park is or shall be located shall prosecute all violations of ~~the terms of~~ *this* section occurring within their respective counties as provided in ~~section~~ *s. 26.18*.

SECTION 187. 27.012 (1) (e) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 188. 27.30 (1), (2), (3) (a), (b) and (d) and (12) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 189. 27.30 (3) to (11) and (13) to (15) of the statutes are

renumbered 22.40 (1) to (13) and 22.40 (1) (intro.), (4) (j) and (13), as renumbered, are amended to read:

22.40 STATE AND LOCAL FAIRS. (1) POWERS. The ~~boards~~ *department of local affairs and development shall promulgate rules governing the use of facilities under the control of the department.*

(4) (j) To each county, and any such organized agricultural society, association or board in the state, for the purpose of encouraging and fostering the breeding, development and improvement of standard bred horses in this state, 50 ~~per cent~~ % of each purse of \$400 and 50 ~~per cent~~ % of each purse of \$500 paid by it to the owners of the successful contestants in a ~~two-year-old~~ *2-year-old* trot, ~~two-year-old~~ *2-year-old* pace, ~~three-year-old~~ *3-year old* trot and ~~three-year-old~~ *3-year-old* pace. Any such organization may stage any or all of said events but shall not receive state aid for more than one each of said events in any calendar year. No colt shall be eligible to enter or start therein unless owned by one or more duly qualified electors of this state or trained continuously within the state for not less than 60 days prior to June 15 of the year in which the event is contested. ~~After the year 1934 no two-year-old colt and after the year 1935 no three-year-old~~ *No 2-year-old or 3-year-old colt shall be eligible to enter or start therein, unless owned, raised and trained by one or more duly qualified electors of this state, and unless it is the foal of a mare owned at the time of foaling by one or more qualified electors of this state. Required number of entries and starters shall be 6 to enter and 4 to start. An owner may enter any number of colts but shall not be allowed to start more than 2 colts in the same event. Entry fees for each colt shall not exceed 2 ~~per cent~~ % of the purse and shall be payable on or before a closing date to be fixed by the organization. The organization may, at its option, increase any such purse and may also add the entrance money to the purse and divide such added sums among the starters as it sees fit. Money divisions and conditions other than those herein prescribed shall be uniform throughout the state and shall be fixed annually for the next succeeding year by a joint resolution adopted by the boards of directors of the Wisconsin breeders and harness horse association and Wisconsin association of fairs, and certified to the ~~exposition~~ department on or before the ~~last day of~~ *December 31* in each year. ~~In the event~~ *If the boards of directors of said associations fail in any year to adopt and certify said resolution as aforesaid, then such money divisions and conditions for the next succeeding year shall be fixed by ~~such~~ the department. On or before the last day in December 31 in each year, the county clerk, or the person therefor appointed by the society, association or board claiming state aid, shall file with the ~~exposition~~ department, on blanks provided by it, a statement, verified on oath, showing a true and correct summary of the results of each colt event, the name and address of, and the amount paid to, the owner of each colt, and that the event was in all things conducted as herein provided. Thereupon, state aid shall be certified and paid as provided by par. (f).**

(13) ~~All moneys collected or received for or on account of the operation of the state fair and the Wisconsin Olympic sports commission shall be deposited within one week into the general fund, except as provided in s. 20.545 (2) (k).~~ *The state treasurer and ~~commissioner~~ the secretary of administration or their duly authorized representatives shall be in attendance at the state fair each year to receive ~~such~~ all moneys collected on account of the operation of the state fair and to audit and pay expenditures duly certified by the ~~state exposition~~ department of local affairs and development as having been necessarily incurred in the operation of the state fair.*

SECTION 190. 27.305 of the statutes, except 27.305 (1) (d), is renumbered 22.41 and 22.41 (1) (a) and (b), (2) (b) and (5) of the statutes, as

renumbered, are amended to read:

22.41 ADDITIONAL POWERS TO PROVIDE FACILITIES. (1) (a) ~~The term "existing"~~ "Existing building" in relation to any conveyance, lease or sublease made under sub. (2) means all administrative buildings, all storage facilities and garages, all buildings used for exhibition or promotional events for agricultural, industrial, education, recreational or athletic purposes and such other buildings, structures, facilities and permanent improvements as in the judgment of the ~~board~~ department are needed or useful ~~for the purposes of the department~~ and all equipment therefor and all improvements and additions thereto which were erected, constructed or installed prior to the making of such conveyance, lease or sublease.

(b) ~~The term "new"~~ "New building" in relation to any conveyance, lease or sublease made under sub. (2) means all administrative buildings, all storage facilities and garages, all buildings used for exhibition or promotional events for agricultural, industrial, educational, recreational or athletic purposes and such other buildings, structures, facilities and permanent improvements as in the judgment of the ~~board~~ department are needed or useful ~~for the purposes of the department~~ and all equipment therefor and all improvements and additions thereto which are erected, constructed or installed after the making of such conveyance, lease or sublease.

(2) (b) The power to lease to a corporation for a ~~term or~~ terms not exceeding 50 years each any land and any existing buildings thereon owned by or owned by the state and held for the department upon such terms and conditions as in the judgment of the ~~board~~ department are in the public interest.

(5) ~~All power and duties conferred upon the board or the department to this section shall be exercised and performed by resolution of the board. All conveyances, leases and subleases made pursuant to this section, when authorized pursuant to resolution of the board, shall be made, executed and delivered in the name of the department and shall be signed by the manager as the chief administrative officer of the department secretary.~~

SECTION 191. 27.305 (1) (d) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 192. 27.31 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 193. 28.005 of the statutes is amended to read:

28.005 "~~Commission~~" "Department" when used in this chapter without other words of description or qualification means the ~~state conservation commission~~ department of natural resources.

SECTION 194. 28.035 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

28.035 (2) The ~~commission~~ department of natural resources shall enter into an agreement with the Wisconsin department of the American Legion for hunting in the state forest lands described as lots 3, 4, 6 and 7 of section 8 and lots 2 and 3 of section 17, township 38 north, range 7 east, Oneida county, which are used in connection with Camp American Legion and which ~~said department~~ the Legion is now maintaining on this location as a restoration camp for sick and disabled veterans of World War I and World War II and their dependents.

SECTION 195. 28.05 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

28.05 (2) Sales out of cut products or stumpage having an estimated value of \$500 or more shall be by public sale after publication of a class 2 notice ~~published~~ under ch. 985, in the county wherein the timber to be sold is located. Sales with a value of \$1,000 or more shall require approval by the ~~conservation director~~ secretary.

SECTION 196. 28.06 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

28.06 (5) Any person who uses planting stock which he knows was

CHAPTER 276

758

produced in state forest nurseries for any purpose other than those specified in sub. (2) or for ornamental or landscape planting shall forfeit for each violation not more than \$1,000. ~~Such forfeiture shall be enforced by the~~ *The attorney general, upon report of any violation made to him by the conservation director secretary, shall enforce said forfeiture.*

SECTION 197. 28.11 (6) (b) 1 of the statutes is amended to read:

28.11 (6) (b) 1. Any timber sale in excess of \$500 shall be by sealed bid or public auction after publication of notice of sale in a newspaper having general circulation in the county. Timber sales with an estimated value below \$500 may be made without prior advertising. Any sale with an estimated value exceeding \$2,500 requires approval of the ~~conservation director secretary.~~

SECTION 198. 29.01 (9) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 199. 29.04 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

29.04 (2) Whenever the ~~commission shall determine~~ *department determines* that the conservation of any species or variety of wild animals will be promoted thereby, the ~~commission department~~ may maintain and repair any dam located wholly upon lands the title to which is in the state either as proprietor or in trust for the people; ~~subject, however, to the powers of the public service commission to fix after giving due consideration to fixing the level and regulate~~ *regulating* the flow of the public waters.

SECTION 200. 29.05 (9) of the statutes is amended to read:

29.05 (9) ~~Each commissioner~~ *Members of the natural resources board,* and each ~~deputy conservation~~ warden, in the performance of his official duties, shall be exempt from any and all liability to any person for acts done or permitted or property destroyed by authority of law. In any action brought against ~~the commissioner~~ *any board member* or warden involving any official action the district attorney of the county in which the action is commenced shall represent such ~~commissioner~~ *board member* or warden. No taxable costs or attorney fees shall be allowed to either party in said action.

SECTION 201. 29.06 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

29.06 (1) All confiscated wild animals, or carcasses or parts thereof, and all confiscated apparatus, appliances or devices shall, if not destroyed as authorized by law, be sold at the highest price obtainable, by the ~~commission department~~ or its ~~deputies~~ *wardens*, or by an agent on commission under the written authority and supervision of the ~~commission or its deputies department.~~ The net proceeds of such sales, after deducting the expense of seizure and sale and any such commissions, shall be promptly remitted by the warden by whom or under whose authority and supervision the sales are made, to the ~~commission department;~~ the remittance to be accompanied by a complete and certified report of such sales, supported by proper vouchers covering all deductions made for expenses and commissions, to be filed ~~in the office of the commission~~ *with the department.* Of the remittance from such sales or confiscated apparatus, appliances or devices, 18% shall be paid into the conservation fund to reimburse it for expenses incurred in seizure and sale, and the remaining 82% shall be paid into the common school fund. In the case of the proceeds from the sale of a confiscated motor vehicle if the holder of a security interest perfected by filing with such motor vehicles as security, satisfies (and the burden of proof shall be upon him) the court, or after judgment of confiscation, the ~~commission department,~~ that the violation that led to such confiscation was not with his knowledge, consent or connivance or with that of some person employed or trusted by him, there shall also be deducted the amount due under the security agreement from the proceeds of such sale and the amount due shall be paid to the one

entitled; in case a sufficient amount does not remain for such purpose after the other deductions then the amount remaining shall be paid. The ~~commission~~ department shall make a reasonable effort within 10 days after seizure to ascertain if a security interest in the seized motor vehicle exists, and shall within 10 days after obtaining actual or constructive notice of such security interest give the secured party notice of the time and place when there is to be any proceeding before the court or the judge pertaining to such confiscation and shall also give such secured party at least 10 days' notice of the time and place of sale. Constructive notice shall be limited to security interests perfected by filing. In all such cases the time of sale of the confiscated motor vehicle shall be within 20 days after judgment of confiscation provided in s. 29.05 (7).

SECTION 202. 29.07 of the statutes is amended to read:

29.07 All sheriffs, deputy sheriffs, coroners, and other police officers are ex officio deputy conservation wardens, and shall assist the ~~commission~~ department and its ~~deputies~~ wardens in the enforcement of this chapter whenever notice of a violation thereof is given to either of them by the ~~commission~~ department or its ~~deputies~~ wardens.

SECTION 203. 29.08 (1) and (4) of the statutes are amended to read:

29.08 (1) Whenever ~~and so long as~~ any other state confers upon the officers of this state reciprocal powers, any officer of such other state, who is by the laws of ~~said that~~ state authorized or directed to enforce the laws of ~~said that~~ state relating to the protection of wild animals, is hereby designated an agent of ~~said that~~ state within this state. It shall be lawful for said officer to follow any wild animal, or carcass or part thereof unlawfully shipped or taken from his state into this state, seize and convey the same back to his own state; and so far as concerns any such wild animal, or carcass or part thereof, the laws of the state from which the same was brought into this state are hereby adopted as the laws of this state. Transportation companies shall deliver to such officer, upon submission of proper proof of his official capacity, any wild animal, or carcass or part thereof, so demanded or seized by him. Said officer may dispose of any such wild animal, or carcass or part thereof, within this state, in accordance with the laws of the state from which the same was taken or shipped, under the supervision of ~~any conservation commissioner or deputy conservation warden of this state,~~ whose expenses the department or its wardens. Expenses for his such assistance shall be a lien upon such wild animal or carcass or part thereof, or the proceeds thereof.

(4) Whenever and so long as any other state confers upon the officers of this state reciprocal powers, the commission may appoint persons who shall have been appointed game wardens or deputy game wardens of such other state to act as and have all the powers of ~~deputy conservation wardens~~ of this state, but without compensation from this state.

SECTION 204. 29.09 (9) of the statutes is amended to read:

29.09 (9) After proper application and presentation of a current hunting license duly issued to the applicant, the ~~conservation director~~ secretary may, after due investigation and without cost, grant a special permit to any person who is unable to walk because of any affliction whatsoever, to shoot or hunt from a standing automobile or to leave decoys in the water in front of his own property unattended, notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter to the contrary.

SECTION 205. 29.137 (5m) of the statutes is amended to read:

29.137 (5m) Each licensee shall keep a correct and complete book record in the English language of all transactions in the production, buying and selling of bait carried on by him, except that retail sales to consumers need not be recorded. This record shall show the name and post-office address from whom bait was purchased and to whom sold, together

CHAPTER 276

760

with the date of each transaction and the value of such bait. This record shall be open to the inspection of the ~~commission and its agents and deputies~~ *department and its wardens* at all reasonable hours. The record shall be kept intact for a period of 2 years after the expiration of any license issued under this section, as to all transactions carried on while such license was effective.

SECTION 206. 29.14 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

29.14 (2) Any nonresident over the age of 16 years shall have the right to take, catch or kill fish, or fish for fish with hook and line or with rod and reel in the waters of this state, except in outlying waters, only if a license has been duly issued to him, subject to s. 29.09, by the ~~commission~~ *department* and by the county clerk. The fee for each such license entitling the holder to take, catch or kill fish is \$6 and all such licenses shall be effective only from January 1 until the next succeeding December 31. A combination fishing license may be issued to a nonresident husband and wife, to be effective for a period of 15 days, for the sum of \$7. The ~~commission~~ *department* may cause such licenses to be issued through agents for a compensation of 30 cents for each such license; but no such compensation shall be paid to any of its ~~regular deputies~~ *wardens* or other employes.

SECTION 207. 29.174 (4a) of the statutes is amended to read:

29.174 (4a) The ~~conservation director~~ *secretary* may make emergency rules pursuant to s. 227.027.

SECTION 208. 29.225 (2), (3) and (6) of the statutes are amended to read:

29.225 (2) The ~~commission, conservation director or any authorized agent or deputy of the commission~~ *department* shall issue a certificate of satisfactory completion of the courses of instruction required herein to any person entitled thereto. The form and content of the certificate shall be as prescribed by the ~~commission~~ *department*.

(3) The chief officer of the law enforcement ~~division~~ *function* of the ~~commission~~ *department* shall be the ~~commission's~~ *department's* authorized agent to administer, supervise, and enforce this section. The ~~commission~~ *department* shall appoint a qualified person from the law enforcement ~~division~~ *function*, under the classified service, as supervisor of hunting safety and shall prescribe his duties and responsibilities. The ~~commission~~ shall provide the law enforcement agency with such assistance and clerical help as the ~~commission~~ determines necessary. The ~~commission~~ *department* may appoint one or more county directors of hunting safety in each county of the state. Such county director shall be responsible to the ~~division of law enforcement~~ *department*, and shall serve on a voluntary basis without compensation. The supervisor of the law enforcement ~~division~~ *function* may appoint such instructors as ~~may be~~ *are* necessary to carry out the purposes hereof.

(6) The ~~commission~~ *department* shall procure insurance against all liability incurred by it or any of its ~~members, officers, directors, supervisors, agents~~ *wardens* or employes or by any such county supervisors, county directors and instructors, by reason of any claim for bodily injury, death or property damage made against the ~~commission or any of its members, officers, directors, supervisors, agents,~~ *department or any of its wardens or employes* or against such county directors, county supervisors and instructors, by reason of the performance of their duties in connection with carrying out this section. Such policy of insurance shall contain a waiver of governmental immunity, and such immunity shall not be raised as a defense by the insured, the state, the city, the school district or the county.

SECTION 209. 29.29 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

29.29 (4) No person shall cast, deposit, throw overboard, dust, spray,

diffuse or otherwise disperse any toxic insecticide in any form either by hand or from any apparatus, airplane, boat, vessel, craft, automobile or other equipment in forest and noncrop areas in amounts sufficient to be of possible danger to the health of persons or wild animals. The amounts of the various types of insecticides which may be dangerous shall be established by rules and regulations issued jointly by the ~~conservation commission~~, the department of agriculture. The ~~conservation commission department of natural resources~~, upon recommendation of the department of agriculture and the department of resource development, is authorized to, *may* issue permits for use of larger amounts where it is established that no serious hazards are involved or for experimental purposes.

SECTION 210. 29.33 (2) (a) 1 of the statutes is amended to read:

29.33 (2) (a) 1. For fishing with set hook lines or nets, with or without a boat not exceeding 16 feet in ~~over-all~~ overall length, \$16 per year. Any person using more than a single crew consisting of not to exceed 4 men in fishing *with* nets or hooks under the ice shall secure a license for each such crew. The ~~conservation director department~~, upon proper application therefor, shall issue with each license to fish with nets or set hook lines under the ice 4 identification cards bearing the number of the license and the year for which issued. Each member of a single crew engaged in the setting, lifting or pulling of nets, set hook lines or other devices set under the ice under authority of said license shall carry such card on his person while so engaged and upon demand of any conservation officer shall exhibit such card. Minnow seines and dip nets used for taking smelt and minnows are exempt from this subdivision.

SECTION 211. 29.51 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

29.51 (5) No employe of the ~~commission department~~, and no other person, while engaged in catching wild fish from the public waters for purposes of artificial propagation, shall take or have in his possession or under his control any kind of fish other than those he has been directed, by the ~~commission or its deputy or agent department~~, to take therefrom.

SECTION 212. 29.544 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

29.544 (2) POWERS OF THE DEPARTMENT. (a) The ~~commission department~~ may establish such rules governing the harvest, use and disposition of wild rice growing in the navigable lakes of the state as it deems reasonably necessary for the conservation and wise use thereof. The ~~conservation director secretary~~ may designate the opening date for harvesting wild rice in any navigable lake or stream by posting notice of such opening date on the shores of and at places of public access to such lake at least 48 hours before such opening date. Such posting is deemed sufficient notice of such opening date and no other publication thereof is required.

(b) The ~~commission and the conservation director department~~ shall obtain the advice and recommendations of the tribal council before establishing any rules governing the harvest, use and disposition of wild rice growing within the bounds of ~~the~~ an Indian reservation.

SECTION 213. 29.545 of the statutes is amended to read:

29.545 No person shall cut, harvest or remove wild rice, wild celery, sago or other aquatic plants of any variety whatsoever from Lakes Partridge Crop, Poygan, Winneconne, Big Lake Butte des Morts, and the Wolf river from the mouth of the Rat river to its outlet from Big Lake Butte des Morts, and the Fox river from its junction with the Wolf river to where it empties into Lake Winnebago except that such growth of aquatic plants of any variety may be cut, removed or controlled in any portion of the above named waters on authorization from the ~~commission~~ if the department of resource development *if the department* determines that they constitute a menace to public health, or by authorization from the ~~commission de-~~

CHAPTER 276

762

partment to such extent and during such periods of the time as the ~~commission~~ *may department*, with or without public hearing, ~~determine~~ *determines* that any such aquatic plants either are not reasonably necessary for propagation of fish or wildlife or that property or esthetic values are unreasonably impaired, provided that such cutting or other control activities are conducted in compliance with the rules of the ~~public service commission~~ *department* so as not to create an obstacle or hazard to navigation. Such cutting, removing, controlling or harvesting of aquatic plants in the above named waters shall be done only by persons after obtaining from the ~~commission~~ *department* a written permit therefor, which shall be issued without charge.

SECTION 214. 29.585 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

29.585 (2) (a) ~~The term "wildlife~~ "Wildlife exhibit" shall does not include the exhibition of any live wild animal by any educational institution, state department, public zoo ~~or~~, park or garden, circus or theatrical exhibition or any such exhibition sponsored by any organization with the approval of the ~~conservation director~~ *department*.

SECTION 215. 29.60 (5) of the statutes is renumbered 29.60 and 29.60 (3), as renumbered, is amended to read:

29.60 (3) Nothing in this chapter shall prevent the ~~commission~~ *department* or its ~~deputies~~ *wardens* from using dynamite or having dynamite in possession near beaver houses or dams for the purpose of removing beaver dams when the beavers are causing damage to property owners, nor ~~shall it be~~ *is it* unlawful for any person to use poisoned baits, dynamite or poison gas under rules and regulations which shall be prescribed jointly by the ~~commission~~ *department of natural resources* and the ~~state~~ *department of agriculture*, for the destruction of injurious insects, rodents or English sparrows.

SECTION 216. 29.605 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

29.605 (1) It ~~shall be~~ *is* lawful for the ~~commission, its agents, or~~ *deputies* ~~department~~ to give, present, or turn over alive, for educational purposes, to any bona fide public zoo any predatory animal.

SECTION 217. 29.641 of the statutes is amended to read:

29.641. FALSE IMPERSONATION OF WARDEN. Any person who ~~shall falsely represent~~ *represents* himself to be a ~~deputy conservation~~ warden or who ~~shall assume~~ *assumes* to act as such without having been first duly appointed as such, shall be imprisoned not more than 6 months or fined not to exceed \$100.

SECTION 218. 29.65 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

29.65 (2) Any damages recovered in such action shall be paid into the state conservation fund and disbursed therefrom by the ~~commission~~ *department*. The costs of such action in case of a judgment in favor of the defendant shall be paid out of the conservation fund.

SECTION 219. 30.01 (7) and (8) of the statutes are created to read:

30.01 (7) "Department" means the department of natural resources.

(8) "Secretary" means the secretary of natural resources.

SECTION 220. 30.11 (5) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

30.11 (5) (a) Prior to the execution of any lease by the *board of commissioners* of the public lands of rights to submerged lands or rights to fill in submerged lands held in trust for the public under s. 24.39, the department of ~~resource development~~ *natural resources* shall determine either with or without a public hearing whether or not the proposed physical changes in the area contemplated as a result of the execution of such lease are consistent with the public interest. Thirty days before determining whether such finding should or should not be made the department of ~~resource development~~ *natural resources* shall notify in writ-

ing the clerk of the county and clerk of the city or, village or town in which such changes are contemplated, ~~the directors of the state conservation department, department of resource development, and state board~~ *the department of health and social services*, and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, of the application for the lease. In making its finding the department of ~~resource development~~ *natural resources* shall give consideration to ~~any and~~ all reports submitted to it. For leases applied for under s. 24.39 (4) (a) 2, the department of ~~resource development~~ shall not approve the lease if ~~the conservation commission objects to the~~ *it appears to threaten excessive destruction of wildlife habitat.*

SECTION 221. 30.12 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

30.12 (2) (b) A riparian owner may place a layer of sand or other similar material on the bed of a lake adjacent to his property for the purpose of improving recreational use upon obtaining approval as stated in this paragraph. An application for approval to put sand or other similar material on the bed of a lake for such purpose shall be made to the department of ~~resource development~~. Thereupon the department shall ~~notify the conservation director of such application, and the latter shall cause an inspection to be made of inspect~~ such proposal and of the location involved ~~and shall report in writing to the department of resource development whether the proposal will materially impair navigation or be inconsistent with the public interest. Thereafter the.~~ *The* department of ~~resource development~~ may disapprove such application if it finds the proposed work will materially impair navigation or be detrimental to the public interest. ~~If the department does not disapprove within 15 days after receipt of the report of the conservation director, approval is deemed granted. The applicant shall be notified by mail as to the manner of disposition of his application.~~

SECTION 222. 30.18 (5) and (8) of the statutes are amended to read:

30.18 (5) At the conclusion of the hearing, if it appears that the water to be diverted is surplus water, or if not surplus water the riparians injured by such diversion have consented thereto, the department shall so find and shall issue a permit for the diversion of such water. No new permit shall issue for diversion of water from any trout stream designated as such by the ~~conservation commission~~ *department* in publication 213-57 and subsequent ~~issues~~ *revisions* of said publication without prior written approval by the ~~conservation commission~~ *department*. The department shall determine and fix the quantity of water to be diverted and the time when such water may be diverted. When it is determined that a riparian permittee is authorized to withdraw a stated flow of water, he may use that water on any other land contiguous to his riparian land, but he may not withdraw more water than he did prior to August 1, 1957. The department of ~~resource development~~ shall annually review ~~with the conservation commission~~ all permits to divert water issued since August 1, 1957. Upon making such annual review, the department of ~~resource development~~ may revoke any permit upon finding that the withdrawal is detrimental to other riparians or to the stream or lake and shall revoke any permit issued for diversion of water from any trout stream designated as aforesaid when ~~requested~~ *it is deemed desirable* to do so for conservation purposes ~~by the conservation commission.~~

(8) STATE PERMIT. When after due examination and investigation, the ~~conservation commission~~ *department* determines it to be necessary for conservation purposes that water elevations in any navigable stream or lake be raised, the ~~commission~~ *department* may, whenever it has funds available from any source other than license fees, ~~file with the department of resource development an application for a permit under this section or ch. 31. The department of resource development shall grant such permit, and shall~~ determine and fix the elevations to which the water may be

CHAPTER 276

764

raised or maintained, but such water elevation shall in no case be fixed below the normal elevation ~~without the consent of the conservation commission~~ *except when so stated in the permit.* If any lands are damaged by the raising of the water levels above normal, pursuant to the permit, and the ~~conservation commission~~ *department* cannot acquire the right to flow such lands by agreement with the owner, it may acquire such lands or the right to flow the same by condemnation under ch. 32.

SECTION 223. 30.19 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

30.19 (3) Upon receipt of the application the department shall mail copies to the ~~conservation commission, state board~~ *department of health and social services*, clerks of the municipality and county in which the project or bodies of water affected are located, and to the other persons named in sub. (2) (e), accompanied by a statement that unless written objection is filed with the department of ~~resource development~~ *natural resources* within 30 days after the mailing of the application, the department may take action to grant the application without public hearing. If the application affects the Milwaukee river, the Menomonee river, the Kinnickinnic river, the Root river or any of the tributaries thereof, notice shall also be given to the metropolitan sewerage district of the county of Milwaukee. If timely objection is filed, the department shall set the application for public hearing. Notice of such hearing shall be given by publication and by mailing a copy of the notice, as provided in s. 31.06, to the persons named in this subsection.

SECTION 224. 30.195 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

30.195 (3) Upon application therefor, the department of ~~resource development~~ shall grant a permit to the owner of any land to change the course of or straighten a navigable stream on such land, if such change or straightening will improve the economic or aesthetic value of the owner's land and will not adversely affect the flood flow capacity of the stream or otherwise be detrimental to public rights or to the rights of other riparians located on the stream. If the department finds that the rights of such riparians will be adversely affected, it may grant the permit only with their consent. Such permit may be granted on the department's own motion after its own investigation or after public hearing and after giving prior notice of such investigation or hearing ~~to the conservation commission.~~ If the ~~conservation commission~~ requests a public hearing, the department of ~~resource development~~ shall not act on the application for the permit until such hearing has been held.

SECTION 225. 30.22 (1) to (3) and 30.23 of the statutes are renumbered 14.78 (1) to (4), respectively, and 14.78 (1) and (2) (d), as renumbered, are amended to read:

14.78 (1) ~~Two members to be appointed by the governor are hereby added to the Wisconsin~~ *There is created a Great Lakes compact commission created by ch. 275, laws of 1955, so that the commission will consist consisting of 5 commissioners appointed by the governor.* The commissioners shall be persons having knowledge of and interest in problems of the Great Lakes basin. One commissioner, appointed for an indefinite term, shall be a state officer or employe and shall serve as secretary of the Great Lakes compact commission. ~~With respect to the terms of the other 4 commissioners, the 2 appointed prior to 1959 shall serve terms which expire on June 30, 1957 and June 30, 1959, respectively, and the 2 commissioners added to the commission by this section shall be appointed for terms expiring on June 30, 1961 and June 30, 1963, respectively; thereafter, appointments~~ *The other commissioners shall be appointed for terms of 4 years.* The commissioners shall receive no salaries but shall be reimbursed for actual and necessary expenses.

(2) (d) To report annually ~~to the governor and biennially to the legislature~~ *in accordance with s. 15.04 (4), and to make such other reports*

as are requested by the governor or which it deems appropriate.

SECTION 226. 30.251 (3) (g) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 227. 30.50 (6) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 228. 31.02 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

31.02 (5) The department of resource development shall give written notice to the public service commission of any hearing under this chapter involving public utilities and similar notice to the conservation commission of any hearing under this chapter involving conservation interests.

SECTION 229. 31.02 (6) (intro.) and (a) of the statutes are renumbered 31.02 (6) and amended to read:

31.02 (6) The department shall have the following duties: (a) The operation, repair and maintenance of operate, repair and maintain the dams and dykes constructed across drainage ditches and streams in drainage districts, in the interest of drainage control, water conservation, irrigation, conservation, pisciculture and to provide areas suitable for the nesting and breeding of aquatic wild bird life and the propagation of fur-bearing animals.

SECTION 230. 31.02 (6) (b) of the statutes is renumbered 31.36 (4) and amended to read:

31.36 (4) The construction, strengthening and maintenance of department shall construct, strengthen and maintain the Portage levee in such manner as will best protect the vicinity from the overflow of the Wisconsin river.

SECTION 231. 31.15 to 31.17 of the statutes are renumbered 196.91 to 196.93, respectively.

SECTION 232. 31.22 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 233. 31.185 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

31.185 (3) Upon receipt of an application for such a permit, the department shall fix a time and place for a public hearing thereon and shall give written notice of such hearing to the conservation department, the public service commission and the clerk of each municipality in which the dam and flowage are located. The department of resource development may give such additional notice as it deems necessary and may require the applicant to give notice of the hearing substantially as provided in s. 31.06 (2) with respect to hearings on applications for construction of dams.

SECTION 234. 31.27 of the statutes is renumbered 196.375.

SECTION 235. 31.30 of the statutes is amended to read:

31.30 It is declared to be the policy of the state to prohibit forever the building or maintaining of any dam or dams across the Brule river or any of its tributaries in Douglas county, except that a dam with an adequate fishway may be constructed across said Brule river at each of the 3 sites hereinafter described, or at such other site or sites as may be are selected jointly by the conservation commission and the department of resource development in place of either any or all of the sites hereinafter mentioned, the purpose of which shall be to provide a method whereby fish declared to be undesirable for said stream by the conservation commission department may be eliminated or prevented from ascending the stream, and to permit said stream to be developed for trout in different stretches thereof as may be determined by the conservation commission: site No. 1 known as Clevedon site in the southeast quarter of the northwest quarter of section 10, township 49 north, range 10 west; site No. 2 known as the Old Mill site in the northwest quarter of the southeast quarter, section 11, township 47 north, range 10 west; and site No. 3, known as the Upper or Rock dam site in the northeast quarter of the southeast quarter of section 22, township 47 north, range 10 west; and all rights,

CHAPTER 276

766

privileges, and franchises granted prior to June 26, 1905, to any person or corporation to improve said Brule river or any of its tributaries in said county for any purpose whatever, are repealed and annulled. No domestic corporation organized subsequent to ~~the~~ *such* date ~~aforsaid~~ shall exercise any of the powers or privileges authorized or conferred by ss. 180.15 to 180.18, ~~inclusive~~ ~~[Stats. 1925]~~ *stats.*, in, across or along said river or any of its tributaries in ~~the county of Douglas county.~~

SECTION 236. 31.36 (15) to (17) of the statutes are renumbered 31.36 (1) to (3).

SECTION 237. 35.85 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

35.85 (2) (a) Of parts of official reports, pamphlets and magazines, and pamphlet laws, printed by authority of ss. 35.28 and 35.29, one copy to each person named in lists filed for the purpose of such distributions by the respective state agencies upon whose requisition the same were printed except that blocks of such publications may be allotted to the requisitioning agency for official use subject to approval of the department. ~~The lists filed by the state superintendent shall designate, by counties, the matter to be distributed to schools of all kinds.~~

SECTION 238. 36.02 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

36.02 DEFINITIONS. In this chapter:

(1) "Board of regents" means the board of regents of the university of Wisconsin.

(2) "University" means the university of Wisconsin.

SECTION 239. 36.03 of the statutes is amended to read:

36.03 POWERS OF BOARD OF REGENTS; OFFICERS. (1) The board of regents and their successors in office shall constitute a body corporate by the name of "The Regents of the University of Wisconsin," and shall possess all the powers necessary or convenient to accomplish the objects and perform the duties prescribed by law, and shall have the custody of the books, records, buildings, and all other property of said university. ~~The board shall elect a president and a secretary, who shall perform such duties as may be prescribed by the bylaws of the board.~~

(2) The secretary of *the board of regents* shall keep a faithful record of all the transactions of the board of *regents* and of the executive committee thereof.

(3) The state treasurer shall have the charge of all securities for loans and all moneys belonging to the university or in any wise appropriated by law to its endowment or support; collect the interest on all securities held by him; pay out moneys only upon the warrant of the department of administration as provided by law; keep the same and the accounts thereof separate and distinct from other public funds, and particularly distinguish the accounts of every fund, according to the nature thereof, coming to his charge, whether created by law or by private bounty; and discharge these and other appropriate functions relating thereto subject to such ~~regulations~~ *rules* as the board ~~may adopt~~ *of regents adopts* not inconsistent with his official duties; ~~and he.~~ *The state treasurer* and his sureties shall be liable on his official bond as state treasurer for the faithful discharge of such duties.

SECTION 240. 36.04 of the statutes is amended to read:

36.04 MEETINGS. ~~The time for the election of the president and secretary of said board and the duration of their respective terms of office, and the times for holding the regular annual meeting and such other meetings as may be~~ *are* required, and the manner of notifying the same, shall be determined by the bylaws of the board of *regents*. ~~A majority of the board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, but a less number may adjourn.~~

SECTION 241. 36.09 of the statutes is amended to read:

36.09 ~~At the close of each biennial fiscal term the regents through their president shall make a report in detail to the governor and the legislature exhibiting~~ (1) *In its annual report under s. 15.04 (4), the board of regents shall report on the progress, condition and wants of each of the colleges embraced in the university, the course of study in each, the number of instructors and students, the amount of receipts and disbursements, together with the nature, cost and results of all important investigations and experiments and such other information as they deem important.* One copy of ~~which~~ shall be transmitted free by the secretary of state to all colleges endowed under the provisions of the act of congress entitled, "An act donating land to the several states and territories which provide colleges for the benefit of agriculture and the mechanic arts," approved July 2, 1862, and ~~also one copy~~ to the secretary of the interior as provided in said act.

(2) The board of *regents* shall also report to the governor as often as may seem desirable the important results of investigations conducted by the director of Washburn observatory and by other investigators connected with the university, and also the results of such experiments therein relating to agriculture or the mechanic arts as ~~said~~ *the board of regents* deems to be of special value to the agricultural and mechanical interests of the state. With the approval of the governor such number of copies as he shall direct, and of the Washburn observatory reports not more than 700 copies may be printed by the state printer in separate form on good paper and with such appropriate quality of binding as the department of administration shall order. Eight hundred copies of each of said reports, when so directed by the governor, except those of the Washburn observatory, shall be delivered to the legislature and the remainder to be used in exchange for the publications of other institutions and for such other public purposes as the *board of regents* ~~may order~~ *orders*.

SECTION 242. 36.216 of the statutes is amended to read:

36.216 The board of regents ~~of the university~~ may carry out the educational and administrative functions of s. 92.04, with the advice of the ~~state soil and water conservation committee~~ *board*. The *board of regents* shall make available to the ~~committee~~ *soil conservation board* such staff services as ~~may be~~ *are* necessary for the administration and ~~co-ordination~~ *coordination* of its functions.

SECTION 243. 36.225 (1) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 244. 36.225 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

36.225 (6) The ~~state~~ laboratory of hygiene shall be operated to furnish a complete laboratory service to the ~~state board~~ *department* of health and social services and the department of ~~resource development~~ *natural resources* and to make available to the university of Wisconsin, the ~~state board~~ *department* of health and social services and the department of ~~resource development~~ *natural resources* such facilities for teaching in the fields of public health and water quality as may be derived from such a laboratory.

SECTION 245. 36.225 (7) of the statutes is amended to read:

36.225 (7) For the purpose of ~~co-ordination~~ between the state board of health, the department of ~~resource development~~ and the university board of regents and for the purpose of determining policies, an administrative committee for the state laboratory of hygiene is created to be composed of the president of the university, the dean of the medical school, the director of ~~resource development~~, the president of the state board of health, the secretary of the state board of health and the director of the laboratory or their representatives. The *board of regents*, upon the recommendation of the dean of the medical school with the ~~administrative committee~~ *laboratory of*

CHAPTER 276

768

hygiene board approving, shall appoint the director of the laboratory and such other members of its professional staff as are required for the administration of the duties of the laboratory. The technical staff and other employes necessary to the ~~administration~~ *operation* of the laboratory shall be employed by the director from the eligibility rolls of the department of administration.

SECTION 246. 36.227 (6) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 247. 36.245 of the statutes is amended to read:

36.245 Moneys made available to the ~~conservation commission~~, department of ~~resource development~~ *natural resources* and the geological and natural history survey of the university of Wisconsin, respectively, by ss. 20.285 (1) and 20.370 (1) (a) and (5) (b) for a joint accelerated water resources research and data collection program shall be administered and ~~co-ordinated~~ *coordinated* by the director of the water resources center of the university of Wisconsin. No such funds shall be made available to any of the agencies specified until, on application from the state agency concerned, such director finds that such funds will be used for water resource investigations needed for the solution of existing or emerging water resource problems and that these investigations will wherever practical be ~~co-ordinated~~ *coordinated* with such investigations by other state or federal agencies and with research in progress or proposed under the sponsorship of the water resources center of the university of Wisconsin. The director shall make biennial reports thereon to the legislature at the convening thereof. In connection with his review of applications hereunder, the director of the water resources center shall seek the advice of the water subcommittee of the natural resources ~~committee~~ *council* of state agencies.

SECTION 248. 37.01 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

37.01 DEFINITION. In this chapter "board of regents" means the board of regents of state universities.

SECTION 249. 37.02 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

37.02 POWERS OF BOARD OF REGENTS. (1) The board of regents and their successors in office are constituted a body corporate by the name ~~aforsaid~~ of "*The Board of Regents of State Universities*"; and may purchase, as provided by law, have, hold, control, possess and enjoy, in trust for the state, for educational purposes solely, any lands, tenements, hereditaments, goods and chattels of any nature which may be necessary and required for the purposes, objects and uses of the state universities authorized by law and none other, ~~with~~. *The board of regents shall have full power to sell or dispose of such property as provided by law, or any part thereof when in their its judgment it is for the interest of the state, except that sales of real property shall be subject to the approval of the state building commission and. The board of regents shall possess all other powers necessary or convenient to accomplish the objects and perform the duties prescribed by law. The regents shall possess all the powers necessary or convenient to accomplish the objects and perform the duties prescribed by law.* The proceeds of the sale of any real or personal estate shall be paid by ~~them~~ *the board of regents* into the state treasury, and shall become a part of the income of the normal school fund.

SECTION 250. 37.03 of the statutes is amended to read:

37.03 TREASURER. ~~The officers of the board shall be a president, vice president and secretary; they shall severally hold their offices for the term of one year, and until their successors are elected, and shall perform the duties incident to their several offices, and such as are prescribed by the board. The state treasurer shall be, ex officio, the treasurer of the board of regents, but the board of regents may appoint suitable persons to receive any tuition fees or other moneys that may be due from any student or other person, and pay the same to the treasurer.~~

SECTION 251. 37.04 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 252. 37.06 of the statutes is amended to read:

37.06 No regent or officer, trustee or person appointed or employed in any position or capacity connected with state ~~colleges~~ *universities* shall at any time act as agent or publisher of or dealer in school books, maps or charts, ~~or~~ school library books, or school furniture or apparatus, or become interested directly or indirectly in the publication, manufacture or sale of any such as agent or otherwise, except solely as author or inventor, ~~and for~~. For a violation ~~hereof~~ of this section any regent shall be expelled from the board of *regents* by a majority vote of the board of regents; ~~provided, that the~~. The purchase and use of books and appliances written or invented by persons connected with ~~any of the schools shall~~ a state *university* is not be deemed to be prohibited.

SECTION 253. 37.08 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

37.08 STATE UNIVERSITIES' ACCOUNTS. (1) The board of regents ~~of the state colleges~~ shall cause all of the financial transactions and accounts of or relating to the several state ~~colleges~~ *universities* under ~~their~~ *its* supervision at the close of each fiscal year to be fully and thoroughly examined subject to ch. 16. The cost of such audit shall be paid from and charged against the proper appropriation for the board of state ~~college~~ regents.

SECTION 254. 37.10 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

37.10 (1) (a) The board of regents may also establish a model school for practice in connection with each state ~~college~~ *university*, except Stout state ~~college~~ and the institute of technology *university*, and shall make all the rules necessary to govern and support the same; and ~~they~~ may admit pupils to such model schools free of charge of tuition.

(b) The board of regents may enter into a contract with the school board of any district or with the handicapped children's education board of any county whereby children selected from the school district or handicapped children selected from the county may be pupils in such model school for the practical demonstration of methods of teaching and the instruction of the students enrolled in any state ~~college~~ *university*. The board of regents may determine and agree upon the due proportion of the cost of instruction and maintenance that shall be borne by the school district or county.

(c) The school district or handicapped children's education board shall receive aid on account of transportation to and from the model school under subch. II of ch. 121 for all pupils so transported.

SECTION 255. 37.11 (intro.) and (1) of the statutes are amended to read:

37.11 POWERS OF BOARD OF REGENTS AS TO STATE UNIVERSITIES. The ~~said~~ board of *regents* shall have the government and control of all the state ~~colleges~~ *universities*, and may:

(1) Make rules, regulations and bylaws for the good government and management of the ~~same~~ state *universities* and each department thereof, and adopt such designation for said ~~colleges~~ *institutions* as in the judgment of the board of *regents* best fits their functions and purposes as institutions offering the liberal arts degree while maintaining a strong teachers' training program.

SECTION 256. 37.11 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

37.11 (5) Prescribe the courses of study and the various books or works to be used in such courses and, upon completion of a curriculum for the bachelor of arts, bachelor of science, master of arts, master of science and specialist or professional degrees in education ~~to~~, may confer, with the approval of the ~~co-ordinating~~ committee under ~~s. 39.03~~ *coordinating*

CHAPTER 276

770

council for higher education, degrees and to award diplomas in testimony thereof as are usual in colleges and universities.

SECTION 257. 37.12 (title) and (2) of the statutes are amended to read:

37.12 STOUT STATE UNIVERSITY; AND DIVISION OF TECHNOLOGY.

(2) The board shall on July 1, 1959, merge the Wisconsin state college at Platteville and the institute of technology at Platteville under a single administrator, co-ordinating the educational program and the use of physical facilities. The board of regents shall maintain a division of technology at Platteville which shall be an integral part of the Wisconsin state college and institute of technology university-Platteville at which a course of instruction shall be provided which shall give students a knowledge of the science, art and practice of professional engineering with special emphasis on mining and civil engineering leading to appropriate degrees. The board of regents shall maintain a complete collection of the minerals of the lead and zinc region of Wisconsin at the such division of technology of the Wisconsin state college and institute of technology.

SECTION 258. 37.15 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 259. 37.31 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

37.31 (1) (a) All teachers in any state university shall initially be employed on probation. The employment shall be permanent, during efficiency and good behavior, after 4 years of continuous service in the state university system as a teacher. An official leave of absence shall not constitute a break in continuous service, nor shall it count toward the 4 years required to attain tenure.

(b) No teacher who has become permanently employed as herein provided shall under this section may be discharged, except for cause upon written charges. Within 30 days of receiving the written charges, such teacher may appeal the discharge by a written notice to the president of the board of regents of state colleges. The board of regents shall cause the charges to be investigated, hear the case and provide such teacher with a written statement as to their its decision. The action and decision of the board of regents in the matter shall be final. The term

(c) In this section "teachers" as used in this section includes all persons engaged in teaching as their principal occupation but shall not include any state university president or acting president in his capacity as president of any of the state universities.

SECTION 260. 37.32 and 37.33 of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 261. 38.01 of the statutes is created to read:

38.01 DEFINITION. In this chapter, unless the context requires otherwise, "board means the board of vocational, technical and adult education.

SECTION 262. 39.01 of the statutes is amended to read:

39.01 The purpose of this subchapter is to provide for the direction and co-ordination coordination of the activities of the university of Wisconsin, the state colleges universities, schools of vocational, technical and adult education and county teachers colleges by providing a permanent joint committee coordinating council for higher education to make a continuing study of the state-supported institutions of higher education under their jurisdiction and the relation thereto of the needs of the people of Wisconsin, to recommend necessary changes in programs and facilities, to provide for a single, consolidated, biennial budget request for the university of Wisconsin and the state colleges universities, and that portion of the budget request of the state board of vocational, technical and adult

education described in s. 39.03 (3) and to report the results of its studies and recommendations to the governor and the legislature.

SECTION 263. 39.02 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

39.02 DEFINITION. In this subchapter, "coordinating council" means the coordinating council for higher education.

SECTION 264. 39.05 (6) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 265. 39.05 (7) of the statutes is amended to read:

39.05 (7) The ~~state~~ building commission shall allocate from funds made available to it by s. 20.710 (2) (b) moneys adequate for all purposes which in its judgment are appropriate to the planning of the new collegiate institutions authorized by this subsection. Such allocation shall be made following completion of all actions contemplated by subs. (3), (4), ~~and (5) and (6).~~

SECTION 266. 39.20 (1), (2m), (2r) and (3) (b) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 267. 39.20 (3) (intro), (a) and (c) to (m) of the statutes are renumbered 39.11 (intro.), (1) and (4) to (13) and 39.11 (intro.), as renumbered, is amended to read:

39.11 EDUCATIONAL COMMUNICATIONS DIVISION; DUTES. (intro.) The ~~co-ordinating council, through its~~ educational communications division, shall:

SECTION 268. 39.20 (4) of the statutes is renumbered 39.09 and amended to read:

39.09 RADIO AND TELEVISION FACILITIES. (1) ~~As used in~~ *In* this ~~subsection~~ *section*, unless the context requires otherwise:

(a) "Existing building" in relation to any conveyance, lease or sublease made under ~~par. (b) sub. (2)~~ means structures in this state which in the judgment of the *coordinating* council are needed and useful for educational television purposes, and all equipment therefor and all improvements and additions thereto, which were erected, constructed or installed prior to the making of such conveyance, lease or sublease.

(b) "New building" in relation to any conveyance, lease or sublease made under ~~par. (b) sub. (2)~~ means such buildings, structures, facilities and permanent improvements as in the judgment of the *coordinating* council are needed and useful for educational radio and television purposes in connection with lands and structures in this state, and all equipment therefor or for existing buildings, and all improvements and additions thereto or to existing buildings, which are erected, constructed or installed after the making of such conveyance, lease or sublease.

(c) "Corporation" in relation to any conveyance, lease or sublease made under ~~par. (b) sub. (2)~~ means a nonstock, nonprofit corporation organized under ch. 181 or any law amendatory thereof or supplemental thereto.

(2) In order to provide new buildings and to enable the construction and financing thereof, to refinance indebtedness hereafter created by a corporation for the purpose of providing new buildings or additions or improvements thereto which are located on land owned by or owned by the state and held for the ~~co-ordinating~~ *coordinating* council for higher education or by a corporation or for any one or more of said purposes but for no other purpose unless authorized by law, the *coordinating* council has the following powers and duties:

(a) Without limitation by reason of any other provisions of the statutes, are power to sell and to convey title in fee simple to a corporation any land and any existing buildings thereon owned by or owned by the state and held for the *coordinating* council for such consideration and upon such terms and conditions as in the judgment of the *coordinating*

council are in the public interest.

(b) The power to lease to a corporation for a term or terms not exceeding 50 years each any land and any existing buildings thereon owned by or owned by the state and held for the *coordinating* council upon such terms and conditions as in the judgment of the *coordinating* council are in the public interest.

(c) The power to lease or sublease from a corporation and to make available for public use any such land and existing buildings conveyed or leased to such corporation under ~~subds. 1 and 2 pars. (a) and (b)~~ and any new buildings erected on such land or on any other land owned by such corporation, upon such terms, conditions and rentals, subject to available appropriations, as in the judgment of the *coordinating* council are in the public interest.

(d) The duty to submit the plans and specifications for all such new buildings and all conveyances, leases and subleases made under this ~~sub-section~~ *section* to the department of administration and the governor for written approval before they are finally adopted, executed and delivered.

(e) The power to pledge and assign all or any part of the revenues derived from the operation of such new buildings as security for the payment of rentals due and to become due under any lease or sublease of such new buildings under ~~subd. 3 par. (c)~~.

(f) The power to covenant and agree in any lease or sublease of such new buildings made under ~~subd. 3 par. (c)~~ to impose fees, rentals or other charges for the use and occupancy or other operation of such new buildings in an amount calculated to produce net rentals sufficient to pay the rentals due and to become due under such lease or sublease.

(g) The power to covenant and agree in any lease or sublease made under ~~subd. 3 par. (c)~~ to impose fees, rentals or other charges for the use and occupancy or other operation of existing buildings in an amount calculated to produce net rentals sufficient to pay the rentals due and to become due under such lease or sublease.

(h) The power and duty, upon receipt of notice of any assignment by a corporation of any lease or sublease made under ~~subd. 3 par. (c)~~, or of any of its rights under any such sublease, to recognize and give effect to such assignment, and to pay to the assignees thereof rentals or other payments then due or which may become due under any such lease or sublease which has been so assigned by such corporation.

(3) The state shall be liable for accrued rentals and for any other default under any lease or sublease made under ~~par. (b) 3 sub. (2) (c)~~ and may be sued therefor on contract as in other contract actions under ch. 285, except that it shall not be necessary for the lessor under any such lease or sublease or any assignee of such lessor or any person or other legal entity proceeding on behalf of such lessor to file any claim with the legislature prior to the commencement of any such action.

(4) Nothing in this ~~subsection~~ *section* empowers the *coordinating* council to incur any state debt.

(5) All laws conflicting with this ~~subsection~~ *section* are, insofar as they conflict with this ~~subsection~~ *section* and no further, superseded by this ~~subsection~~ *section*.

SECTION 269. Subchapter II (title) of chapter 39 of the statutes is amended to read:

SUBCHAPTER II.

~~COMMISSION FOR~~ HIGHER EDUCATIONAL AIDS BOARD.

SECTION 270. 39.26 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

39.26 DEFINITION. In this subchapter, "board" means the higher educational aids board.

SECTION 271. 39.27 of the statutes is amended to read:

39.27 COUNCIL ON STUDENT AID. The ~~commission shall appoint an advisory committee composed of guidance counselors from Wisconsin public and private secondary schools and financial aid officers from public and private institutions of higher education to~~ *council on student aid shall advise the commission board on methods of identifying scholastically talented high school graduates. The committee council also shall advise the commission board on all matters pertaining to the operation, administration and improvement of the state's student financial aid program programs. All advisory committee members who are not employes of state agencies shall be reimbursed for their actual and necessary expenses while attending committee meetings. Advisory committee members who are employes of state agencies shall be reimbursed for their actual and necessary expenses by their employing state agencies.*

SECTION 272. 39.28 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

39.28 (3) ~~The commission~~ *In its annual report under s. 15.04(4), the board also shall make an annual report to the legislature and governor containing the status of present financial aid programs and including include recommendations for improvement of the state's student financial aid program programs.*

SECTION 273. 39.32 (1) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 274. 39.32 (2) to (6) of the statutes are renumbered 39.32 (1) to (5), respectively.

SECTION 275. Chapter 41 of the statutes, except 41.13 (1) and (2) and 41.14 (3), is renumbered chapter 38, and 38.13 (3), 38.155 (15), 38.19 (1) (a) and (2) and 38.21 (1) (a), as renumbered, are amended to read:

38.13 (3) The board shall have control over all state aid given to schools established under ss. ~~41.15 and 41.155; shall meet quarterly and at such other times as are found necessary; shall elect its own officers; shall report biennially~~ 38.15 and 38.155; may employ a director and assistants for the development and supervision of such schools, and shall determine the organization, plans, scope and development of vocational, technical and adult education. All salary accounts shall be certified by the director of the board to the department of administration. All positions except that of director shall come under the classified service.

38.155 (15) The *district* board may furnish teaching services, staff, supervision and administration and equipment for the purpose of conducting instruction in other areas within the state upon the request of the institution or municipality or school district desiring the same and with the approval of the board, if any, of such municipality or school district, upon such reimbursement basis as shall be agreed upon. Every county, town, city, village and school district, and their respective governing boards are empowered to appropriate money to be paid to district boards which render services to such town, city, village or school district.

38.19 (1) (a) The local board of vocational and adult education may charge tuition for nonresident students in an amount sufficient to pay instructional costs of providing training to such persons. Such charges shall be reviewed and, if found to be accurate, approved by the ~~state director of vocational, technical and adult education~~ *the board.*

(2) Before August 1 of each year, the secretary of each local board of vocational and adult education shall file with the clerk of each county and municipality from which any tuition pupil was admitted, except as provided in sub. (6), a sworn statement setting forth the residence, name, age, date of entrance and the total tuition charge for courses approved by the ~~state director of vocational, technical and adult education~~ *the board.* Within 10 days after the receipt of such statement the clerk of each municipality shall return the same to the county clerk with his certification as to the

CHAPTER 276

774

correctness of the statement, or indicating in what respects he believes such statement to be incorrect, together with all necessary factual information in support of such belief. Nothing in this subsection shall apply to tuition for any pupil who has reached 21 years of age.

38.21 (1) (a) On or before a date designated in each year by the ~~state~~ director of *the board* of vocational, technical and adult education the secretary of the local board of vocational and adult education maintaining such a school or schools shall report to the ~~state~~ board the cost of maintaining the same; the character of the work done; the number, names, and qualifications of the teachers employed; and such other information as may be required by the ~~state~~ board.

SECTION 276. 41.13 (1) and (2) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 277. 41.14 (3) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 278. 43.09 (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

43.09 (intro.) ~~There shall be a program administered within the department of public instruction through an administrative~~ *The division for library services shall administer a program* for the extension and improvement of library services throughout the state in order to bring within the reach of all the people of the state increased opportunities for reading, study and free inquiry. Such a program of library services shall have these objectives:

SECTION 279. 43.10 (1) (a) and (2) (intro.) of the statutes are amended to read:

43.10 (1) (a) Appoint under the classified service a professionally trained and suitably qualified library administrator as assistant *state* superintendent who shall serve as ~~director~~ *administrator* of ~~a~~ *the* division for library services under his supervision.

(2) (intro.) ~~The assistant superintendent for library services division shall administer the following services:~~

SECTION 280. 43.10 (1) (b) and (2) (d) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 281. 43.11 (1) and (3) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 282. 43.11 (2) of the statutes is renumbered 43.11 and 43.11 (intro.), as renumbered, is amended to read:

43.11 COUNCIL ON LIBRARY DEVELOPMENT. The council on *library development* shall advise the ~~governor and state~~ superintendent of public instruction with regard to:

SECTION 283. 43.12 (1), (4) (d), (5) and (7) of the statutes are amended to read:

43.12 (1) ~~The assistant superintendent division~~ for library services, hereinafter referred to as "director", shall issue certificates to librarians and fix and publish necessary standards for public librarians and public libraries in accordance with s. 43.10 (1). The qualifications for public librarians shall be based on education, professional training, and experience. Standards for public libraries shall be based on the population served, adequacy of the building and physical facilities, the quality and number of personnel, book resources and other library materials, financial support, and upon such other standards as are found necessary to insure adequate library service. Certificates already granted shall remain in ~~full force and effect~~.

(4) (d) Grade 4: Requiring high school graduation, and including such additional requirements as shall satisfy the ~~director~~ *division* that the applicant is able to do successful library work in the position to which such library certificate makes such applicant eligible.

(5) Whenever any applicant for a library certificate does not have the academic and library school training prescribed in sub. (4), the ~~director~~ *division* may issue to said applicant a certificate of any grade if ~~he~~ *satisfies*

himself satisfied by examination or otherwise that the applicant has attainments substantially the equivalent of such prescribed education and training and that all other conditions are met.

(7) The ~~director~~ *division* may issue to any person who has the required academic and library training qualifications but lacks the required library experience, a license to engage in certain library work for not to exceed one year. If at the end of the year for which such license is issued, the ~~director~~ *division* is satisfied that said person has done successful library work during said year, ~~he~~ it may renew such license from year to year for such additional time as is required to qualify for the library certificate desired.

SECTION 284. 43.13 (1) and (2) of the statutes are amended to read:

43.13 (1) The ~~director~~ *division for library services* may advise any municipal library board or the governing body of any regional system of libraries, so far as practicable in the conduct of its work.

(2) Within 30 days after the conclusion of the fiscal year of the municipality, the ~~said~~ library board shall make an annual report for the year. Such report shall be submitted to the ~~Wisconsin~~ *director division* and shall state the condition of the trust; the various sums of money received from the library fund and all other sources, and how much money has been expended; the number of books and periodicals on hand, the number added during the year, the number lost or missing, the number of books loaned out, and the general character of such books, ~~with;~~ *and* such other statistics, information and suggestions as they deem of general interest. The ~~said~~ library board shall also include in the ~~said~~ annual report the names of the directors whose terms expire at the time the report is made.

SECTION 285. 43.14 of the statutes is amended to read:

43.14 The ~~director~~ *division for library services* shall ascertain which public libraries in this state, including the libraries of public or private colleges, can suitably care for and advantageously use copies of the public documents printed at the expense of this state including printing under ss. 35.28 and 35.29. The ~~director~~ *division* shall designate such libraries as depositories of state documents. ~~The director~~ *and* shall furnish lists of such depositories under s. 35.85 (2) (b). Such lists shall show, for each depository library, the number of copies of each printed state document it is to receive.

SECTION 286. 43.24 (8) of the statutes is amended to read:

43.24 (8) Lists of approved bookbinding firms as provided for in this section shall be distributed to teachers, principals, and superintendents between ~~the first day of March 1 and the first day of May 1~~ each year, in such manner as other publications are distributed from the ~~office of the state superintendent department of public instruction.~~

SECTION 287. 43.255 (7) of the statutes is amended to read:

43.255 (7) The county library committee shall make annual progress reports to the *division for library services* ~~division.~~

SECTION 288. 43.60 (1), (2), (3), (4) (intro.), (f), (g) and (h) and (5) (c) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 289. 43.60 (4) (a) and (b) of the statutes are consolidated, renumbered 39.11 (2) and amended to read:

39.11 (2) ~~To plan~~ *Plan*, construct and develop a state system of radio broadcasting for the presentation of educational, informational and public service programs. ~~To and~~ formulate policies regulating the operation of such a state system.

SECTION 290. 43.60 (4) (c), (d) and (e) of the statutes are renumbered 39.11 (14), (15) and (3), respectively, and amended to read:

39.11 (3) ~~To protect~~ *Protect* the public interest in educational tele-

CHAPTER 276

776

vision by making application to the federal communications commission for educational television channels reserved for Wisconsin, and to take such action as is necessary to preserve such channels to Wisconsin for educational use.

(14) ~~To co-ordinate~~ *Coordinate* the radio activities of the various educational and informational agencies, civic groups, and citizens having contributions to make to the public interest and welfare.

(15) ~~To manage~~ *Manage*, operate, and maintain broadcasting station WLBL.

SECTION 291. 43.60 (5) (a) and (b) of the statutes are renumbered 39.13 (1) and (2) and amended to read:

39.13 DIVISIONAL STAFF. (1) ~~An executive director who shall be chosen by the council shall hold office during the pleasure of the council. He~~ *The educational communications board shall appoint the administrator of the educational communications division outside the classified service. The administrator shall co-ordinate coordinate* the activities and execute the program and orders of the ~~council division~~, maintain liaison with the various federal and state agencies interested in the system of state radio and television broadcasting and shall exercise such further powers, functions and duties as the ~~council may prescribe~~ *board prescribes*.

(2) The *coordinating council* may employ such *other help* as it deems necessary for the *division* to carry out the ~~purpose of this section~~ *its statutory purposes*.

SECTION 292. 44.01 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 293. 44.01 (3) and (4) of the statutes are created to read:

44.01 (3) The governor, secretary of state and state treasurer shall be ex officio members of the board of curators and shall insure that the interests of the state are protected.

(4) The historical society's acceptance of any benefits granted it by law shall be conclusively deemed its complete acquiescence in all laws enacted concerning the organization and operation of the society.

SECTION 294. 44.015 of the statutes is created to read:

44.015 POWERS. The historical society may:

(1) Acquire real or personal property by gift, bequest or otherwise in any amount and may operate, manage, sell, rent or convey real estate acquired by gift, bequest, foreclosure or other means, upon such terms and conditions as the board of curators deems for its interests but may not sell, mortgage, transfer or dispose of in any manner or remove from its buildings, except for temporary purposes, any article therein without authority of law.

(2) Sell, exchange or otherwise dispose of duplicate books, periodicals or museum objects, or books, periodicals and museum objects outside its field of collection.

(3) Accept collections of private manuscripts, printed materials, tapes, films and artifacts, and it may enforce any and all reasonable restrictions on accessibility to the public, use or duplication of said collections which are agreed upon by the donor and the historical society.

(4) Take proper steps to promote the study of history by lectures, and diffuse and publish information relating to the description and history of the state.

SECTION 295. 44.02 (13) to (15) of the statutes are created to read:

44.02 (13) To faithfully expend and apply all money received to the fulfillment of its duties and purposes as directed by law.

(14) To hold all its present and future property for the state.

(15) To promote a wider appreciation of the American heritage with

particular emphasis on the collection, advancement and dissemination of knowledge of the history of Wisconsin and of the West.

SECTION 296. 44.03 (1) and (3) of the statutes are amended to read:

44.03 (1) County or local historical societies without capital stock may be incorporated as affiliates of the ~~state~~ historical society, to gather and preserve the books, documents and artifacts relating to the history of their region or locality. No fees shall be charged by any register of deeds for recording nor by the secretary of state for filing the articles of organization or its amendments, or for a certificate of incorporation of any such society, but the secretary of state shall not accept articles of incorporation under this section unless they are approved by the board of curators of the ~~state~~ historical society.

(3) Every affiliated society shall make a report of its work annually to the ~~state~~ historical society, which, in its entirety or in part, may be included in the publications of the ~~state~~ historical society, and upon application of any affiliated society the ~~state~~ historical society may accept, in behalf of the state, custody of or title to the property, records and collections of the affiliated society or may assist in the disposal thereof. If any affiliated society becomes, in the opinion of the board of curators of the ~~state~~ historical society, inactive or defunct, title to such property, records and collections not otherwise provided for in the grants of donors or in the articles of incorporation of the inactive and defunct society, shall vest in the ~~state~~ historical society which shall take appropriate action in the public interest for the protection or disposal of such property, records and collections. Preference in disposition shall be given to historical or related organizations in the area or to whatever county or local governmental unit that has aided such affiliate financially.

SECTION 297. 44.09 of the statutes is amended to read:

44.09 The proper officer of any county, city, village, town, school district or other local governmental unit may offer, and the ~~state~~ historical society may accept for preservation, title to such noncurrent records as in the ~~state~~ historical society's judgment are of permanent historical value and which are no longer needed for administrative purposes by such local governmental unit. The proper officer of any court may offer, and the ~~state~~ historical society may accept for preservation, on order of the judge of the ~~said~~ court, title to such records as have been photographed or microphotographed or which have been on file for at least 75 years, and which are deemed by ~~said~~ the historical society to be of permanent historical value.

SECTION 298. 44.15 of the statutes is amended to read:

44.15 HISTORICAL MARKERS COUNCIL. (1) It is declared to be in the public interest to stimulate interest in and knowledge of the state by marking sites of special historical, archaeological, geological or legendary significance, and maintaining and developing such sites approximately so as to preserve their individual characteristics. It is the purpose of this section to accomplish such marking, maintenance and development. ~~To that end, there is created a through the historical markers commission, consisting of the director of the state historical society who shall be secretary, the state superintendent of public instruction, the chairman of the state highway commission, the conservation director and the director of the planning function in the department of resource development council. In addition to any that may be powers specifically enumerated, the commission council shall have all powers necessary to perform its duties. It shall meet in Madison in January each year, when it shall elect a chairman, and may hold special meetings at any time or place on call of the chairman or secretary. A member may be represented at such meetings by a representative whom he shall designate in writing.~~

(2) The ~~commission~~ council shall plan, develop and publicize a

uniform official system of marking for state historical, archaeological, geological and legendary sites. Such sites shall be marked with markers of standard design, selected and approved by the ~~commission~~ *council*, which shall be displayed at each site with an inscription setting forth the facts of particular interest. Such standard design markers shall not be used to mark sites other than those designated by the ~~commission~~ *council*, or other sites approved by it in writing, and then subject to such conditions as the ~~commission~~ *may deem council deems* appropriate. The ~~commission~~ *council* may cause the removal of any such markers not so used.

(3) The ~~commission~~ *council* may accept gifts, appropriations and bequests made to it for the purposes of this section and use them as far as practicable in accordance with the wishes of the donor. All money so received shall promptly be paid into the state treasury and be paid out on order of the ~~commission~~ *council*. The expenditures thereof shall be audited and paid as other disbursements by the state treasury are audited and paid. The ~~commission~~ *council* may accept the aid, support, and ~~co-operation~~ *cooperation* of county, city, village or town agencies, or private agencies or persons in executing its projects. All state ~~boards, commissions, departments, independent agencies~~ and institutions are directed to ~~co-operate~~ *cooperate* with it in the performance of its duties. Applicable laws shall be liberally construed in favor of such ~~co-operation~~ *cooperation*.

SECTION 299. 45.04 of the statutes is amended to read:

45.04 To carry out the purposes of ss. 45.01 to 45.04, the ~~department secretary~~ of veterans affairs shall appoint, *with the approval of the board of veteran affairs*, a superintendent of the memorial hall for a term of 4 years outside the classified service, ~~and such other persons under the classified service necessary for the proper conduct of the memorial hall.~~

SECTION 300. 45.35 (2) and (3) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 301. 45.35 (2) of the statutes is created to read:

45.35 (2) DEFINITION. In this chapter "board" means board of veterans affairs.

SECTION 302. 45.35 (4) and (5) of the statutes are renumbered 45.35 (3) and (4) and amended to read:

45.35 (3) The functions of the board shall be ~~policy forming~~. It shall elect one of its members ~~chairman and one secretary~~. The board may prescribe rules ~~governing its procedure~~ necessary to carry out the purposes of this chapter and the powers and duties conferred upon them. The records and files of the ~~adjutant general~~ *department of military affairs* and of any other state department or officer shall, upon request, be made available to the board.

(4) The administrative functions of the department shall be in charge of a director appointed by the governor by and with the consent of the senate for an indefinite term outside the classified service. The director ~~secretary~~ shall appoint under the classified service such persons as may be ~~are~~ necessary to carry out the policy of the board and shall designate a suitable person in the employ of the department as his deputy to act in his name during the absence or disability of the director. The appointment of a person as deputy pursuant to this subsection shall not affect such person's status under the classified civil service, but for each month that such person serves as deputy he shall receive additional compensation not to exceed \$75. He shall also appoint with the approval of the board a superintendent of memorial hall pursuant to s. 55.05 and for the proper conduct of the memorial hall. All such persons appointed by the department shall, ~~insofar as may be~~ if possible, be veterans as defined in sub. (5a) (5) and preference shall be given to disabled veterans.

SECTION 303. 45.35 (5a) and (5b) of the statutes are renumbered 45.35

(5) and (5m).

SECTION 304. 45.35 (11) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 305. 45.37 (9) of the statutes is amended to read:

45.37 (9) Each member of the home, regardless of the date of his admission, shall pay the following portions of his monthly income into the general fund of the state. If husband and wife are both members their incomes shall be combined before applying the rates.

Income Brackets	Rates
1st \$10	none
2nd \$10	none
3rd \$10	40%
4th \$10	50%
5th \$10	60%
6th \$10	70%
7th \$10	75%
All remaining income	100%

Payments of the amounts indicated above shall be made at such time and in such amounts as the board of the department provides by rule. Payments of these amounts shall be made first and to the fullest extent possible from sources of income other than pension or compensation paid by the veterans administration. The department may remit not to exceed \$10 monthly from the payments required of each married veteran for the personal use of his wife while she is a member of the home. The department may remit such sums monthly as it deems necessary for the care of nonmember dependents of a member. "Income" as used in this section, means money, property or anything of monetary value received from any source to which a member may become entitled subsequent to admission, to include, without limitation by reason of enumeration, all pensions from state, federal or private sources, annuities, social security payments, railroad retirement, public or private retirement, compensation, wages, salary, alimony, rents, interest, dividends, profits, return on investment, moneys received for loss, damage or injury, awards, gifts, devises, bequests and hereditaments, and insurance benefits but shall not include wages, salary or payment to a member for services rendered to the home as an employe thereof or income received by a member from the sale of products through the hobby shop. The operation of the home exchange including the operation of the hobby shop for the sale of products made by all members shall be conducted under the supervision of the department and the members of the home participating in the work of the home exchange may be reimbursed ~~according to the pay plan of the bureau of personnel.~~

SECTION 306. 45.60 (2), (3) and (5) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 307. 45.60 (4) of the statutes is renumbered 45.60 (2) and amended to read:

45.60 (2) ~~The function of the commission shall be policy forming.~~ *The veterans memorial council* may approve, recommend and veto any proposed plans, modifications and changes or policies with respect to established state memorials, including the Camp Randall memorial park, Madison, Wisconsin, as described in chapter 28, laws of 1913, and any future veterans state memorials; and recommend the creation and establishment of veterans state memorials.

SECTION 308. 45.60 (6) of the statutes is renumbered 45.60 (3).

SECTION 309. 46.70 of the statutes is renumbered 23.30 and amended to read:

23.30 The department of *natural resources* may establish and operate youth conservation camps for boys ~~in co-operation with the conservation commission.~~ The camps shall be operated during summers in areas suitable for constructive employment in conservation projects, and boys

employed shall be deemed to be in the unclassified service. The department of public welfare is authorized to *natural resources* may acquire by fee or by lease all lands and facilities necessary for the establishment of camps for such department.

SECTION 310. 49.45 (2) (a) 5 of the statutes is amended to read:

49.45 (2) (a) 5. ~~Co-operate~~ *Cooperate* with the state bureau of division for handicapped children, state board of health and the state board of vocational, technical and adult education of the department of public instruction to carry out the provisions of Title XIX;

SECTION 311. 49.50 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

49.50 (3) State-wide examinations to ascertain qualifications of applicants in any county department administering old-age assistance, aid to families with dependent children, aid to the blind or aid to totally and permanently disabled persons shall be given by the state bureau of personnel director of personnel as defined in s. 16.02 (7). The bureau department of administration shall be reimbursed for actual expenditures incurred in the performance of its functions under this section from the appropriations available to the department of health and social services for administrative expenditures.

SECTION 312. 59.96 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

59.96 (1) In any county having a population of 500,000 or more where the common council of any city of the 1st class within such county has adopted a resolution declaring that it is necessary to provide sewage disposal works for such city and in which a sewerage commission has been appointed and qualified, and has adopted plans for, and commenced the construction of a sewage disposal plant for said city, the governor shall appoint 3 sewerage commissioners who shall constitute and be known as the "Metropolitan Sewerage Commission" of such county. ~~There~~ *One* person shall be certified by the sewerage commission of such city of the 1st class ~~one person, and one person~~ by the state board of health ~~one person, department of natural resources~~ to the governor of the state, who shall appoint as members of ~~such~~ *the* metropolitan sewerage commission the 2 persons thus certified, and ~~who~~ shall ~~further~~ name as the 3rd member of ~~such~~ *the* commission a resident within the drainage area ~~hereinafter provided~~ of said county outside of the city limits of such city of the 1st class. ~~The commissioners in office on January 1, 1953, shall be designated by the governor to serve for terms of 2, 4 and 6 years, respectively, from January 1, 1953.~~ Not less than 6 weeks prior to the expiration of the term of any commissioner his successor shall be certified and appointed as provided above ~~for his predecessor in office, but~~ for a term of 6 years. A commissioner shall hold office until his successor has been appointed and qualified. Vacancies occurring during the term of any commissioner shall be filled in like manner, but for the unexpired term only.

SECTION 313. 60.303 (5) and (7) of the statutes are amended to read:

60.303 (5) ~~The state board~~ *department* of health and social services and the department of ~~resource development~~ *natural resources* shall be notified of the hearing to be held for the creation of such district, by mailing notice addressed to them, such notice to be deposited in the mail not less than 10 days prior to the date set for such hearing, and the state board department of health and social services and the department of ~~resource development~~ *natural resources* shall be represented at the hearing and shall advise with the town board.

(7) ~~A copy~~ *Copies* of the order by the town board establishing such town sanitary district shall be filed with the secretary of the state board of health, *department of natural resources* and a copy shall be filed with the register of deeds in ~~the each county or counties~~ in which the district is situated. In counties having a population in excess of 250,000, the

register of deeds shall provide an index for such orders ~~and~~, shall number such orders in consecutive numerical order and ~~in such counties the register of deeds shall be entitled to a fee of 50 cents for each such filing.~~

SECTION 314. 60.315 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

60.315 TOWN BOARD OR DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES MAY ESTABLISH SANITARY DISTRICT. (1) (a) When the department of ~~resource development~~ *natural resources* (referred to in this section as "the department") through public hearing finds that private sewage disposal systems or private water supply systems or both, in towns are so located and operated that they cause or tend to cause a menace to health or comfort, or pollution of surface waters, and determines that there is no local action to correct the situation, it shall certify such fact to the towns in which such area is located and specify the proposed work which is necessary and the property which is to be included in the district. The town clerks of the area to be affected shall be given at least 30 days' notice by mail of the hearing and the town board shall publish a class 2 notice, under ch. 985, of the hearing.

SECTION 315. 66.03 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

66.03 (5) The boards or councils of the municipalities, or committees, thereof selected for that purpose, acting together, shall constitute an apportionment board. When any municipality is dissolved by reason of all of its territory being so transferred the board or council thereof existing at the time of such dissolution shall for the purpose of this section, continue to exist as the governing body of such municipality until there has been an apportionment of assets by agreement of the interested municipalities or by an order of the circuit court. After an agreement for apportionment of assets has been entered into between the interested municipalities, or an order of the circuit court ~~shall become~~ *becomes* final, a copy of such apportionment agreement, or of such order, certified to by the clerks of the interested municipalities, shall be filed with the ~~state department of taxation revenue, the conservation commission~~ *department of natural resources*, the ~~state~~ highway commission, the state superintendent of public instruction, the department of administration, and with any other ~~officer, board, commission~~ *department* or agency of the state from which the town may be entitled by law to receive funds or certifications or orders relating to the distribution or disbursement of funds, with the county treasurer, with the treasurer of any municipality, or with any other entity from which payment would have become due if such dissolved municipality from which such territory was transferred had continued in existence. Thereafter payments of income taxes under s. 71.14, of occupational taxes on intoxicating liquor under s. 139.13, of forest crop taxes under s. 77.05, of public utility taxes under s. 76.28, of highway state aids under s. 20.395, of state aids for school purposes under ch. 121, and all payments ~~of every kind whatsoever~~ due from a ~~board, commission, officer~~ *department* or agency of the state, from a county, from a municipality, or from any other entity from which payments would have become due if such dissolved municipality from which such territory was transferred had continued in existence, shall be paid to the interested municipality as provided by such agreement for apportionment of assets or by any order of apportionment by the circuit court and such payments shall have the same force and effect as if made to the dissolved municipality from which such territory was transferred.

SECTION 316. 66.054 (17) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

66.054 (17) DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE. (a) Upon complaint in the name of the state filed by ~~the commissioner of taxation, or any of his~~ *a duly authorized employe, employe of the division of criminal investigation of the department of justice* with the clerk of any court of record in the jurisdiction in which the premises of the licensed person complained of are situ-

ated, that any such licensed person therein has at any time violated this section, or keeps or maintains a disorderly or riotous, indecent or improper house, or that he has at any time illegally sold or given away any malt beverages to any minor, or to persons intoxicated or bordering on intoxication, or to known habitual drunkards, or has failed to maintain said premises in accordance with the standards of sanitation prescribed by the ~~state board~~ *department of health and social services*, or in whose licensed premises known criminals or prostitutes are permitted to loiter, or that he has at any time been convicted of a violation of any federal or state law involving moral turpitude or been convicted of any felony or any offense against the laws relating to sale of intoxicating liquors or fermented malt beverages, or that he does not possess the qualifications required by this section to entitle him to a license, the clerk of said court shall issue a summons commanding the person so complained of to appear before it not less than 20 days after service of the summons, exclusive of the day of service, and show cause why his license should not be revoked or suspended.

SECTION 317. 66.061 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

66.061 (2) (a) Cities and villages may contract for furnishing light, heat, water, motor bus or other systems of public transportation to the municipality or to the inhabitants thereof for a period of not more than 30 years or for an indeterminate period if the prices are subject to adjustment at intervals of not greater than 5 years. The *public service* commission shall have jurisdiction relative to the rates and service to any city or village where light, heat, water, motor bus or other systems of public transportation are furnished to such city or village under any contract or arrangement, to the same extent that it has jurisdiction where such service is furnished directly to the public.

SECTION 318. 66.191 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

66.191 (1) Whenever a policeman, fireman, county undersheriff, deputy sheriff, county traffic policeman, conservation warden, ~~deputy state fire marshal~~, state forest ranger, field *conservation* employe of the ~~conservation commission~~ *department of natural resources* who is subject to call for forest fire control or warden duty, member of the state traffic patrol, ~~state~~ university of Wisconsin full-time policeman, guard or any other employe whose principal duties are supervision and discipline of inmates at a state penal institution including central state hospital, investigator employed by the ~~attorney general's office or state beverage tax investigator~~ *division of criminal investigation of the department of justice* who is a participating employe under s. 66.90 to 66.918 shall, while engaged in the performance of duty, be injured or contract a disease due to his occupation, and be found upon examination to be so disabled by a disability which is likely to be permanent, as to render necessary his retirement from any of the aforesaid services, the ~~industrial commission~~ *department of industry, labor and human relations* shall order payment to him monthly, under 20.865 (1) (d) or 102.21, of a sum equal to one-half his monthly salary in such service at the time that he became so disabled. A disability of such a nature as to require reduction in pay or position or assignment to light duty or to adversely affect promotional opportunities within the service shall be deemed sufficient to permit the employe the option of retirement.

SECTION 319. 66.201 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

66.201 (4) Immediately after the filing of such petition, the court shall fix a time and place for a hearing on said petition, and shall cause notice by publication to be made of the pendency of the petition and of the time and place of such hearing. Such publication shall be made by a class 3 notice, under ch. 985, in the counties in which the proposed district is located. Said court shall also cause notice to be served personally upon the clerk

of each municipality having territory in the proposed district, and upon the ~~state health officer~~ *department of natural resources* at least 3 weeks before said hearing.

SECTION 320. 66.903 (2) (a) 1.b of the statutes is amended to read:

66.903 (2) (a) 1. b. For such employes who are justices of the supreme court, circuit judges, county judges, conservation wardens, ~~conservation~~ patrol boat captains, ~~conservation~~ patrol boat engineers, ~~conservation~~ airplane pilots, state forest rangers, employes of the ~~conservation commission~~ *department of natural resources* who are designated by the ~~conservation director~~ *secretary of natural resources* as being subject to call for forest fire control or warden duty, members of the state traffic patrol, state motor vehicle inspectors, policemen, including the chief and all other officers, firemen, including the chief and all other officers, county undersheriffs, deputy sheriffs and traffic policemen, 5 ~~per cent~~ %, except as provided in subd. 1. c and d ~~of this subdivision.~~

SECTION 321. 66.912 (4) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 322. 66.92 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

66.92 (3) The ~~state~~ department of ~~veterans'~~ *veterans* affairs shall furnish any county, city, village, town or agency thereof with information and assistance to facilitate housing for veterans and servicemen and ~~said~~ *the department* shall call upon the ~~director~~ *head* of the planning function in the department of ~~resource~~ *local affairs and development* for assistance in carrying out the purpose of this subsection. He shall furnish such assistance when requested and the salaries and expenses therefor shall be paid out of the appropriation for the ~~state~~ department of ~~veterans'~~ *veterans* affairs.

SECTION 323. 66.941 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

66.941 (6) The authority shall be administered by a board consisting of ~~9~~ 8 members to be known as the transit right of way board, composed of the mayors of the cities of Milwaukee, Racine and Kenosha; the county executive of Milwaukee county, the chairman of the county boards of Racine and Kenosha counties; the ~~director of the state department of resource development~~ *secretary of local affairs and development*; and the chairman of the highway commission who shall serve only as long as they hold the office designated ~~herein~~ and his successor shall automatically become a member of the authority board. In addition to these members the governor shall appoint a citizen member whose ability and qualification shall be in keeping with the responsibilities of membership on the board. Such member shall serve for a period of 3 years from the date of his appointment and shall be eligible to succeed himself. Within 30 days after July 10, 1963, the governor shall appoint the citizen member of the board and shall designate a chairman from among the members of the board and the chairman shall thereafter promptly call an initial meeting of the board for the purposes of its organization. No member of the board shall be paid any salary, fee or compensation for his services except that such member may be reimbursed for actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of his duties.

SECTION 324. 70.11 (21) (a) and (d) of the statutes are amended to read:

70.11 (21) (a) All property purchased, constructed, installed and operated with the approval of the ~~committee on water pollution,~~ *state board department of natural resources, department of health and social services,* a city council, a village board or county board pursuant to s. 59.07 (53) or (85) for the purpose of abating or eliminating pollution of the air, and all property purchased, constructed, installed and operated with the approval of the department of ~~resource development~~ *natural resources* for the purposes of abating or eliminating pollution of the air or waters of the state.

(d) The books and records of owners of property covered by this subsection shall be open to examination by representatives of the department of ~~resource development~~ *natural resources*, ~~state board~~ *department of health and social services* and department of ~~taxation~~ *revenue*.

SECTION 325. 70.27 (8) of the statutes is amended to read:

70.27 (8) Within 2 days after the assessor's plat is filed with the governing body, it shall be transmitted to the ~~director~~ *head* of the planning function of the department of ~~resource~~ *local affairs and development* by the clerk of the governing body which ordered the plat. The ~~director~~ *head* of the planning function shall review the plat within 30 days of its receipt. No such plat shall be given final approval by the local governing body until the ~~director~~ *head* of the planning function has certified on the face of the original plat that it complies with the applicable provisions of ss. 236.15 and 236.20. After the plat has been so certified by ~~said director~~ the clerk shall promptly publish a class 3 notice thereof, under ch. 985. The plat shall remain on file in the clerk's office for 30 days after the first publication. At any time within such 30-day period any person or public body having an interest in any lands affected by the plat may bring a suit to have such plat corrected. If no such suit is brought within such time, the plat may be approved by the governing body, and filed for record. If such suit is brought, approval shall be withheld until the suit is decided. The plat shall then be revised in accordance with such decision if necessary, and, without ~~re-referral~~ *rereferral* to the ~~director~~ *head* of the planning function of the department of ~~resource~~ *local affairs and development* unless such ~~re-referral~~ *rereferral* is ordered by the court. The plat may then be approved by the governing body and filed for record. When so filed the plat shall carry on its face the certificate of the clerk that all provisions of this section have been complied with. When recorded after approval by the governing body, the plat shall have the same effect for all purposes as if it were a land division plat made by the owners in full compliance with ch. 236. Before May 1 of each year, the register of deeds shall notify the town clerks of the recording of any assessors' plats made or amended during the preceding year, affecting lands in their towns.

SECTION 326. 71.04 (2b) (intro.) and (b) of the statutes are amended to read:

71.04 (2b) (intro.) In lieu of the allowance for depreciation for any taxable year or part thereof beginning after December 31, 1952, the owner may elect the write off of the balance not previously deducted in years prior to the 1966 calendar year or corresponding fiscal year for waste treatment plant and pollution abatement equipment purchased or constructed and installed pursuant to order or recommendation of the ~~committee on water pollution~~ *department of natural resources*, ~~state board~~ *department of health and social services*, city council, village board or county board pursuant to s. 59.07 (53) or (85) in the 1966 calendar year or corresponding fiscal year. Any waste treatment plant and pollution abatement equipment purchased or constructed and installed in the 1966 calendar year or corresponding fiscal year, or in a subsequent year, pursuant to order or recommendation of the ~~committee on water pollution~~, department of ~~resource development~~, ~~state board~~ *natural resources*, *department of health and social services*, city council, village board or county board pursuant to s. 59.07 (53) or (85) may be deducted in the year of cash disbursement for same.

(b) The taxpayer shall file with the department of ~~taxation~~ *revenue* at the time of his election under this subsection copies of recommendations, orders and approvals issued by the department of ~~resource development~~, ~~state board~~ *natural resources*, *department of health and social services*, city council, village board or county board pursuant to s. 59.07 (53) or

(85) in respect to such treatment plant and pollution abatement equipment, and such other documents and data relating thereto as the department by rule requires.

SECTION 327. 71.05 (1) (b) 5 (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

71.05 (1) (b) 5. (intro.) In lieu of the allowance for depreciation for any taxable year or part thereof beginning after December 31, 1952, the owner may elect the write off of the balance not previously deducted in years prior to the 1966 calendar year or corresponding fiscal year for waste treatment plant and pollution abatement equipment purchased or constructed and installed pursuant to order or recommendation of the ~~committee on water pollution, state board of~~ *department of natural resources, department of health and social services, city council, village board or county board* pursuant to s. 59.07 (53) or (85) in the 1966 calendar year or corresponding fiscal year. Any waste treatment plant and pollution abatement equipment purchased or constructed and installed in the 1966 calendar year or corresponding fiscal year, or in a subsequent year, pursuant to order or recommendation of the ~~committee on water pollution, department of resource development, state board~~ *natural resources, department of health and social services, city council, village board or county board* pursuant to s. 59.07 (53) or (85) may be deducted in the year of cash disbursement for same.

SECTION 328. 71.13 (4) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

71.13 (4) (e) If any delinquent income tax has been referred by the department to the attorney general ~~in order to effect for collection of same and it shall appear to said attorney general,~~ after having fully investigated the matter, ~~the attorney general determines that it would be to in the best interest of the state to compromise said the tax,~~ the attorney general ~~may make a written recommendation shall be made to the department stating the terms upon which he believes the tax should be compromised and his the reasons therefor. After receipt of such recommendation the~~ *The* department shall ~~notify the attorney general of its approval or disapproval of such approve or disapprove the recommendation, and if notify the department of justice. If approved the attorney general department of justice may thereupon enter into a stipulation with the taxpayer providing for the compromise of such the tax on the terms set forth in said the recommendation and upon compliance therewith by the taxpayer the tax shall be fully discharged. The attorney general department of justice shall furnish the department with a copy of such stipulation, and the department or its agents charged with the collection of income taxes may accept payment of such tax in accordance with the terms of such stipulation and upon payment being made shall enter the unpaid portion of said the tax on the next credit roll. The provisions of this~~ *This* subsection shall be in addition to all other powers of the ~~attorney general department of justice and the department of taxation~~ *revenue* with respect to compromise or settlement of income taxes.

SECTION 329. 72.18 (1), (2), (4) and (5) of the statutes are amended to read:

72.18 (1) ~~It shall be the duty of the~~ *The* department of ~~taxation to~~ *revenue* shall supervise the administration of, ~~the inheritance tax laws and to shall investigate and cause to be investigated the administration of the inheritance such tax laws, and such the particular estates to which the inheritance tax laws apply, throughout the various counties of the state, and to cause to be made shall make and filed file in its offices reports of such investigation together with and specific information and facts as to particular estates that may seem to require especial special consideration and attention by the legal department of the state justice. Whenever it is deemed necessary, the department of taxation revenue may employ ac-~~

countants, appraisers or other special assistance in appraising or determining the value of property in any estate, and the expense thereof shall be paid out of the inheritance tax funds in his hands by the county treasurer of the proper county upon the certificate of the county judge when certified to him by the department of revenue.

(2) The department of ~~taxation~~ revenue shall appoint an inheritance tax counsel who shall have charge of the inheritance tax work under the supervision of the department, and who shall be provided with such further assistance from time to time from the regular force of the department as may be necessary and expedient. Such inheritance tax counsel shall devote his time to the work of inheritance tax investigations, and he shall personally make such investigations at the county courts ~~from time to time~~ as deemed advisable. He shall counsel and assist public administrators and shall appear in the county courts when requested by the county judge or public administrator. He shall file with the department triplicate reports on the first day of January, April, July and October each year, together with such additional triplicate reports of particular estates ~~from time to time~~ as seem to require the special attention of the ~~legal~~ department of justice. One copy of such reports shall be filed with the department of ~~taxation~~ revenue, one copy shall be submitted to the attorney general by the department of revenue with such recommendation thereon as it ~~may deem~~ deems advisable for the due administration of the inheritance tax laws, and one copy may ~~in the discretion of the department~~ be submitted ~~by it~~ to the county judge or public administrator of the county reported on with such recommendation as the department ~~may deem~~ of revenue deems wise and expedient.

(4) The department and its inheritance tax counsel shall also gather information and make investigations and reports concerning the estates of nonresident decedents within the provisions of the inheritance tax laws, and shall especially investigate the probate and other records for such probable estates without the state and report thereon ~~from time to time~~ to the ~~legal~~ department of the state justice and to the public administrator of the proper county court for appropriate legal action.

(5) ~~It shall be the duty of the legal~~ The department of the state to justice shall carry out and enforce the recommendations and directions of the department of ~~taxation~~ revenue in all matters pertaining to the conduct of inheritance tax affairs, ~~and in~~. In every estate in which the amount of inheritance tax collectible ~~shall exceed~~ exceeds or probably ~~exceed~~ exceeds the sum of \$1,000, there shall be no compounding, composition, or settlement of the taxes under the authority conferred by ~~section s.~~ 72.21, or otherwise, until the department of ~~taxation~~ revenue or its inheritance tax counsel ~~shall have~~ has investigated such estate and made a report thereon, nor until the department consents to such compounding, compromise, or settlement.

SECTION 330. 72.81 (9) of the statutes is amended to read:

72.81 (9) ~~It shall be the duty of the legal~~ The department of the state to justice shall carry out and enforce the recommendations and directions of the department of ~~taxation~~ revenue in all matters pertaining to gift tax affairs, ~~and in~~. In every matter in which the amount of gift tax collectible ~~shall exceed~~ exceeds or probably ~~exceed~~ exceeds the sum of \$1,000, there shall be no compounding, composition or settlement of the taxes until the department of ~~taxation~~ ~~shall have~~ revenue has consented in writing to such compounding, compromise or settlement.

SECTION 331. 73.01 (1) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

73.01 TAX APPEALS COMMISSION. (1) DEFINITION. In this section "commission" means the tax appeals commission.

SECTION 332. 73.01 (2), (2m), (3) (c) and (4) (a) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 333. 73.01 (3) (b), (4) (b) and (c), (5) and (6) of the statutes are renumbered 73.01 (2), (3) (a) and (b), (4) and (5), respectively, and 73.01 (2) and (3), as renumbered, are amended to read:

73.01 (2) EMPLOYEES AND EXPENDITURES. The ~~board~~ *department of administration* may appoint and fix the salaries, subject to the provisions of ~~chapter 16, of, under the classified service,~~ such employees, including a clerk, and may make such expenditures for library, publications and equipment, as may be necessary in order to carry out its functions *for the commission as are necessary.*

(3) HEARINGS AND REPORTS. (a) The principal office of the board shall be in Madison but the board, or any member thereof, may hold hearings at any place within the state. The time and place of meetings and hearings of the commission shall be designated by the chairman. ~~Adequate offices or rooms shall be provided for the board in the state capitol or elsewhere in the city of Madison, and rooms~~ Rooms for hearings outside the city of Madison shall be provided under ~~section s.~~ 73.07.

(b) The ~~board~~ *commission* shall provide for the publication of such of its reports, decisions and opinions as are of public interest in such form as it ~~may deem~~ *deems* best adapted for public convenience and use. Such publications shall constitute the official reports of the ~~board~~ *commission* and shall be made available for sale and distribution to the public under the provisions of ~~chapter ch.~~ 35. The board shall transmit to the governor and to each member of the legislature, within thirty days after the regular biennial session of the legislature shall have convened, a report, covering the period from the date of the last such report to the end of the next preceding calendar year, setting forth such facts with respect to the nature, extent and status of its work as the board *deems* advisable. The board *In addition to its annual report under s. 15.06 (7), the commission* shall make such further reports to the governor or the legislature as they ~~may~~ request.

SECTION 334. 73.02 (1) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

73.02 (1) DISTRIBUTION OF MONEY. The department of revenue shall, on the certification of the program agencies that all requirements of the applicable laws have been complied with, perform the mechanical operation of the distribution of all moneys which the state distributes to political subdivisions.

SECTION 335. 73.02 (2) to (6) and (8) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 336. 73.02 (7) of the statutes is renumbered 73.02 (2) and amended to read:

73.02 (2) The ~~commissioner~~ *secretary* shall designate or appoint under the classified service, within the department of ~~taxation~~ *revenue*, an income tax ~~co-ordinator~~ *coordinator*, whose duties shall include the setting up and operation of a ~~co-ordination~~ *coordination* program with the internal revenue service to facilitate the reporting of federal adjustments to the department and the interchange of information with respect to examination of returns, adjustments to income, extension of limitations, furnishing copies of returns and other activities essential to an integrated and effective ~~co-ordination~~ *coordination* program with the internal revenue service.

SECTION 337. 73.03 (22) of the statutes is amended to read:

73.03 (22) To appear by its counsel and represent the state in all matters before the ~~board of tax appeals~~ *commission*. Except as provided in ch. 72 and in s. 76.08 (1), the ~~attorney general~~ *department of justice* shall *provide legal counsel* to appear for the department in all courts, but with the consent of the attorney general a member of the staff of the department may appear for the department.

CHAPTER 276

788

SECTION 338. 73.035 of the statutes is renumbered 165.60 and amended to read:

165.60 The ~~commissioner of taxation and such of his employees as are~~ *division of criminal investigation* is authorized to enforce s. 66.054 and chs. 139 and 176 ~~shall enforce the provisions of, ss. 944.30, 944.31, 944.33, 944.34, 945.02 (2), 945.03 and 945.04~~ and shall be invested with the powers conferred by law upon sheriffs and municipal police officers in the performance of such duties. Nothing herein shall deprive or relieve sheriffs, constables and other local police officers of the power and duty to enforce ~~the provisions of said sections, and such other officers shall likewise enforce the provisions of said sections.~~

SECTION 339. 73.04 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

73.04 (1) ~~In case~~ If any person ~~shall~~ unlawfully ~~fail~~ *fails* to obey any subpoena to appear before ~~said~~ the department of revenue or before the ~~board of tax appeals commission, or shall~~ unlawfully ~~refuse~~ *refuses* to testify, such failure or refusal shall be reported to the attorney general, ~~who and the department of justice shall thereupon~~ institute contempt proceedings against such person.

SECTION 340. 76.37 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

76.37 (2) No suit shall be brought to restrain or enjoin the collection of any license fee or tax imposed or provided for by ss. 76.30 to 76.37, and the fees required by s. 200.13. Any company, corporation or association, aggrieved by the payment of any such license or other fee or tax, may maintain a suit against the state for the recovery thereof in the circuit court for Dane county within 6 months from the time of the payment thereof. The state may be served ~~with a summons in such suit by delivering a copy to the attorney general or leaving it at his office in the capitol with one of his assistants as provided in s. 262.06 (3).~~

SECTION 341. 77.14 of the statutes is amended to read:

77.14 (1) The ~~conservation commission~~ *department of natural resources* shall publish and distribute information regarding the method of taxation of forest crop land ~~provided in under this chapter, and is authorized to~~ *may* employ a fire warden in charge of fire prevention in forest crop lands. All actual and necessary expenses incurred by the ~~conservation commission~~ *department of natural resources* or by the department of ~~taxation revenue~~ in the performance of their duties under this chapter shall be paid from the appropriation made in s. 20.370 (2) (a) upon certification by the ~~commission department~~ incurring such expenses.

SECTION 342. 80.05 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

80.05 (2) (b) Give notice to the ~~state conservation commission~~ *department of natural resources* and to the ~~state soil and water conservation committee~~ by ~~-serving a copy upon the conservation director and upon the secretary of the committee,~~ *board* by registered mail.

SECTION 343. 80.39 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

80.39 (2) Upon such petition the county board or the commissioners appointed by the board shall give notice of the time and place they will meet to decide thereon, which notice shall be published as a class 2 notice, under ch. 985. Such notice shall also be given to the ~~state conservation commission~~ *department of natural resources* and to the ~~state soil and water conservation committee~~ *board* by serving a copy upon the ~~conservation director~~ *secretary of natural resources* and by serving a copy upon the secretary of the ~~committee~~ *soil conservation board* either by registered mail or personally; ~~and if.~~ If the board appoints a committee to act, the notice shall state the fact and the notices shall be signed by the commissioners, otherwise by the chairman of the board.

SECTION 344. 84.01 (19) of the statutes is amended to read:

84.01 (19) The commission shall annually determine, as far as possible, what improvements will be made during the succeeding year, and notify the county clerks prior to November 1, as to the improvements in their respective counties. Such notice shall also be given to the ~~director of the state conservation commission~~ *secretary of natural resources* and to the secretary of the ~~state soil and water conservation committee~~ *board*.

SECTION 345. 84.02 (3) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

84.02 (3) (a) Changes may be made in the state trunk system ~~from time to time~~ by the commission, if it deems that the public good is best served by making such changes. The commission, in making such changes, may lay out new highways by the procedure under this subsection. But due notice shall be given to the localities concerned of the intention to make changes or discontinuances, and if the change proposes to lay a highway via a new location and the distance along such deviation from the existing location exceeds 2½ miles, then a hearing in or near the region affected by the proposed change shall be held prior to making the change effective. Such notice shall also be given to the ~~state conservation commission~~ *secretary of natural resources* and to the ~~state secretary of the soil and water conservation committee~~ *secretary of the soil and water conservation committee* ~~by serving a copy upon the conservation director and by serving a copy upon the secretary of the state soil and water conservation committee board~~ either by registered mail or personally. Whenever the commission decides to thus change more than 2½ miles of the system such change shall not be effective until the decision of the commission has been referred to and approved by the county board of each county in which any part of the proposed change is situated. A copy of the decision shall be filed in the office of the clerk of each county in which a change is made or proposed. Where the distance along the deviation from the existing location exceeds 5 miles the change shall constitute an addition to the state trunk highway system. The preexisting route shall continue to be a state trunk highway unless the county board of each county in which any part of the relocation lies and the ~~state~~ highway commission mutually agree to its discontinuance as a state trunk highway. Whenever such county board or boards and the ~~state~~ highway commission cannot so agree the ~~state~~ highway commission shall report the problem to the next ensuing session of the legislature for determination.

SECTION 346. 84.025 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

84.025 (3) Changes may be made in the state arterial highway system by the commission, if it deems that the public good is best served by making such changes. The commission, in making such changes, may lay out new highways by the procedure under this subsection. Due notice shall be given to the localities concerned of the intention to make changes or discontinuances, and if the change proposes to lay a highway via a new location and the distance along such deviation from the existing location exceeds 5 miles, then a hearing in or near the region affected by the proposed change shall be held prior to making the change effective. Such notice shall also be given to the ~~state conservation commission~~ *secretary of natural resources* and to the ~~state secretary of the soil and water conservation committee~~ *secretary of the soil and water conservation committee* ~~by serving a copy upon the conservation director and by serving a copy upon the secretary of the state soil and water conservation committee board~~ either by registered mail or personally. A copy of the decision shall be filed in the office of the clerk of each county in which a change is made or proposed. Where the distance along the deviation from the existing location exceeds 5 miles the change shall constitute an addition to the state trunk highway system. The pre-existing route shall continue to be a state trunk highway unless the county board of each county in which any part of the relocation lies and the ~~state~~ highway commission mutually agree to its discontinuance as a state trunk highway. Whenever such county board or boards and the ~~state~~ highway commission

cannot so agree the ~~state~~ highway commission shall report the problem to the next ensuing session of the legislature for determination.

SECTION 347. 84.11 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

84.11 (3) Within 60 days of the receipt of a petition under sub. (2) (a) or the adoption of a resolution under sub. (2) (b) the commission shall fix a time and place for a hearing to be held thereon, and give notice of such hearing by publication of a class 2 notice, under ch. 985, in the vicinity of the proposed bridge project. Notice shall also be given by registered letter addressed to the clerks of the counties, cities, villages and towns in which any part of the bridge project will be located. Such notice shall also be given to the ~~state conservation commission~~ *secretary of natural resources* and to the ~~state~~ *secretary of the soil and water* conservation committee by ~~sending a copy upon the conservation director and by serving a copy upon the secretary of the state soil and water conservation committee board~~ either by registered mail or personally. Such hearing may be held in any county, city, village or town in which any part of the bridge project will be located.

SECTION 348. 84.03 (9) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

84.03 (9) (b) In addition to the purposes provided in par. (a) there may be expended by the commission a sum sufficient, not exceeding \$20,000, for marking highways as civil defense evacuation routes as requested by the ~~civil defense director~~ *secretary of local affairs and development*.

SECTION 349. 88.01 (7) of the statutes is amended to read:

88.01 (7) ~~"Director of engineering"~~ "Secretary" means the ~~director of the bureau of engineering in the department~~ *secretary* of administration.

SECTION 350. 88.05 (4) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

88.05 (4) (a) The chairman of the county highway committee, the chairman of the soil and water conservation district in the county involved, the chairman of the public service commission, the ~~director of state conservation department~~ *secretary of natural resources* and, where a railroad company is involved, the person specified in sub. (6).

SECTION 351. 92.03 (3) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 352. 92.04 (1) (a) and (3) of the statutes are amended to read:

92.04 (1) (a) ~~There is established a state soil and water conservation committee. The committee shall consist of 4 practical farmers appointed by the governor for 4-year terms and a representative of the dean of the college of agriculture of the university of Wisconsin designated by him, and a staff member of the college of agriculture engaged in extension work with rural people also designated by the dean, a representative of the soil and water district supervisors, designated by the board of directors of the Wisconsin association of soil and water district supervisors, and a representative of the conservation department designated by the director thereof. As the terms of the present members expire, the appointment made in 1964 shall be for a term expiring July 1, 1968; the appointment made in 1965 shall be for a term expiring July 1, 1969; one appointment made in 1966 shall be for a term expiring July 1, 1967; and one shall be for a term expiring July 1, 1970. Thereafter one member shall be appointed each year for a 4-year term. Each farmer member appointed shall be a co-operator having a farm plan approved by the local soil and water conservation district. The members of the committee shall hold office until their successors are appointed and qualified. The farmer members only shall receive \$15 per day for each day necessarily spent in the performance of their duties. All members shall be reimbursed for their actual and necessary expenses, including traveling expenses, incurred in the performance of their duties. The committee soil conservation board shall keep a record of its official actions, shall adopt a seal which shall be~~

judicially noticed, and may perform such acts, hold such public hearings, and promulgate such rules as it deems necessary for the execution of its functions under this chapter.

(3) ~~The committee shall designate its chairman and secretary. A majority of the committee shall constitute a quorum. The committee soil conservation board shall keep a full and accurate record of all proceedings and of all resolutions, rules and orders issued or adopted by it; and may provide for an annual audit of the accounts of receipts and disbursements.~~

SECTION 353. 92.04 (1) (b) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 354. Chapter 93 (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

CHAPTER 93.

State DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE.

SECTION 355. 93.01 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

93.01 (2) ~~"Director"~~ "Secretary" means the ~~director~~ secretary of the department agriculture.

SECTION 356. 93.02 (1), (2), (3), (4), (5), (7), (8) (a), (b), (c), (d) and (f) and (9) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 357. 93.02 (8) (e) of the statutes is renumbered 93.02 and amended to read:

93.02 STAFF. The ~~director~~ secretary shall appoint all staff necessary for the carrying out of the duties of ~~this~~ the department, all of whom shall be ~~subject to the civil under the classified service law~~ except heads the deputy secretary, the executive assistant or the administrators of divisions created under subsection (9). Each division shall have a single head such deputy secretary, executive assistant or administrator shall be appointed by the ~~director~~ secretary with the approval of the board.

SECTION 358. 93.07 (20) (a), (22), (23) and (24) (c) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 359. 93.07 (20) (b) of the statutes is renumbered 93.07 (20) and amended to read:

93.07 (20) COUNCIL ON FOOD STANDARDS. After public hearings held pursuant to ~~section~~ s. 97.022 and before such orders become effective the department shall call a meeting of the advisory committee council on food standards to secure ~~their~~ its opinion and recommendations regarding such orders. The chairman of the advisory committee may also request meetings with the proper department officials at the request of 3 members of the committee to propose suggested changes in the rules governing food standards. The proposals and recommendations of the advisory committee shall be advisory only.

SECTION 360. 93.13 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 361. 94.755 (2) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 362. 96.01 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

96.01 (1) "Marketing order" means an order issued by the ~~director~~ of the state department secretary of agriculture under this chapter.

SECTION 363. 96.14 of the statutes is amended to read:

96.14 MARKETING ORDER COUNCILS. (1) Every marketing order issued pursuant to this chapter shall provide for the establishment of ~~an advisory board~~ a council to assist the ~~director~~ secretary in the administration of the marketing order. If the marketing order affects directly only producers of a particular commodity, the members of the ~~board~~ council shall be producers. If the marketing order affects directly only handlers of a particular commodity, the members of the ~~board~~ council shall be handlers. If the marketing order affects directly both producers and handlers of a particular commodity or covers any vegetable crop contracted to be grown for canning, such ~~board~~ council shall be composed of

both producers and handlers. Each marketing order shall prescribe the number and term of office of members of the ~~advisory board~~ council. Persons who will serve on the ~~advisory board~~ council if the marketing order is assented to shall be selected by the affected producers and handlers by secret ballot at the time of the referendum provided for in s. 96.07. Notice of the ~~director's~~ secretary's decision shall contain a call for nominations and limit the time within which they can be filed. Nominations shall be signed by at least 5 persons qualified to vote for such candidates.

(2) The duties of ~~any such board~~ the council shall be ~~advisory only and may include only~~ limited to the following:

(a) To recommend to the ~~director~~ secretary administrative rules relating to the marketing order.

(b) To receive and report to the ~~director~~ secretary complaints of violations of the marketing order.

(c) To recommend to the ~~director~~ secretary amendments to the marketing order.

(d) To advise the ~~director~~ secretary in the assessment of members of the industry and in the collection of funds to cover expenses incurred by the ~~director~~ secretary in the administration of the marketing order.

(e) To advise the ~~director~~ secretary in the collection of such information and data as ~~the director may deem~~ he deems necessary to the proper administration of this chapter.

(f) To advise the ~~director~~ secretary in the administration of this chapter.

(3) ~~In the event any vacancies on the advisory board exist or arise, the director~~ The secretary shall appoint affected producers or handlers to fill ~~such~~ any vacancies ~~on the council~~.

SECTION 364. 96.15 of the statutes is amended to read:

96.15 ~~For the purpose of providing funds to defray the necessary expenses incurred by the director in the formulation, issuance, administration and enforcement of each~~ Each marketing order issued under this chapter, ~~each such marketing order~~ shall provide for the levying and collection of assessments in sufficient amounts to defray ~~such~~ the necessary expenses ~~incurred by the secretary in formulating, issuing, administering and enforcing the order~~. Each marketing order shall indicate the maximum rate of any such assessment which may be collected and the proportion, if any, payable by each producer and handler directly affected by such marketing order. The ~~advisory board~~ council elected to advise the ~~director~~ secretary in administering each marketing order shall recommend to the ~~director~~ secretary ~~from time to time~~ budgets to cover necessary expenses and the assessment rate necessary to provide sufficient funds. If the ~~director~~ secretary finds that each such budget and assessment rate are proper and equitable and will provide sufficient moneys to defray the necessary expenses, he may provide such budget and rate of assessment and order that each producer and handler so assessed shall pay to the ~~director~~ secretary, at such times and in such instalments as the ~~director~~ secretary ~~may~~ prescribe ~~secretary prescribes~~, an assessment based upon the units in which such agricultural commodity is marketed or upon any other uniform basis which the ~~director~~ secretary determines to be reasonable and equitable, but in amounts which in the case of producers, in addition to inspection fees, will not exceed 2 ~~per cent~~ % of the gross dollar volume of sales of the affected commodity by all such producers regulated by such marketing order, or in amounts which in the case of handlers will not exceed 2 ~~per cent~~ % of the gross dollar volume of purchases of the commodity affected by the marketing order from producers or of the gross dollar volume of sales of the commodity affected by the marketing order and handled by all distributors or other handlers regulated by such mar-

keting order during the marketing ~~season or~~ seasons during which such marketing order is effective. Such assessments shall be in addition to fees which are established by the department to cover actual cost of inspection.

SECTION 365. 96.21 of the statutes is amended to read:

96.21 Any person who violates this chapter or any order issued pursuant thereto ~~shall~~ *may* be fined not to ~~exceed more than~~ \$100 or imprisoned not to ~~exceed more than~~ 30 days. In the event of violation or threatened violation of this chapter or of any marketing order duly issued or entered into pursuant to this chapter, the ~~director~~ *secretary* shall be entitled to an injunction to prevent further violation and to a decree of specific performance of such order, and to a temporary restraining order; and upon trial of such action, if judgment is in favor of the plaintiff, the court shall permanently enjoin the defendant from further violation.

SECTION 366. 97.023 (1) and (2) (d) and (e) of the statutes are amended to read:

97.023 (1) Whoever practices promoting or opposing the making of regulations under s. 97.022 before the department, its officers, employes or the ~~advisory committee appointed under s. 93.07 (20)~~ *council on food standards* or before any member of ~~said committee~~ *the council*, shall be deemed a lobbyist and subject to s. 13.66 (1) and (2). The secretary of state shall prepare a special file for registration of persons so practicing which shall substantially conform to s. 13.65, so far as applicable. Sections 13.63 to 13.65, 13.66 (1) and (2), 13.67 to 13.69 and 13.70 (1) shall, so far as applicable and consistent with this section, apply to persons so practicing. For the purposes of this section the reports and statements required by ss. 13.67 and 13.68 shall be made within 10 days after the end of each calendar half year and shall cover the preceding half-year period.

(2) (d) "Legislature or of either branch thereof or of any committee thereof" ~~shall be deemed to mean~~ *means* the department of agriculture or the ~~committee appointed under s. 93.07 (20)~~ *council on food standards*.

(e) "Entire membership of either or both houses of the legislature" and "member of the legislature" ~~shall be deemed to mean~~ *means* the department, its officers and employes, the ~~advisory committee appointed under s. 93.07 (20)~~ *council on food standards* or the members of ~~said committee~~ *the council*.

SECTION 367. 97.20 (10) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 368. 99.13 (1) of the statutes is renumbered 99.13 and amended to read:

99.13 RULES FOR LOCKER PLANTS. The ~~state department of agriculture~~ shall formulate such rules, regulations, standards of construction, operation and sanitation of locker plants and places of establishment of processors as ~~may be~~ *are* necessary for the proper protection of food, to the end of protecting the public health and protecting the public from deception or fraud.

SECTION 369. 99.13 (2) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 370. 100.20 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

100.20 (4) The ~~attorney general~~ *department of justice* may file a written complaint with the department alleging that the person named ~~therein~~ is employing unfair methods of competition in business or unfair trade practices in business or both. Whenever such a complaint is filed it shall be the duty of the department to proceed, after proper notice and in accordance with its rules, to the hearing and adjudication of the matters ~~therein~~ alleged, and a *representative of the department of justice designated by the attorney general* may appear before the department in such proceedings. ~~He~~ *The department of justice* shall be entitled to judicial

CHAPTER 276

794

review of the decisions and orders of the department as provided in chapter under ch. 227.

SECTION 371. 100.31 (5) (intro.), (6), (7), (8) (c) and (17) of the statutes are amended to read:

100.31 (5) (intro.) Any organization or group of farmers, wholesalers, retailers, or any political subdivision of the state may, individually or jointly, petition the director of the state department secretary of agriculture, in the manner hereinafter as provided in this subsection, for the establishment of a marketing authority in and for any city of the first 1st class. The petition shall set forth:

(6) Upon the receipt of a petition, meeting the requirements of subsection sub. (5), the director of the state department of agriculture secretary shall ~~cause~~ make an investigation to be made; shall, within 3 months, cause a public hearing relative thereto to be held; and shall promptly report his findings with recommendations to the governor, taking into consideration in the holding of such hearings and the making of such recommendation, the type, plans and financial soundness of the authority, the trading area to be served, the proximity of existing or proposed markets, and the natural flow of produce in the territory of operation, and any other circumstances which in his opinion may be relevant.

(7) The governor, if he is satisfied that the purposes of this section will be effectuated, shall approve ~~said~~ the petition and shall ~~cause to be prepared and issued~~ issue a certificate of authority creating such authority and granting it the right of operation as a public corporation in accordance with the provisions of this section; ~~provided, however, that the~~. The governor, prior to such approval, may direct the director of the state department of agriculture secretary to hold further hearings and to submit new or additional recommendations.

(8) (c) The director of the state department of agriculture secretary, or his representative from the department of agriculture appointed by him, shall be a member of the board of directors, ~~who~~ and shall be entitled to a vote at all meetings of the board.

(17) (a) Immediately after the close of each fiscal year, every authority established pursuant to this section shall cause an audit to be made of its operations for such fiscal year. Such audit shall be made by a certified public accountant, or firm of accountants not regularly employed by the authority for its accounting purposes, or, with the approval of the proper state official, by a regular state accounting agency. Within 90 days after the close of its fiscal year each such authority shall file with the state department of agriculture a copy of such audit together with the names of the officers and directors thereof. Any person violating or failing to comply with the provisions of this section shall be is guilty of a misdemeanor.

(b) Every authority established hereunder pursuant to this section shall keep such records and make such reports to the state department of agriculture as may be required by the director thereof secretary requires.

(c) In case If any such authority shall fail fails or refuse refuses to keep ~~such~~ the records and to make ~~such~~ the reports as are required by subsection par. (b), the director of the state department of agriculture through the attorneys for the state of the several counties and cities, secretary may institute the necessary proceedings or otherwise, in his discretion, to have the directors, or such of them as are responsible for such failure or refusal, removed from office as provided herein.

SECTION 372. 101.01 (6) to (9) of the statutes are renumbered 101.02 (2) (d) to (g) and amended to read:

101.02 (2) (d) The term "deputy" shall mean and include "Deputy" means any person employed by the industrial commission department desig-

nated as ~~such a~~ deputy by the commission, who shall ~~possess~~ possesses special, technical, scientific, managerial or personal abilities or qualities in matters within the jurisdiction of the ~~industrial commission~~ department, and who may be engaged in the performance of duties under the direction of the commission, calling for the exercise of such abilities or qualities.

(e) ~~The term "order" shall mean and include~~ "Order" means any decision, rule, regulation, direction, requirement or standard of the ~~commission~~ department, or any other determination arrived at or decision made by ~~such commission~~ the department.

(f) ~~The term "general order" shall mean and include~~ "General order" means such order as applies generally throughout the state to all persons, employments, places of employment or public buildings, or all persons, employments, or places of employment or public buildings of a class under the jurisdiction of the ~~commission~~ department. All other orders of the ~~commission~~ department shall be considered special orders.

(g) ~~The term local "order" shall mean and include~~ "Local order" means any ordinance, order, rule or determination of any common council, board of aldermen, board of trustees, or the village board, of any village or city, or the board of health of any municipality, or an order or direction of any official of such municipality, upon any matter over which the ~~industrial commission~~ department has jurisdiction.

SECTION 373. 101.01 (10) to (13) of the statutes are renumbered 101.01 (6) to (9).

SECTION 374. 101.02 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

101.02 DEPARTMENT OF INDUSTRY, LABOR AND HUMAN RELATIONS. (1) POWER TO SUE AND BE SUED. The department of industry, labor and human relations may sue and be sued.

(2) DEFINITIONS. In chs. 101 to 106, and 108:

(a) "Department" means the department of industry, labor and human relations.

(b) "Commission" means the industry, labor and human relations commission.

(c) "Commissioner" means a member of the industry, labor and human relations commission.

SECTION 375. 101.03 to 101.05 of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 376. 101.105 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

101.105 (2) The ~~industrial commission~~ department shall ascertain, fix and order such reasonable standards, rules or regulations for the design, construction, location, installation, operation, repair and maintenance of equipment for storage, handling, use, and transportation by tank truck or tank trailer, of liquefied petroleum gases for fuel purposes, and for the odorization of said gases used therewith, as shall render such equipment safe. The promulgation, effect and review of standards, rules and regulations adopted under this section shall be controlled by the provisions of this chapter. ~~The industrial commission shall appoint an advisory committee to assist in the promulgation on such standards.~~

SECTION 377. 101.23 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

101.23 (1) For the purpose of making any investigation with regard to any employment or place of employment or public building, the commission ~~shall have power to~~ may appoint, by an order in writing, any ~~member of the commission~~ commissioner, any deputy who is a citizen of the state, or any other competent person as an agent whose duties shall be prescribed in such order.

SECTION 378. 101.24 of the statutes is amended to read:

101.24 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, DISTRICT ATTORNEY, SPECIAL PROSECUTOR. (1) The commission ~~shall have authority to~~ may

CHAPTER 276

796

direct any deputy who is a citizen to act as special prosecutor in any action, proceeding, investigation, hearing or trial relating to the matters within its jurisdiction.

(2) Upon the request of the commission, the ~~attorney general~~ *department of justice* or district attorney of the county in which any investigation, hearing or trial had under the provisions of sections ss. 101.01 to 101.29, ~~inclusive~~, is pending, shall aid therein and prosecute under the supervision of the commission, all necessary actions or proceedings for the enforcement of ~~said~~ those sections and all other laws of this state relating to the protection of life, health, safety and welfare, and for the punishment of all violations thereof.

SECTION 379. 101.29 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

101.29 (1) The chief of the fire department in every city, village or town, except cities of the ~~first~~ 1st class, is hereby constituted a deputy of the ~~industrial commission~~ *department*, subject to the right of the commission to relieve any such chief from his duties as such deputy for cause, and upon such suspension to appoint some other person to perform the duty imposed upon such deputy of the ~~industrial commission~~. The commission may, ~~in its discretion~~, appoint either the chief of the fire department or the building inspector as its deputy in cities of the ~~first~~ 1st class.

SECTION 380. 101.31 (14) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

101.31 (14) (b) ~~It shall be the duty of all~~ All duly constituted officers of the law of this state, or any political subdivision thereof, ~~to shall~~ enforce the provisions of this section and ~~to~~ prosecute any persons violating ~~same~~ this section. ~~The attorney general of the state or his assistant shall act as~~ A representative of the department of justice designated by the attorney general shall provide a legal advisor ~~of~~ to the board and render such legal assistance as may be necessary in carrying out the provisions of this section.

SECTION 381. 101.60 (title), (3), (4) (title) and (5) of the statutes are amended to read:

101.60 EQUAL RIGHTS.

(3) DEPARTMENT TO ADMINISTER. This section shall be administered by the ~~industrial commission~~ *department of industry, labor and human relations* through its equal opportunities division of equal rights. The ~~commission~~ *department* may promulgate such rules as are necessary to carry out this section. ~~The commission shall at the end of every year make a report in writing to the governor and legislature, stating in detail the work it has done and its recommendations, if any.~~ No publicity shall be given a complaint in those cases where the ~~commission~~ *department* obtains compliance with this section or the ~~commission~~ *department* finds that the complaint is without foundation.

(4) POWERS.

(5) Within 30 days after service upon all parties of any order under this section the respondent or complainant may appeal the order to the circuit court for the county in which the alleged discrimination took place by the filing of a petition for review. The respondent or complainant shall receive a trial de novo on all issues relating to any alleged discrimination and a further right to a trial by jury, if so desired. The ~~attorney general~~ *department of justice* shall represent the ~~commission~~ *department of industry, labor and human relations*. In any such trial the burden shall be to prove discrimination by a fair preponderance of the evidence. Costs in an amount not to exceed \$100 plus actual disbursements for the attendance of witnesses may be taxed to the prevailing party on the appeal.

SECTION 382. 101.61 (1) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 383. 101.61 (2) (a), (b) and (c) of the statutes are renumbered 101.61 (1) and 101.62 (1) and (2), respectively, and amended to read:

101.61 EQUAL RIGHTS COUNCIL. (1) The ~~commission~~ *equal rights council* shall disseminate information and attempt by means of discussion as well as other proper means to educate the people of the state to a greater understanding, appreciation and practice of human rights for all people, of whatever race, creed, color or national origin, to the end that Wisconsin will be a better place in which to live.

101.62 DIVISION OF EQUAL RIGHTS. (1) The ~~commission~~ *division of equal rights* may investigate alleged cases of discrimination in public places of accommodation or amusement, as defined in s. 942.04 (2), and may seek conciliation in any such case where it believes discrimination to have occurred.

(2) The ~~commission~~ *division* shall encourage and assist local units of government in guaranteeing all persons an equal opportunity for housing.

SECTION 384. 101.61 (2) of the statutes is created to read:

101.61 (2) The council shall give consideration to the practical operation and application of this subchapter and report to the proper legislative committee its view on any pending bill relating to the subject matter of this subchapter.

SECTION 385. 101.62 of the statutes is renumbered 101.62 (3) and amended to read:

101.62 (3) All gifts, grants, bequests and devises to the ~~governor's commission on human rights~~ *division* for its use for any of the purposes mentioned in s. 101.61, ~~whether made to the members or otherwise,~~ are valid and shall be used to carry out the purposes for which made and received.

SECTION 386. 102.01 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

102.01 (2) *In this chapter:*

(a) "Act" ~~as used in this chapter~~ means "chapter".

(b) "Compensation" means workmen's compensation.

(c) "Primary compensation and death benefit" means compensation or indemnity for disability, or death benefit, other than increased, double or treble compensation or death benefit.

(d) "Injury" ~~is~~ *means* mental or physical harm to an employe caused by accident or disease, and also *means* damage to or destruction of artificial members, dental appliances, teeth, hearing aids, and eyeglasses, but, in the case of hearing aids or eyeglasses, only if such damage or destruction resulted from accident which also caused personal injury entitling the employe to compensation therefor (either for disability or treatment).

(e) "Municipality" includes county, city, town, village, school district, sewer district, drainage district, and other public or quasi-public corporations; "examiner" includes the director of workmen's compensation; and "commission" means the industrial commission of Wisconsin.

(f) "Time of injury", "occurrence of injury", or "date of injury" ~~is~~ *means* the date of the accident which caused the injury, or in the case of disease, the last day of work for the last employer whose employment caused disability, except that in case of occupational deafness the definition in s. 102.555 controls.

SECTION 387. 102.01 (2) (g), (h) and (i) of the statutes are created to read:

102.01 (2) (g) "Department" means the department of industry, labor and human relations.

(h) "Commission" means the industry, labor and human relations commission.

(i) "Examiner" includes the administrator and deputy administrator of the workmen's compensation division of the department.

CHAPTER 276

798

SECTION 388. 102.13 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

102.13 (1) Whenever compensation is claimed by an employe, he shall, upon the written request of his employer, submit to reasonable examination by a physician, provided and paid for by the employer, and shall likewise submit to examination ~~from time to time~~ by any physician selected by ~~said the~~ commission, or a ~~member commissioner~~ or examiner thereof. The employe shall be entitled to have a physician, provided by himself, present at any such examination. So long as the employe, after such written request of the employer, ~~shall refuse~~ refuses to submit to such examination, or ~~shall in any way obstruct~~ obstructs the same, his right to begin or maintain any proceeding for the collection of compensation shall be suspended; and if he ~~shall refuse~~ refuses to submit to such examination after direction by the commission, or ~~any member a commissioner~~ or examiner thereof, or ~~shall in any way obstruct~~ obstructs the same, his rights to the weekly indemnity which ~~shall accrue and become~~ accrues and becomes payable during the period of such refusal or obstruction, shall be barred. Any physician who ~~shall be~~ is present at any such examination may be required to testify as to the results thereof. Any physician having attended an employe may be required to testify before the ~~commission department~~ when it ~~shall so direct~~ directs. Notwithstanding any other statutory provisions, any physician attending a workmen's compensation claimant may furnish to the employe, employer, workmen's compensation insurance carrier, or the ~~commission department~~ information and reports relative to a compensation claim. The testimony of any physician or surgeon who is licensed to practice where he resides or practices outside the state, may be received in evidence in compensation proceedings.

SECTION 389. 102.14 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

102.14 (2) The ~~commission shall appoint an advisory committee on workmen's compensation which shall consist of a member of the industrial commission or someone designated by the commission, who shall serve as chairman, with 5 representatives of employers and 5 representatives of employes~~ council on workmen's compensation shall advise the department in carrying out the purposes of this chapter. Such ~~committee council~~ shall submit its recommendations with respect to amendments to this chapter to each regular session of the legislature and shall report its views upon any pending bill relating to this chapter to the proper legislative committee. The ~~commission shall also appoint 3 nonvoting representatives of casualty insurance companies to sit with the committee in an advisory capacity.~~

SECTION 390. 102.17 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

102.17 (1) (b) The ~~commission department~~ may, with or without notice to either party, cause testimony to be taken, or an inspection of the premises where the injury occurred to be had, or the time books and ~~payrolls~~ payrolls of the employer to be examined by any ~~member of the commission commissioner~~ or any examiner appointed by it, and may ~~from time to time~~ direct any employe claiming compensation to be examined by a regular physician; the testimony so taken, and the results of any such inspection or examination, to be reported to the ~~commission department~~ for its consideration upon final hearing. All ex parte testimony taken by the ~~commission department~~ shall be reduced to writing and either party shall have opportunity to rebut the same on final hearing.

SECTION 391. 102.18 (2), (3) and (4) of the statutes are amended to read:

102.18 (2) The ~~industrial commission department~~ may authorize a commissioner or examiner to make findings and orders, and to review, set aside, modify or confirm compromises of claims for compensation under rules to be adopted by the ~~commission department~~. Any party in interest who is dissatisfied with the findings or order of a commissioner or examiner may file a written petition with the ~~industrial commission as a~~

~~commission to~~ department for review by the commission of the findings or order.

(3) If no petition is filed within ~~twenty~~ 20 days from the date that a copy of the findings or order of the commissioner or examiner was mailed to the last known address of the parties in interest, such findings or order shall be considered the findings or order of the ~~industrial~~ commission ~~as a body~~, unless set aside, reversed or modified by such commissioner or examiner within such time. If the findings or order are set aside by the commissioner or examiner the status shall be the same as prior to the findings or order set aside. If the findings or orders are reversed or modified by the commissioner or examiner the time for filing petition with the ~~commission~~ department shall run from the date that notice of such reversal or modification is mailed to the last known address of the parties in interest. Within ~~ten~~ 10 days after the filing of such petition with the ~~commission~~ department the commission shall either affirm, reverse, set aside or modify such findings or order in whole or in part, or direct the taking of additional testimony. Such action shall be based on a review of the evidence submitted. If the commission is satisfied that a party in interest has been prejudiced because of exceptional delay in the receipt of a copy of any findings or order it may extend the time another ~~twenty~~ 20 days for filing petition with the ~~commission~~ department.

(4) The commission ~~shall have power to~~ may remove or transfer the proceedings pending before a commissioner or examiner. It may also on its own motion, set aside, modify or change any order, findings or award (whether made by ~~an individual~~ a commissioner, an examiner or by the commission ~~as a body~~) at any time within ~~twenty~~ 20 days from the date thereof if it ~~shall discover~~ discovers any mistake therein, or upon the grounds of newly discovered evidence. Unless the liability under ~~sections~~ ss. 102.49, 102.57, 102.58, 102.59, 102.60 and 102.61 is specifically mentioned, the order, findings or award shall be deemed not to affect such liability.

SECTION 392. 102.23 (1) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

102.23 (1) (intro.) The findings of fact made by the commission acting within its powers shall, in the absence of fraud, be conclusive; and the order or award, either interlocutory or final, whether judgment has been rendered thereon or not, shall be subject to review only in the manner and upon the grounds following: Within 30 days from the date of an order or award originally made by the commission ~~as a body~~ or following the filing of petition for review with the ~~commission~~ department under s. 102.18 any party aggrieved thereby may commence, in the circuit court for Dane county, an action against the ~~commission~~ department for the review of such order or award, in which action the adverse party shall also be made defendant. In such action a complaint, which need not be verified, but which shall state the grounds upon which a review is sought, shall be served with the summons. Service upon the ~~executive~~ secretary of the ~~commission~~ department, or any ~~member of the~~ ~~commission~~ commissioner, shall be deemed completed service on all parties, but there shall be left with the person so served as many copies of the summons and complaint as there are defendants, and the ~~commission~~ department shall mail one such copy to each other defendant. If the circuit court is satisfied that a party in interest has been prejudiced because of exceptional delay in the receipt of a copy of any findings or order it may extend the time another 30 days in which such action may be commenced. The ~~commission~~ department shall serve its answer within 20 days after the service of the complaint, and, within the like time, such adverse party shall, if he so desires, serve his answer to ~~said~~ the complaint, which answer may, by way of counterclaim or cross complaint, ask for the review of the order or award referred to in the complaint, with the same effect as

if such party had commenced a separate action for the review thereof. With its answer, the ~~commission~~ department shall make and return to ~~said~~ the court of all documents and papers on file in the matter, and of all testimony which may have been taken therein, and of ~~its~~ the ~~commission's~~ order, findings and award. Such return of the ~~commission~~ department when filed in the office of the clerk of the circuit court shall, with the papers mentioned in supreme court Rule 251.25, constitute the record and it shall not be necessary to have a transcript approved. ~~Said~~ The action may thereupon be brought on for hearing before said court upon such record by either party on 10 days' notice to the other; subject, however, to the provisions of law for a change of the place of trial or the calling in of another judge. Upon such hearing, the court may confirm or set aside such order or award; and any judgment which may theretofore have been rendered thereon; but the same shall be set aside only upon the following grounds:

SECTION 393. 102.25 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

102.25 (1) ~~Said~~ ~~commission~~ The department, or any party aggrieved by a judgment entered upon the review of any order or award, may appeal therefrom within 30 days from the date of service by either party upon the other of notice of entry of judgment. However, it shall not be necessary for ~~said~~ ~~commission~~ the department or any party to ~~said~~ the action to execute, serve or file the undertakings required by ~~section~~ s. 274.11 (3) in order to perfect such appeal; but all such appeals shall be placed on the calendar of the supreme court and brought to a hearing in the same manner as state causes on such calendar. The state shall be deemed a party aggrieved, within the meaning of this subsection, whenever a judgment is entered upon such a review confirming any order or award against it. At any time before the case is set down for hearing in the supreme court, the parties may have the record remanded by the court to the ~~industrial~~ ~~commission~~ department in the same manner and for the same purposes as provided for remanding from the circuit court to the ~~industrial~~ ~~commission~~ department under ~~section~~ s. 102.24 (2).

SECTION 394. 102.42 (9) of the statutes is amended to read:

102.42 (9) Whenever an award is made by the ~~commission~~ department in behalf of a state employe, duplicate copies of the award shall be filed with the employing ~~constitutional office~~, department, ~~board~~ or ~~commission~~ or independent agency. Upon receipt of the copies of the awards, the ~~constitutional officer~~ or head of the department, ~~board~~ or ~~commission~~ or independent agency shall promptly issue a voucher in payment of the award from the proper state fund and appropriation, and shall transmit the voucher and one copy of the award to the department of administration.

SECTION 395. 102.49 (8) of the statutes is amended to read:

102.49 (8) For the proper administration of the funds available under ~~subsections~~ subs. (5) and (6) the ~~commission~~ department shall, by order, set aside in the state treasury suitable reserves to carry to maturity the liability for additional death benefit. Such moneys shall be invested by the state of Wisconsin investment board, in the securities authorized in ~~section~~ s. 206.34.

SECTION 396. 102.64 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

102.64 (1) ~~The~~ A representative of the department of justice designated by the attorney general shall represent the state in all cases involving payment into or out of the state treasury under s. 20.865 (1) (d) or s. 102.49 or 102.59. ~~He shall have the power to~~ The department of justice as directed by the attorney general may compromise the amount of such payments but such compromises shall be subject to review by the ~~commission~~ department. If the wife or husband of the deceased employe compromises her or his claim for primary death benefit, the claim of

the children of such employe under s. 102.49 shall be compromised on the same pro rata basis subject to approval by the ~~commission~~ department.

SECTION 397. 102.65 (15) of the statutes is amended to read:

102.65 (15) The expense of administering the stock fund shall be paid out of the stock fund, the expense of administering the mutual fund shall be paid out of the mutual fund, and the expense of administering the reciprocal fund shall be paid out of the reciprocal fund. In the case of domestic carriers, the expenses as fixed by the commissioner of insurance shall be subject to the approval of the court. The commissioner of insurance and the ~~industrial~~ industry, labor and human relations commissioners as coadministrators of the funds shall serve without additional compensation, but may be allowed and paid from any fund expenses incurred in the performance of their duties in connection with such fund. The compensation of those persons employed by the commissioner of insurance shall be deemed administration expenses payable from the funds. The commissioner of insurance shall include in his annual report ~~to the governor~~ under s. 1504 (4) a statement of the annual receipts and disbursements and the condition of each fund.

SECTION 398. 103.21 (3) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 399. 103.64 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

103.64 (1) The terms "place of employment", "employment", "employer", "employe", "frequenter", "deputy", "order", "local order", "general order", "special order", "welfare", "safe", and "safety", as used in sections ss. 103.64 to 103.82, shall be construed as defined in ~~section 101.01~~ ss. 101.01 and 101.02.

SECTION 400. 103.64 (2) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 401. 105.09 of the statutes is amended to read:

105.09 VISITORIAL POWER. Any commissioner or deputy ~~of the commission~~ may enter any employment office or the place of business of any employment agent for the purpose of collecting facts and statistics, examining the records or registers kept by such employment agent, and bringing to the attention of such agent any law or order of the ~~commission~~ department, or any failure on the part of such employment agent to comply therewith. No employment agent shall refuse to admit any commissioner or deputy ~~of the commission~~ to his place of business.

SECTION 402. 105.13 of the statutes is amended to read:

105.13 ~~It shall be the duty of the industrial commission, and it shall have power, jurisdiction and authority to~~ The department may issue licenses to employment agents, and ~~to~~ refuse to issue such license whenever, after due investigation, the commission ~~or a majority of the members thereof~~ finds that the character of the applicant makes him unfit to be an employment agent, or when the premises for conducting the business of an employment agent is found upon investigation to be unfit for such use, or whenever, upon investigation by the ~~commission~~ department, it is found and determined that the number of licensed employment agents or that the employment agency operated by the United States, the state or by the municipality or by ~~two~~ 2 or more thereof jointly in the community in which the applicant for a permit proposes to operate is sufficient to supply the needs of employers and employes. Any such license granted by the ~~commission~~ department may also be revoked by it upon due notice to the holder of said license, and upon due cause shown. Failure to comply with the duties, terms, conditions or provisions of ~~sections~~ ss. 105.01 to 105.15, ~~inclusive, of the statutes,~~ or with any lawful orders of the ~~commission~~ department, shall be deemed due cause to revoke such license.

SECTION 403. 108.02 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

108.02 (2) "Commission" means the ~~industrial commission~~ industry, la-

CHAPTER 276

802

bor and human relations commission.

SECTION 404. 108.02 (2m) of the statutes is created to read:

108.02 (2m) "Department" means the department of industry, labor and human relations.

SECTION 405. 108.09 (3), (6) (b) and (7) (b) of the statutes are amended to read:

108.09 (3) Unless such request for a hearing is withdrawn, each of the parties shall be afforded reasonable opportunity to be heard, and the claim thus disputed shall be promptly decided by such appeal tribunal as the ~~commission may designate or establish~~ *department designates or establishes* for this purpose, or by the commission as provided in ~~subsection sub. (6)~~. If the party requesting a hearing fails to appear at the hearing, ~~a commission~~ *an examiner* designated for this purpose may dismiss the appeal, provided that due notice of the hearing was mailed to the party's last known address and good cause for his failure to appear has not been shown said examiner within 10 days after the hearing date. If the other party fails to appear at the hearing, the appeal tribunal shall proceed with the hearing, provided that due notice of the hearing was mailed to said party's last known address, and may issue its decision without further hearing, provided that good cause for his failure to appear has not been shown said examiner within 10 days after the hearing date.

(6) (b) Either party may petition the commission for review of an appeal tribunal decision pursuant to general ~~commission~~ *department* rules, within 10 days after it was mailed to his last known address. Promptly after the filing of such a petition, the commission may either dismiss it as not timely at any level or may affirm, reverse, change, or set aside such decision, on the basis of the evidence previously submitted in such case, or direct the taking of additional testimony.

(7) (b) Any judicial review hereunder shall be confined to questions of law, and the other provisions of ch. 102 ~~of the, 1959~~ statutes, with respect to judicial review of orders and awards shall likewise apply to any decision of the commission reviewed under this section. Any such judicial action may be defended, in behalf of the commission, by any qualified attorney who is a regular salaried employe of the ~~commission~~ *department* and has been designated by it for this purpose, or at the commission's request by the ~~attorney general~~ *department of justice*.

SECTION 406. 108.10 (3) and (7) of the statutes are amended to read:

108.10 (3) Any hearing duly requested shall be held before an appeal tribunal established ~~in the manner as~~ provided by ~~section s.~~ 108.09 (4), and ~~section s.~~ 108.09 (5) shall be applicable to the proceedings before such tribunal. Within 20 days after the appeal tribunal's decision has been mailed to the employer's last known address, he may petition the commission for review thereof pursuant to general ~~commission~~ *department* rules, or the commission on recommendation of counsel may on its own motion transfer the proceedings to itself and reverse, change, or set aside the decision of the appeal tribunal on the basis of evidence previously submitted in such case, or direct the taking of additional testimony.

(7) Any determination by a deputy or any decision by an appeal tribunal or by the commission shall become conclusive with respect to the employer unless he has acted to secure a hearing or review as hereinbefore provided, but shall be binding on the ~~commission~~ *department* only ~~in-so-far~~ *insofar* as the relevant facts were included in the record which was before the deputy, appeal tribunal or commission at the time the determination or decision was issued.

SECTION 407. 108.14 (3m) of the statutes is amended to read:

108.14 (3m) In any court action to enforce the provisions of this chapter the ~~commission~~ *department* and the state may be represented by

any qualified attorney who is a regularly salaried employe of the ~~commission~~ department and is designated by it for this purpose, ~~and/~~ or at the commission's request by the ~~attorney general~~ department of justice. In case the governor designates special counsel to defend, in behalf of the state, the validity of this chapter or of any provision of Title IX of the federal Social Security Act, the expenses and compensation of such special counsel and of any experts employed by the ~~commission~~ department in connection with such proceeding may be charged to the administration fund.

SECTION 408. 108.14 (5) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

108.14 (5) (a) The council on unemployment compensation shall advise the department in carrying out the purposes of this chapter. The council shall submit its recommendations with respect to amendments of this chapter to each regular session of the legislature, and shall report its views on any pending bill relating to this chapter to the proper legislative committee.

(b) Under its authority in s. 15.04 (3), the department may appoint employment councils for industries and local districts. Each such council shall be subject to the membership requirements of s. 15.227 (3).

SECTION 409. 108.14 (5m) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 410. 108.14 (6) and (13) of the statutes are amended to read:

108.14 (6) It shall be one of the purposes of this chapter to promote the regularization of employment in enterprises, localities, industries and the state. The ~~commission~~ department, with the advice and aid of ~~its~~ ~~advisory~~ any employment ~~committees~~ councils appointed under sub. (5) (b) and the council on unemployment compensation, shall take all appropriate steps within its means to reduce and prevent unemployment. To this end the ~~commission~~ department may employ experts, and may carry on and publish the results of any investigations and research which it deems relevant, whether or not directly related to the other purposes and specific provisions of this chapter. At least once a year the ~~commission~~ department shall compile and publish a summary report stating the experience of employer accounts (without naming any employer) and covering such other materials as it deems significant in connection with the operations and purposes of this chapter.

(13) The ~~commission~~ department may, with the advice of ~~its~~ ~~state~~ ~~advisory~~ committee on this chapter the council on unemployment compensation, by general rule modify or suspend any provision of this chapter if and to the extent necessary to permit continued certification of this chapter under Title III of the federal social security act and under ss. 3303 and 3304 of the federal unemployment tax act.

SECTION 411. 108.17 (2m) of the statutes is amended to read:

108.17 (2m) When a written statement of account is issued to an employer by the ~~commission's~~ ~~unemployment~~ ~~compensation~~ department, showing as duly credited a specified amount received from him under this chapter, no other form of state receipt therefor ~~shall be~~ is required.

SECTION 412. 108.20 (1) and (2) of the statutes are amended to read:

108.20 (1) To finance the administration of this chapter and to carry out its provisions and purposes there is established the "Unemployment Administration Fund". This fund shall consist of all contributions and moneys paid to or transferred by the ~~industrial~~ ~~commission~~ department for the administration fund as provided ~~in~~ under s. 108.19, and of all moneys received for this fund by the state or by the ~~commission~~ department from any source, including all federal moneys allotted or apportioned to the state or the ~~commission~~ department for the ~~Wisconsin~~ state employment service or for administration of this chapter, or for services, facilities or

records supplied to any federal agency; ~~and~~. The ~~commission~~ is hereby ~~directed to~~ *department* shall make to federal agencies such reports as are necessary in connection with or because of such federal aid.

(2) All amounts received by the ~~commission~~ *department* for such fund shall be paid over to the state treasurer and credited to the unemployment administration fund for the administration of this chapter and the ~~Wisconsin~~ state employment service.

SECTION 413. 111.02 (10) of the statutes is amended to read:

111.02 (10) ~~The term "board"~~ "Commission" means the ~~Wisconsin~~ employment relations ~~board as created by section 111.03~~ *commission*.

SECTION 414. 111.03 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 415. 111.13 of the statutes is amended to read:

111.13 COUNCIL ON EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS. ~~The board shall appoint an advisory committee consisting of one member of the board who shall represent the general public and who shall act as chairman, and an equal number of representatives of employes and employers. In selecting the representatives of employes, the board shall give representation to organizations representing labor unions both affiliated and nonaffiliated; and in selecting representatives of employers it shall give representation to employers in agricultural, industrial, and commercial pursuits. The board~~ *commission* may refer to such ~~committee~~ *the council on employment relations* for its study and advice any matter having to do with the relations of employers and employes. ~~Such committee~~ *The council* shall give consideration to the practical operation and application of this subchapter and *subch. V* and may make recommendations with respect to amendments of ~~this subchapter~~ *these subchapters* and shall report to the proper legislative committee its view on any pending bill relating to ~~this subchapter~~. Regular meetings of such ~~committee~~ shall be held on the first Monday of each alternate month following ~~May 2, 1947~~. Special meetings of the ~~committee~~ may be called at other times by the board. Members of the advisory ~~committee~~ shall receive no salary or compensation for service on said ~~committee~~, but shall be entitled to reimbursement for necessary expenses ~~these subchapters~~.

SECTION 416. 111.32 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

111.32 (4) ~~The term "commission"~~ "Department" means the ~~industrial commission of the state of Wisconsin~~ *department of industry, labor and human relations*.

SECTION 417. 111.33 of the statutes is amended to read:

111.33 DEPARTMENT TO ADMINISTER. ~~Sections 111.31 to 111.36~~ *This subchapter* shall be administered by the ~~industrial commission~~ *department of industry, labor and human relations*. The ~~commission~~ shall have authority from time to time to ~~department~~ may make, amend and rescind such rules and regulations as ~~may be~~ *are* necessary to carry out this subchapter. The ~~commission~~ *department* may, by ~~one or more of its members, a commissioner or by~~ such agents or agencies as it ~~may designate~~ *designates*, conduct in any part of this state any proceeding, hearing, investigation or inquiry necessary to the performance of its functions. The ~~commission~~ shall at the end of every year make a report in writing to the government, stating in detail the work it has done and its recommendations, if any.

SECTION 418. 111.34 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 419. 111.36 (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

111.36 POWERS OF DEPARTMENT.

SECTION 420. 111.51 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

111.51 (4) ~~"Board"~~ "Commission" means the ~~Wisconsin~~ employment relations ~~board~~ *commission*.

SECTION 421. 111.70 (1) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

111.70 (1) (c) ~~“Board”~~ *“Commission”* means the ~~Wisconsin~~ ~~employment relations board~~ *commission*.

SECTION 422. 111.80 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

111.80 (4) It is the policy of this state, in order to preserve and promote the interests of the public, the state employe and the state as an employer alike, to encourage the practices and procedure of collective bargaining in state employment subject to the requirements of the public service and related laws, rules and policies governing state employment, by establishing standards of fair conduct in state employment relations by providing a convenient, expeditious and impartial tribunal in which these interests may have their respective rights determined. In the furtherance of this policy the ~~director~~ *secretary of administration* shall establish a ~~division of employment relations, which an employment relations capability within the department of administration and~~ shall, along with the particular appointing authority, or his representative, represent the state in its responsibility as an employer under this subchapter. The ~~division~~ *department* shall be responsible for establishing and maintaining, wherever practicable, consistent employment relations policies and practices throughout the state service.

SECTION 423. 111.81 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

111.81 (1) ~~“Board”~~ *“Commission”* means the ~~Wisconsin~~ ~~employment relations board~~ *created by s. 111.03 commission*.

SECTION 424. 111.81 (5) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

111.81 (5) *“Department”* means the department of administration.

SECTION 425. 111.88 (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

111.88 (intro.) Whenever the representative, which has either been certified by the ~~board~~ *commission* after an election, or has been duly recognized by the state employer as the exclusive representative of state employes in an appropriate collective bargaining unit, and the appointing authority, together with the ~~division of employment relations~~ *department*, after a reasonable period of negotiation, are deadlocked with respect to any dispute existing between them arising from collective bargaining or from the application or interpretation of any provisions of a collective bargaining agreement existing between them, either party, or the parties jointly, may petition the ~~board~~ *commission* in writing, to initiate fact finding, as hereafter provided, to make recommendations to resolve the existing deadlock.

SECTION 426. 111.89 of the statutes is amended to read:

111.89 Upon the completion of negotiations with a labor organization representing a majority of the employes in a collective bargaining unit and the appointing officer, together with the ~~division of employment relations~~ *department*, if a settlement is reached, the employer shall reduce the same to writing in the form of an agreement. Such agreement may include a term for which it shall remain in effect not to exceed 3 years. Either party to such agreement shall have a right of action to enforce the same by petition to the ~~board~~ *commission*. No agreement shall become effective until it has been submitted by the appointing authority or his representative to the ~~division of employment relations~~ *department* and approved by the ~~division~~ *secretary of administration*.

SECTION 427. 111.93 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 428. 115.01 (20) of the statutes is created to read:

115.01 (20) DEPARTMENT. *“Department”* means the department of public instruction.

SECTION 429. 115.26 and 115.27 of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 430. 115.29 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

CHAPTER 276

806

115.29 (1) Designate the deputy state superintendent or another employe ~~under the state superintendent of the department~~ as his representative on any body on which the state superintendent is required to serve, except the *board of regents of the university of Wisconsin, the co-ordinating committee coordinating council for higher education and the board of regents of state colleges universities.*

SECTION 431. 115.30 (1), (2), (3), (4) (intro.) and (d) and (5) of the statutes are amended to read:

115.30 (1) The ~~state superintendent~~ *department* shall prepare for the use of school officers suitable forms for making reports, and suitable outlines as aids in conducting school meetings. School district officers and employes shall make such reports to ~~him~~ *the department* as will enable ~~him~~ *it* to distribute state school fund appropriations and state educational appropriations to the schools and persons entitled thereto, and to properly discharge the other duties of ~~his office~~ *the department.*

(2) The ~~state superintendent~~ *department* may require all school boards to report to ~~him~~ *it*, on forms provided, the name of the school and its location, the name and address of the teachers, the number of months of school maintained during the year, the opening and closing dates, the names and ages of all pupils enrolled between the ages of 7 and 18, the names and post-office addresses and places of residence of the parents of such pupils, the number of the school district and the distance such pupils reside from the schoolhouse, the number of days each pupil was present during each month and any other information requested by ~~him~~ *it.*

(3) On or before each October 15, each administrator of a public or private school system shall submit, on forms provided by the ~~state superintendent~~ *department*, a statement of the enrollment on the 3rd Friday of September in the elementary and high school grades under his jurisdiction to the ~~state superintendent~~ *the department* which shall prepare such reports as will enable the public and private schools to make projections regarding school buildings, teacher supply and funds required.

(4) (intro.) ~~The~~ *In his annual report under s. 15.04 (4), the state superintendent also shall report to the governor, during the last half of each even-numbered year:*

(d) The work done by ~~his staff~~ *the department* in the performance of ~~the its~~ duties of ~~his office.~~

(5) The ~~state superintendent~~ *department* shall make certified copies, when required, of any papers deposited or filed or records kept in ~~his office~~ *the department*, and of any act or decision made by ~~him~~ *it.* ~~His~~ *The* fee therefor shall be 15 cents per page.

SECTION 432. 115.31 (1) and (4) of the statutes are amended to read:

115.31 (1) The ~~state superintendent~~ *department* shall prepare and publish courses of study for the public schools, and the other schools under ~~his~~ *its* supervision, and furnish copies thereof to the school boards.

(4) The ~~state superintendent~~ *department* shall promote and supervise musical education in the public schools. ~~He~~ *The state superintendent* shall appoint a supervisor of musical education.

SECTION 433. 115.37 of the statutes is created to read:

115.37 COUNCIL OF THE BLIND. The council of the blind shall make recommendations as to procedures and policies affecting any problem of the visually handicapped before the department. The council shall advise on such services, activities, programs, investigations and researches as in its judgment will contribute to the welfare of visually handicapped persons. The state superintendent shall seek the advice of and consult with the council on problems and policy changes affecting the visually handicapped in the department's jurisdiction, and the council may initiate consultations with the department. Notwithstanding any provision to the

contrary, the council shall have access to files, records and statistics kept in the department which relate to matters concerning the visually handicapped.

SECTION 434. 115.40 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

115.40 (3) RULE-MAKING POWER. ~~There is created the educational approval council to consist of such representatives of state agencies and such other persons with a demonstrated interest in educational programs as the governor selects. Members of the council shall serve at the convenience of the governor. The council board shall prescribe its rules and establish standards necessary to carry out its purpose. The council shall, for administrative purposes, be attached to the department of public instruction.~~

SECTION 435. 115.40 (4) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 436. 115.77 (1) and (5) of the statutes are amended to read:

115.77 DIVISION FOR HANDICAPPED CHILDREN. (1) ~~There is created under the state superintendent a bureau for handicapped children. The state superintendent shall appoint, with the status of assistant state superintendent, a person to serve as director administrator of the bureau division.~~

(5) (a) ~~The bureau through its crippled children division is responsible for assembling all records on crippled children from birth to 21 years of age and for providing facilities for diagnosis through orthopedic field clinics and for aftercare for children under 21 years of age who are crippled or who are suffering from conditions which lead to crippling. Such responsibility shall be for those facilities not provided through hospitals, by private physicians or through private organizations. The bureau division shall approve applications and arrange for orthopedic hospital care when state aid is granted for any part of the cost. This subsection shall be administered in accordance with requirements of the federal social security act.~~

(b) ~~The director administrator shall submit to the proper federal authorities a state plan, prepared by the medical director of the crippled children division in accordance with federal requirements, for services for crippled children. The state plan may be revised as conditions require. The bureau division shall make reports, in such form and containing such information as the proper federal authorities require, and shall comply with all requirements made to assure the correctness and verification of such reports.~~

SECTION 437. 115.80 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

115.80 (3) The school board, board of control or county handicapped children's education board maintaining special schools, classes, centers or other services shall report annually to the ~~state superintendent department~~, and at such other times as ~~he it~~ directs, such information as ~~he it~~ requires. The report shall include the number of pupils instructed or provided service, their residence and the period of time each was instructed or otherwise served during the school year. Annually, each board shall submit to the ~~state superintendent department~~ an itemized statement on oath of all receipts and disbursements on account of such special schools, classes, centers or other services during the preceding school year.

SECTION 438. 118.19 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

118.19 (5) After written notice of the charges and of an opportunity for defense, any certificate or license to teach issued by the ~~state superintendent department~~ may be revoked by ~~him~~ the state superintendent for incompetency or immoral conduct on the part of the holder.

SECTION 439. 126.01 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

126.01 GRAIN AND WAREHOUSE COMMISSION. (1) DEFINITIONS. As used in this chapter, unless the context requires otherwise:

CHAPTER 276

808

- (a) "Commission" means the grain and warehouse commission.
 - (b) "Warehouse" includes grain elevator.
 - (c) "Grain" includes flaxseed.
 - (d) "Superior" is the city of Superior, Wisconsin.
- (2) LEGAL ACTIONS. The commission may sue and be sued.

SECTION 440. 126.02 and 126.03 of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 441. 126.04 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 442. 126.05 (6) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 443. 133.01 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

133.01 (2) ~~It shall be the duty of the attorney general to~~ *The department of justice shall enforce the provisions of this section and to bring an action for the recovery of the forfeiture herein provided for, whenever complaint shall be made to him the attorney general and evidence produced which shall satisfy him to his satisfaction that there has been any a violation thereof. The several Any district attorneys attorney shall, upon the advice of the attorney general, who may appear as counsel in any such case, institute such actions or proceedings as he shall deem the attorney general deems necessary to recover any forfeiture incurred on account of the violation of any of the provisions of this chapter. A representative of the department of justice designated by the attorney general may appear as counsel in any such case.*

SECTION 444. 133.02 of the statutes is amended to read:

133.02 The several circuit courts may prevent or restrain, by injunction or otherwise, the formation of any such contract or combination or the execution of the purposes thereof. ~~The several Any district attorneys attorney shall, upon the advice of the attorney general, who may appear as counsel in any such case, institute such actions or proceedings by complaint or information as in ordinary actions and a. A representative of the department of justice designated by the attorney general may appear as counsel in any such case. A private party by complaint may institute actions or proceedings, as shall be deemed necessary to prevent or restrain a violation of s. 133.01, setting forth the cause and grounds for the intervention of the court and praying that such violation, whether intended or continuing, shall be enjoined or otherwise prohibited. When the parties informed against or complained of have been served with a copy of the information or complaint and cited to answer the same the court shall proceed, as soon as may be in accordance with its rules, to the hearing and determination of the case; and pending the filing of the answer to such information or complaint may, at any time, upon proper notice, make such temporary restraining order or prohibition as is just. Whenever it appears to the court that the ends of justice require that other persons should be made parties to the action or proceeding the court may cause them to be brought in made parties in such manner as it directs. Where the action or proceeding is brought and maintained by a private party he may demand and recover costs and reasonable attorney fees, and all pleadings shall be served on the attorney general department of justice.~~

SECTION 445. 133.19 of the statutes is amended to read:

133.19 The attorney general shall institute, manage, control, and direct, ~~by himself, his deputy or any of his assistants,~~ in the proper county, all prosecutions for violations of ~~sections~~ ss. 133.17 to 133.185 and for such purpose shall have and exercise all powers conferred upon district attorneys in such case. ~~It shall be the duty of the~~ *The district attorney in the county in which any such prosecution may be is instituted or pending to shall cooperate cooperate with and assist the attorney general department of justice in such prosecution.*

SECTION 446. 133.20 of the statutes is amended to read:

133.20 ~~If complaint is made to the attorney general that any~~ *Complaints*

that a corporation is guilty of unfair discrimination, as defined by ss. 133.17 to 133.185, ~~he may be made to the attorney general.~~ The department of justice shall investigate such ~~complaint and for that purpose he complaints.~~ For investigative purposes the department of justice may subpoena witnesses, administer oaths, take testimony and require the production of books or other documents, ~~and, If in his opinion the department of justice determines that sufficient grounds exist therefore, he, it may prosecute an action in the name of the state in the proper court to annul the charter or revoke the permit of such the corporation, as the case may be, and to permanently enjoin such the corporation from doing business in this state, and if in such action the court finds that such corporation is guilty of unfair discrimination, as defined by ss. 133.17 to 133.185, such court may. On proof of a substantial and wilful violation the court may, upon such terms as it deems just and in the public interest, annul the charter or revoke the permit of such the corporation, and may permanently enjoin it the corporation from transacting business in this state, upon such terms as the court deems just and in the public interest, but only upon proof of a substantial and wilful violation of such statutory provision.~~

SECTION 447. 133.22 of the statutes is amended to read:

133.22 DUTY OF DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE. Whenever the attorney general ~~shall be~~ is notified or ~~have~~ has reason to believe that any such corporation has violated any provision of section s. 133.21 it shall be his duty forthwith ~~to the department of justice shall~~ address to any such corporation or to any director or officer thereof such inquiries as he may ~~deem~~ deem necessary for the purpose of determining whether or not such corporation has violated any provision of said section, ~~and it shall be the duty of such.~~ The corporation, director or officer so addressed ~~to~~ shall promptly and fully answer in writing, under oath, such inquiries; and in case such corporation, director or officer thereof ~~shall fail~~ fails or ~~neglect~~ neglects to do so within ~~sixty~~ 60 days from the receipt of such inquiries, unless such time is extended in writing by the attorney general, it shall be his duty ~~to the department of justice shall~~ proceed against such corporation ~~as provided in the next section under s. 133.23.~~

SECTION 448. 133.23 of the statutes is amended to read:

133.23 ~~For~~ If a complaint ~~being~~ is made ~~to the attorney general~~ and evidence produced ~~to him which satisfies him to the satisfaction of the attorney general~~ that any such corporation has violated any of the conditions specified in ss. s. 133.21 and or 133.22, ~~he~~ the department of justice shall forthwith bring an action in the name of the state in any circuit court of this state to have the charter, or certificate of authority to transact business in this state, of such corporation forfeited, canceled and annulled, and upon due proof ~~being made thereof~~ to the satisfaction of the court, judgment shall be entered therefor. All contracts or agreements made by any person while a member of any combination, conspiracy, trust or pool prohibited by ss. s. 133.01 and or 133.21, ~~or any of them,~~ and which contract or agreement is founded upon, or is the result of, or grows out of, or is connected with, any violation of said sections, ~~or any of them,~~ either directly or indirectly, shall be void and no recovery thereon or benefit therefrom shall be had by or for any such person. Any payments made upon, under or pursuant to such contract or agreement to or for the benefit of such person, may be recovered in an action by the party making any such payment, his heirs, personal representatives or assigns; provided that suit for such recovery ~~shall be~~ is brought within 6 years after the making of said contract or agreement.

SECTION 449. 135.12 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

135.12 (3) A copy of the complaint shall be served upon the person complained against by personal service or by mailing ~~same~~ to his last known business address ~~and in.~~ In case the complaint is against a person, who is

an officer, director, member or employe of a corporation or partnership, a copy of the complaint shall also be served upon such corporation or partnership. The person ~~so~~ served shall file his answer ~~therein~~ with the board within ~~twenty~~ 20 days after such service. The board shall ~~thereupon~~ set the matter for hearing as promptly as possible and within ~~thirty~~ 30 days after the date of filing of the answer. At all such hearings ~~the attorney general of the state, or an assistant designated by him, a representative of the department of justice designated by the attorney general or the district attorney, or an assistant designated by him,~~ shall be present and represent the interests of the public. The defendant and, if there ~~be~~ is a complaint other than the board, the complainant may appear at such hearing in person or by attorney or agent.

SECTION 450. 139.01 (10) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

139.01 (10) "Secretary" means the secretary of revenue.

SECTION 451. 139.08 of the statutes is amended to read:

139.08 POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE SECRETARY OF REVENUE.

(1) The ~~commissioner~~ secretary of revenue shall ~~enforce and administer~~ ss. 139.01 to 139.25. He shall design, procure and sell the stamps herein provided for and shall prescribe the manner in which stamps are affixed and canceled. He shall collect and keep a record of all taxes collected. He shall keep a record of the sale of all stamps which shall show the dates of the sale thereof and the names of the purchasers.

(2) The ~~commissioner~~ secretary of revenue and the administrator of the division of criminal investigation of the department of justice shall ~~make~~ each adopt rules necessary to carry out their respective duties under this chapter.

(3) *The division of criminal investigation of the department of justice shall enforce ss. 139.01 to 139.25.* The duly authorized employes of the ~~commissioner~~ department of justice have all necessary police powers to prevent violations of ss. 66.054, 139.01 to 139.25 and ch. 176.

(4) ~~The commissioner or his~~ Duly authorized employes, of the department of justice and the department of revenue and any sheriff, policeman, marshal or constable, within their respective jurisdictions, may at all reasonable hours enter ~~in and upon~~ any licensed premises, and examine the books, papers and records of any brewer, manufacturer, bottler, rectifier, wholesaler or retailer, for the purpose of inspecting the same and determining whether the tax imposed by ss. 139.01 to 139.25 has been fully paid, and ~~have power to~~ may inspect and examine, according to law, any premises where fermented malt beverages or intoxicating liquors are manufactured, sold, exposed for sale, possessed or stored, for the purpose of inspecting the same and determining whether the tax imposed by ss. 139.01 to 139.25 has been fully paid, and ~~have power to~~ may inspect and examine, according to law, any premises where fermented malt beverages or intoxicating liquors are manufactured, sold, exposed for sale, possessed or stored, for the purpose of inspecting the same and determining whether the tax imposed by said sections has been fully paid, and whether said sections are being complied with. Any refusal to permit such examination of such premises shall constitute sufficient reason for the refusal of the ~~commissioner~~ secretary to furnish to such person so refusing any stamps. Such refusal shall automatically operate as a revocation of any license or permit granted for the sale of any fermented malt beverages or intoxicating liquors and in addition shall be deemed a misdemeanor, punishable ~~as provided in~~ under s. 139.25 (5).

SECTION 452. 139.12 of the statutes is amended to read:

139.12 No suit shall be maintained in any court to restrain or delay the collection or payment of the tax levied in ss. 139.01 to 139.25. The ag-

grieved taxpayer shall pay the tax when due, and, if he pays under protest, may at any time within 90 days from the date of such payment, sue the state to recover the tax so paid, the summons and complaint to be served by delivering a copy to the attorney general or leaving it at his office in the capitol with one of his assistants or clerks as provided in s. 262.06 (3). If it is determined that the tax, or any part thereof, was wrongfully collected, the department of administration shall issue a warrant on the state treasurer for the amount adjudged to have been wrongfully collected, and the treasurer shall pay the warrant out of the general fund. A separate suit need not be filed for each separate payment made by any taxpayer, but a recovery may be had in one suit for as many payments as ~~may~~ have been made.

SECTION 453. 139.22 of the statutes is amended to read:

139.22 Whenever ~~the commissioner~~ *a duly authorized employe of the department of revenue or the department of justice* or any sheriff, policeman, marshal or constable, within his respective jurisdiction, discovers any fermented malt beverages upon any premises other than the premises of a brewer or bottler, or any intoxicating liquor upon any premises other than the premises of a manufacturer, rectifier, winery or wholesaler, and upon which the tax has not been paid or which was possessed, kept, stored, manufactured, sold, distributed or transported in violation of ss. 139.01 to 139.25 and chs. 66 and 176, ~~the commissioner~~ *the employe* or any such officer may forthwith seize said fermented malt beverages or intoxicating liquors. Any such fermented malt beverages or intoxicating liquors so seized shall be held by the ~~commissioner~~ *department of justice* and disposed of through the department of administration ~~as provided in~~ *under* s. 176.62 (2) (b).

SECTION 454. 139.30 (2) and (3) of the statutes are repealed and recreated to read:

139.30 (2) "Department" means the department of revenue.

(3) "Secretary" means the secretary of revenue.

SECTION 455. 139.39 (1), (2) and (3) of the statutes are amended to read:

139.39 (1) The ~~commissioner~~ *secretary* shall administer ~~and enforce~~ ss. 139.30 to 139.44 ~~and~~. *The administrator of the division of criminal investigation of the department of justice shall enforce* ~~ss.~~ *ss.* 134.65 and 139.30 to 139.44. ~~He~~ *Each* shall adopt rules necessary to ~~do so~~ *administer and enforce his respective duties*.

(2) ~~The commissioner or authorized~~ *Authorized* personnel of the department of *justice and the department of revenue*, and any sheriff, policeman, marshal or constable, within their respective jurisdictions, may at all reasonable hours enter the premises of any permittee or retailer and examine the books and records to determine whether the tax ~~imposed~~ *imposed* by s. 139.31 has been fully paid and may enter and inspect any premises where cigarettes are made, sold or stored to determine whether ss. 139.30 to 139.44 are being complied with.

(3) The ~~commissioner~~ *secretary* may suspend or revoke the permit of any permittee who violates ss. 100.30 or 139.30 to 139.44 or any rules adopted ~~by the commissioner~~ *under sub. (1)*.

SECTION 456. 140.52 (2) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 457. 144.01 (14) and (15) of the statutes are created to read:

144.01 (14) "Department", the department of natural resources.

(15) "Secretary", the secretary of natural resources.

SECTION 458. 144.023 (1) to (4) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 459. 144.023 (5) of the statutes is renumbered 144.023 and amended to read:

144.023 FINANCIAL INTEREST PROHIBITED. The ~~director and deputy director of the department of resource development, the head of the water resources division, any regional director of such division~~ *secretary* and any other person in a position of administrative responsibility in the department may not have a financial interest in any enterprise which might profit by weak or preferential administration or enforcement of the powers and duties of ~~such division~~ *the department*.

SECTION 460. 144.025 (3) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

144.025 (3) WATER RESOURCES COUNCIL. The water resources council shall advise the department on the setting of water quality standards and other state water problems.

SECTION 461. 144.025 (5) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

144.025 (5) (a) There shall be a regional water resources ~~advisory~~ board for each region composed of the regional director, who shall serve as executive secretary; an employe of the ~~state board of health~~ *department of health and social services* serving in the region, appointed by and serving at the pleasure of the ~~state health officer~~ *secretary of health and social services*; an employe of the ~~conservation~~ department of *natural resources* serving in the region, appointed by and serving at the pleasure of the ~~conservation director~~ *secretary of natural resources*; and 5 citizen members appointed by and serving at the pleasure of the governor. The executive director of the Minnesota-Wisconsin boundary area commission shall serve as a member for regions contiguous to the Minnesota boundary. The officers of the regional boards shall be selected from the citizen members.

SECTION 462. 144.09 of the statutes is amended to read:

144.09 Records required by the department shall be kept by the owners and the department supplied with certified copies and such other information as it may require. Agents of the department may enter buildings, structures and premises of owners supplying the public or industrial plants with water, ice, sewerage systems, sewage or refuse disposal service and private properties to collect samples, records and information, and to ascertain if the rules ~~and regulations~~ and orders of the department are complied with. The ~~attorney general~~ *department of justice* shall assist in the enforcement of this chapter.

SECTION 463. 144.26 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

144.26 (2) (a) "Subcommittee" means the water subcommittee of the natural resources ~~committee~~ *council* of state agencies.

SECTION 464. 144.26 (2) (b) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 465. 144.37 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

144.37 AIR POLLUTION CONTROL COUNCIL. The air pollution control council shall advise the natural resources board on proposed and existing rules and any matters pertaining to air pollution.

SECTION 466. 144.40 of the statutes is amended to read:

144.40 (1) If the ~~director~~ *secretary* finds that a generalized condition of air pollution exists and that it creates an emergency requiring immediate action to protect human health or safety, ~~the director~~ *he* shall order persons causing or contributing to the air pollution to reduce or discontinue immediately the emission of air contaminants, and such order shall fix a place and time, not later than 24 hours thereafter, for a hearing to be held before the department. Not more than 24 hours after the commencement of such hearing, and without adjournment thereof, the ~~resource development~~ *natural resources* board shall affirm, modify or set aside the order of the ~~director~~ *secretary*.

(2) In the absence of a generalized condition of air pollution of the

type referred to in sub. (1), if the ~~director~~ *secretary* finds that emissions from the operation of one or more air contaminant sources is causing imminent danger to human health or safety, he may order the persons responsible for the operations in question to reduce or discontinue emissions immediately, without regard to s. 144.35. In such event, the requirements for hearing and affirmance, modification or setting aside of orders set forth in sub. (1) shall apply.

SECTION 467. 144.41 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

144.41 (3) If the department finds that the location, character or extent of particular concentrations of population, air contaminant sources, the geographic, topographic or meteorological considerations, or any combinations thereof, are such as to make impracticable the maintenance of appropriate levels of air quality without an area-wide air pollution control program, the ~~resource development board~~ *department* may determine the boundaries within which such program is necessary and require it.

SECTION 468. 144.536 of the statutes is amended to read:

144.536 ENFORCEMENT OF ORDERS; DUTY OF DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE; EXPENSES. All orders of the department shall be enforced by the attorney general. The circuit court of Dane county or any other county where violation of such an order has occurred in whole or in part shall have jurisdiction to enforce the order by injunctive and other relief appropriate to the enforcement of the order. For purposes of such proceeding where the order prohibits in whole or in part any pollution, a violation thereof shall be deemed a public nuisance. The expenses incurred by the ~~attorney general and his staff~~ *department of justice* in assisting with the administration of ch. 144 shall be charged to the appropriation made by s. 20.370 (5).

SECTION 469. 144.537 of the statutes is amended to read:

144.537 The department shall hold a public hearing relating to alleged or potential environmental pollution upon the verified complaint of 6 or more citizens filed with the department. The complaint shall state the name and address of a person within the state authorized to receive service of answer and other papers in behalf of complainants. The department may order the complainants to file security for costs in a sum deemed to be adequate but not to exceed \$100 within 20 days after the service upon them of a copy of such order and all proceedings on the part of such complainants shall be stayed until security is filed. The department shall serve a copy of the complaint and notice of the hearing upon the alleged or potential polluter either personally or by registered mail directed to his last known post-office address at least 20 days prior to the time set for the hearing which shall be held not later than 90 days from the filing of the complaint. The respondent shall file his verified answer to the complaint with the department and serve a copy on the person so designated by the complainants not later than 5 days prior to the date set for the hearing, unless the time for answering is extended by the department for cause shown. For purposes of any hearing under this chapter, the ~~director~~ *secretary* may issue subpoenas and administer oaths. Within 90 days after the closing of the hearing, the department shall make and file its findings of fact, conclusions of law and order, which shall be subject to review under ch. 227. If the department determines that any complaint has been filed maliciously or in bad faith it shall so find, and the person complained against shall be entitled to recover his expenses on the hearing in a civil action. Any situation, project or activity which upon continuance or implementation would cause, beyond reasonable doubt, a degree of pollution that normally would require clean-up action if it already existed, shall be considered potential environmental pollution.

SECTION 470. 144.55 of the statutes is amended to read:

CHAPTER 276

814

144.55 Every owner of an industrial establishment shall furnish to the department all information required by it in the discharge of its duties under s. 144.025 (2). Any member of the ~~resource development~~ *natural resources* board or any employe of the department may enter any industrial establishment for the purpose of collecting such information, and no owner of an industrial establishment shall refuse to admit such member or employe. The department shall make such inspections at frequent intervals. The ~~director~~ *secretary* and all members of the board shall have power for all purposes falling within the department's jurisdiction to administer oaths, issue subpoenas, compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of necessary or essential data.

SECTION 471. 144.76 (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

144.76 (title) NATURAL BEAUTY COUNCIL.

SECTION 472. 144.76 (1) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 473. 144.76 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

144.76 (2) The council shall employ, under the classified service, ~~a director and~~ such staff as is necessary to perform its duties.

SECTION 474. 146.04 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

146.04 (3) If the ~~industrial commission~~ *department of industry, labor and human relations* believes this section is being or has been violated, it shall advise the attorney general, giving the grounds of its belief, and the ~~attorney general~~ *department of justice* or, under ~~his~~ *the* direction of ~~the department of justice~~, the district attorney, shall ~~forthwith~~ institute proceedings for enforcement and punishment.

SECTION 475. Chapter 165 (title) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

CHAPTER 165.

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE.

SECTION 476. 165.01 (1), (2) and (3) of the statutes are renumbered 165.75 (1), (2), and (3) and amended to read:

165.75 CRIME LABORATORY DIVISION. (1) Unless the context clearly requires otherwise the words used in this chapter shall have the meaning ascribed to them in this subsection as follows:

(a) "Laboratory" means the ~~state~~ *state crime laboratory division*.

(b) "Board" means the ~~state crime laboratory board~~.

(c) "Superintendent" "Administrator" means the ~~superintendent administrator~~ *superintendent administrator of the state crime laboratory division*.

(d) (c) "Employe" means any person in the service of the laboratory other than the ~~superintendent administrator~~.

(2) ~~There is created a state~~ *The crime laboratory under the control of the state crime laboratory board, which of the department of justice shall be located in the city of Madison. The personnel of such the laboratory shall consist of one superintendent administrator and such employes as are provided for authorized under s. 20.922, and for such purpose the state crime laboratory and such superintendent shall be deemed incorporated into such section.*

(3) (a) The purpose of the laboratory is to establish, maintain and operate a ~~state~~ *state* crime laboratory in order to provide technical assistance to local law enforcement officers in the various fields of scientific investigation in the aid of law enforcement. Without limitation because of enumeration the laboratory shall maintain services for the preservation and scientific analysis of evidence material to the investigation and prosecution of crimes in such fields as ballistics, chemistry, handwriting comparison, metallurgy, comparative micrography, lie-detector or deception test operations, finger printing, toxicology and pathology.

(b) The ~~superintendent~~ *administrator* and employes of the laboratory are not peace officers and shall have no power of arrest or to serve or execute criminal process, nor shall they be appointed as deputy sheriffs nor in any manner clothed with police powers by appointment or election to any office. They shall not undertake investigation of criminal conduct except upon the request of a sheriff, coroner, district attorney, warden or superintendent of any state prison, attorney general or governor. The head of any state department may request investigations but in such cases the services shall be limited to the field of health, welfare and law enforcement responsibility which has by statute been vested in the particular state department.

(c) Upon such request the laboratory shall collaborate fully in the complete investigation of criminal conduct including field investigation at the scene of the crime and for this purpose may equip a mobile unit or units including lie detectors or deception test equipment.

(d) The services of the laboratory available to such officer shall include appearances in court as expert witnesses.

(e) The ~~superintendent in his discretion~~ *administrator* may decline to provide laboratory service in any case not involving a potential charge of felony.

(f) The services of the laboratory may be provided in civil cases in which the state or any department, bureau, agency or officer of the state is a party in an official capacity, when requested to do so by the attorney general.

SECTION 477. 165.01 (4) and (5) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 478. 165.01 (6), (7) and (8) of the statutes are renumbered 165.76 (1), (2) and (3), respectively, and amended to read:

165.76 ADMINISTRATOR. (1) ~~As soon as possible after the first members of the board shall enter upon the duties of their office, they~~ *The attorney general shall appoint as superintendent administrator of the laboratory, after making proper investigation and ascertainment to their his own satisfaction, a person who is acceptable as to physical and mental qualifications, character, reputation, technical training, education and competency to perform efficiently the duties required of such office the administrator. The provisions of Chapter 16 shall not apply to such superintendent. The administrator shall be appointed outside the classified service and he may be removed for cause on affirmative vote of two-thirds of the members of the board. The board shall fill any vacancy in such office by the attorney general.*

(2) The ~~superintendent~~ *administrator* shall ~~devote his entire time to his duties, shall be accountable to the board and shall file a bond of \$7,500 conditioned upon the faithful performance of the duties of his office.~~

(3) The ~~board~~ *laboratory* shall charge the county \$17.50 per manhour up to 60 manhours per case referred to it by a county for services performed by the laboratory. The charges applicable to cases referred to the laboratory by a county upon its request, and when the service is rendered shall be collected from the county, along with other state taxes and charges, in the next apportionment of state special charges. On October 1 of each year ~~the director of the laboratory shall certify to the department of administration the amounts so determined to be due from each county for services provided by the laboratory in the preceding state fiscal year, and such amounts shall be included in the next following apportionment of state special charges as described by s. 70.60, and when paid into the state treasury shall be credited to s. 20.455 (2) (g). All charges in excess of \$1,050 on any one case referred to the laboratory by the county shall be paid by the state.~~

SECTION 479. 165.01 (9) of the statutes is repealed.

CHAPTER 276

816

SECTION 480. Subchapter I (title) of chapter 165 of the statutes is created to read:

SUBCHAPTER I.

LEGAL SERVICES.

(to precede section 165.015)

SECTION 481. 165.015 (intro.) of the statutes is created to read:

165.015 DUTIES. (intro.) The attorney general shall:

SECTION 482. 165.02 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 483. 165.03 of the statutes is renumbered 165.78.

SECTION 484. 165.04, 165.05 and 165.06 of the statutes are renumbered 165.79, 165.80 and 165.81 and amended to read:

165.79 (1) Evidence, information, and analyses of evidence obtained from law enforcement officers by the ~~superintendent administrator~~ or employes of the laboratory ~~shall be~~ is privileged and not available to persons other than law enforcement officers nor ~~shall~~ is the defendant ~~be~~ entitled to an inspection of information and evidence submitted to the laboratory by the state or of the laboratory's findings ~~thereon~~, or to examine laboratory personnel as witnesses concerning the same, prior to trial, except to the extent that the same is used by the state at a preliminary hearing. Upon request of a defendant in a felony action, approved by the presiding judge, the laboratory shall conduct analyses of evidence upon behalf of such defendant; ~~in such event no~~. No prosecuting officer ~~shall be~~ is entitled to an inspection of information and evidence submitted to the laboratory by the defendant, or of the laboratory's findings ~~thereon~~, or to examine laboratory personnel as witnesses concerning the same, prior to trial, except to the extent that the same is used by the accused at a preliminary hearing. Employes of the laboratory who made examinations or analyses of evidence shall attend the criminal trial as witnesses, without subpoena, upon reasonable written notice from either party requesting such attendance.

(2) Upon the termination or cessation of the criminal proceedings, the privilege of the testimony obtained by the laboratory may be waived by the ~~superintendent administrator~~. Thereafter ~~the superintendent~~ The administrator and employes of the laboratory may ~~then~~ be subpoenaed in civil actions in regard to any information and analysis of evidence previously obtained in such criminal investigation, but the laboratory shall not ~~be engaged~~ engage in any investigation requested solely for the preparation for trial of a civil matter. Upon appearance as a witness or receipt of a subpoena or notice to prepare for trial in a civil action, or appearance either with or without subpoena, the experts shall be compensated by the party at whose request the appearance or preparation was made in a reasonable amount to be determined by the trial judge, which fee shall be paid into the state treasury. In fixing such compensation the court may give consideration to the time spent in obtaining and analyzing the evidence for the purposes of criminal proceedings.

(3) At any preliminary examination a report of the laboratory's findings with reference to all or any part of the evidence submitted ~~to it~~, certified as correct by the ~~superintendent administrator~~, shall, when offered by the state or the accused, be received as evidence of the facts and findings ~~therein~~ stated, if relevant and otherwise admissible in evidence. The expert who made the findings need not be called as a witness unless his appearance is demanded by the opposing party, in which case the magistrate shall so order and adjourn the hearing to a time when the expert is available to testify.

165.80 For the purpose of ~~co-ordinating~~ coordinating the work of the laboratory with the research departments located in the ~~state~~ university

of Wisconsin, the ~~board~~ attorney general and the university of Wisconsin may agree for the use of laboratories and physical facilities in the university and the exchange and utilization of personnel between the laboratory and the university. ~~A committee shall be appointed by the president of the university consisting of staff members of such university departments as the president may determine are engaged in fields interrelated with the work of the laboratory, which committee~~ The university and crime laboratory cooperation council shall act in an advisory capacity to the ~~board~~ attorney general.

165.81 Whenever the ~~superintendent~~ administrator is informed by the submitting officer or agency that physical evidence in the possession of the laboratory is no longer needed the ~~superintendent~~ administrator may, unless otherwise provided by law, either destroy the same, retain it in the laboratory or turn it over to the university of Wisconsin upon the request of the head of any department thereof. Whenever the ~~superintendent~~ administrator received information from which it appears probable that such evidence is no longer needed, he may give written notice to the submitting agency and the appropriate district attorney, by registered mail, of his intention to dispose of the evidence and if no objection is received within 20 days after such notice was mailed he may dispose of such evidence as herein provided.

SECTION 485. 165.07 of the statutes is created to read:

165.07 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL—PUBLIC INTERVENOR. The attorney general shall designate an assistant attorney general on his staff as public intervenor. Written notices of all proceedings under chs. 30, 31 and 144 shall be given to the public intervenor and to the administrators of divisions primarily assigned the departmental functions under chs. 29 and 144 by the agency head responsible for such proceedings. A copy of such notice shall also be given to the scientific areas preservation council. The public intervenor shall formally intervene in such proceedings when requested to do so by an administrator of a division primarily assigned the departmental functions under chs. 29 or 144. The public intervenor may, on his own initiative or upon request of any committee of the legislature, formally intervene in all such proceedings where such intervention is needed for the protection of "public rights" in water and other natural resources, as provided in chs. 30 and 31 and defined by the supreme court. Personnel of the department of natural resources shall upon the request of the public intervenor make such investigations, studies and reports as he may request in connection with such proceedings, either before or after formal intervention. Personnel of state agencies shall at his request provide information, serve as witnesses in such proceedings and otherwise cooperate in the carrying out of his intervention functions. Formal intervention shall be by filing a statement to that effect with the examiner or other person immediately in charge of the proceeding. Thereupon the public intervenor shall be deemed a party in interest with full power to present evidence, subpoena and cross examine witnesses, submit proof, file briefs or do any other acts appropriate for a party to the proceedings. He may appeal from administrative rulings to the courts and in all administrative proceedings and judicial review proceedings he shall be identified as "public intervenor". This section does not preclude or prevent any division of the department of natural resources, or any other department or independent agency from appearing by its staff as a party in such proceedings.

SECTION 486. 165.25 (intro.) of the statutes is created to read:

165.25 (intro.) The department of justice shall:

SECTION 487. 165.25 (9) of the statutes is created to read:

165.25 (9) The department of justice shall perform all other duties imposed upon the department by law.

CHAPTER 276

818

SECTION 488. Subchapter II (title) of chapter 165 of the statutes is created to read:

SUBCHAPTER II.

DIVISION OF CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION.

(to precede section 165.50)

SECTION 489. 165.50 of the statutes is created to read:

165.50 DIVISION OF CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION. (1) The division of criminal investigation shall perform the following criminal investigatory functions for the state:

(a) Investigate crime that is state-wide in nature, importance or influence.

(b) Conduct arson investigations.

(c) Conduct investigations related to the enforcement of the beverage and cigarette tax laws.

(2) The attorney general shall appoint an administrator of the division of criminal investigation. The investigators of the division shall have the same general police powers as are conferred upon peace officers.

SECTION 490. 165.55 (title) of the statutes is created to read:

165.55 ARSON INVESTIGATION.

SECTION 491. 165.58 of the statutes is created to read:

165.58 BONDING. The administrator of the division of criminal investigation in his capacity of state fire marshal shall be required to post a bond of \$100,000. The chief deputy fire marshal shall be required to post a bond of \$100,000. Each member of the arson investigation staff shall post a bond of \$5,000.

SECTION 492. Subchapter III (title) of chapter 165 of the statutes is created to read:

SUBCHAPTER III.

CRIME LABORATORY DIVISION.

(to precede 165.75)

SECTION 493. 165.75 (4) of the statutes is created to read:

165.75 (4) The operation of the laboratory shall conform to the rules and policies established by the attorney general, who shall be advised by the investigation council.

SECTION 494. 168.01 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

168.01 DEFINITION. In this chapter "department" means the department of revenue.

SECTION 495. 175.13 (8) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

175.13 (8) (b) Whenever the attorney general has reason to believe that any charitable organization, professional fund raiser or professional solicitor is operating in violation of this section, or there is employed or is about to be employed in any solicitation or collection of contributions for a charitable organization any device, scheme or artifice to defraud or for obtaining money or property by means of any false pretense, representation or promise, in addition to any other action authorized by law, ~~the~~ *the department of justice* may bring in any circuit court of this state an action in the name of the state against such charitable organization, professional fund raiser or professional solicitor, and any other person who has participated or is about to participate in such solicitation or collection by employing such device, scheme, artifice, false representation or promise, to enjoin such professional fund raiser or professional solicitor, or other person from continuing such solicitation or collection or engaging therein or doing any acts in furtherance thereof, or to cancel any registration state-

ment previously filed with the department.

SECTION 496. 176.05 (1a) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

176.05 (1a) (b) As of October 3, 1963, no permittee may sell any intoxicating liquor unless prior to such sale he has filed with the ~~beverage tax division of the state department of taxation~~ *department of revenue* a statement to the effect that he is a distributor of a particular brand in the state of Wisconsin, or portion thereof, and the sales of that particular brand by him and any permittee purchasing from him will be limited to that area. If there is any change in such area the ~~beverage tax division~~ *department of revenue* shall be informed of such change within 7 days of the effective date of the change. Any person violating this section shall be punished as provided in s. 176.41 and so far as applicable ss. 176.62 and 176.70, including the provisions relating to revocation of license, shall apply.

SECTION 497. 176.05 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

176.05 (5) The application for a license to sell or deal in intoxicating liquor and "fermented malt beverages" as defined in s. 66.054 shall be in writing on a form furnished by the ~~commissioner of taxation~~ *division of criminal investigation of the department of justice* and sworn to by the applicant. The original application shall state the kind of license applied for, designate the premises where such liquor is to be sold and such other information as required by this chapter. Such form shall be prepared by the ~~commissioner~~ *division of criminal investigation of the department of justice* and shall be suitable for the entire state and so worded as to make clear to any licensing authority the past history of the applicant and fitness for license under this chapter. The ~~commissioner~~ *division* may prescribe a simplified form for renewal applications requiring information pertinent to renewal. The ~~commissioner~~ *division* shall furnish on request such form blanks as ~~may be~~ *are* necessary to each licensing body. Except as provided in sub. (6), all such licenses shall remain in force until July 1 next after the granting thereof, unless sooner revoked; they shall be attested by the town, city or village clerk, and shall not be delivered until the applicant ~~shall produce and file~~ *produces and files* with the clerk a receipt showing the payment of the sum required therefor to the proper treasurer. If any licensee or license applicant dies or becomes bankrupt or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors during any license year or at any time after filing the application for a license and a license is granted to such applicant, the administrator, executor, receiver or trustee, or, if no administrator is appointed, the surviving husband or wife of such deceased licensee may continue to sell said business, and, if he sells the same, may assign or transfer such license and all rights and privileges of the licensee thereunder if the transferee or assignee is acceptable to the licensing authorities, and secures their consent thereto, and fully complies with the requirements of law applicable to original applicants, provided that the administrator so appointed must be a citizen of the United States; and provided ~~further~~ that the surviving husband or wife of the deceased is an American citizen. No license shall be issued to any person in violation of ~~any provision~~ of this chapter, and any license so issued shall be void. The town, village or city clerk shall keep all applications for license and they may be inspected by any citizen.

SECTION 498. 176.121 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

176.121 REVOCATION ON COMPLAINT OF THE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE. (1) Upon complaint filed by the ~~commissioner of taxation, or any of his~~ *a duly authorized employe, employe of the department of justice* with the clerk of any court of record in the jurisdiction in which premises of the licensed person complained of are situated, that any such licensed person ~~therein~~ has at any time violated ~~any provision~~ of this chapter, or keeps or maintains a disorderly or riotous, indecent or improper house, or that he has at any time sold or given away any intoxicating liquor

to any minor, or to persons intoxicated or bordering on intoxication, or to known habitual drunkards, or has failed to maintain said premises in accordance with the standards of sanitation prescribed by the ~~state board~~ *department of health and social services*, or in whose licensed premises known criminals or prostitutes are permitted to loiter, or that he has at any time violated any federal or state law or been convicted of any felony or any offense against the laws relating to the sale of intoxicating liquors or fermented malt beverages, or that he does not possess the qualifications required by this chapter to entitle him to a license, the clerk of said court shall issue a summons commanding the person so complained of to appear before it not less than 20 days from its date, and show cause why his license should not be revoked or suspended. Such summons and a copy of the complaint shall be served at least 20 days before the time in which such person is commanded to appear, and may be served either personally or upon the person in charge of the place to which such license relates.

SECTION 499. 176.65 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

176.65 (1) Any person who ~~shall impersonate~~ *impersonates* an inspector, agent or other accredited employe of the ~~commissioner of taxation~~ *shall be department of revenue or the department of justice* is guilty of a misdemeanor.

SECTION 500. 176.90 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

176.90 (2) Any sheriff, undersheriff, deputy sheriff, constable or other municipal police officer or any person authorized to enforce the gambling laws under ~~s. 73.035~~ *s. 165.60* shall within 10 days after acquiring such information report to the district attorney of the county the name and address of any licensee or permittee under ch. 176 or s. 66.054 who to his knowledge has knowingly suffered or permitted any device ~~to which refer-ence is made~~ in sub. (1) or any horse race betting to be set up, kept, managed, used or conducted upon the licensed premises or in connection there-with upon premises controlled directly or indirectly by such licensee or permittee. Such officer or person shall also report to the district attorney his knowledge of the circumstances and the name of the municipality or officer by whom the license or permit has been issued. Any other person may in writing and signed by that person report any such name, address and other information to the district attorney. Within 10 days after any report ~~to him~~ the district attorney shall institute a proceeding as hereinafter provided before the circuit court of his county or shall within such time report to the attorney general the reasons why such a proceeding has not been instituted. ~~If thereafter the~~ *The attorney general* ~~so directs, may direct the department of justice or the district attorney shall to institute such proceedings within such a reasonable time as the attorney general directs unless the attorney general elects to institute the proceeding, in which case he is authorized to do so.~~

SECTION 501. 186.015 (1) to (3) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 502. 186.015 (4) to (6) of the statutes are renumbered 186.015 (1) to (3), respectively, and amended to read:

186.015 (1) ~~The board shall meet at least once quarterly. Special meetings may be called either by the chairman or the commissioner of banks. The chairman of the board shall be elected annually by the members thereof. The commissioner of banks banking shall confer with the said credit union review board from time to time relative to policies and problems on matters affecting credit unions and the banking department, and create advisory committees composed of representatives of all interested groups his office. Detailed minutes of each board meeting shall be kept, and the decision of the board with reference to all orders issued, or policies established by the commissioner of banks banking pursuant to chapter ch. 186 shall be final.~~

(2) The board shall advise ~~with~~ the commissioner ~~of banks~~, supervisor of credit unions and others in improving the condition and service of credit unions. *In addition, the board shall review the acts and decisions of the commissioner in relation to credit unions, and shall serve as an appeal board for credit unions (with the same procedures and powers as the banking review board has under chapter ch. 220) and perform such other review functions in relation to credit unions as may be are provided by law. The board shall have power to may issue subpoenas, take testimony and administer oaths to witnesses.*

(3) The commissioner shall employ ~~in the banking department~~ a competent person as supervisor of credit unions for the supervision and examination of credit unions under the direction and control of the commissioner. No person ~~shall be~~ is eligible to such appointment unless ~~he shall have~~ has had at least 3 years' actual experience either in conducting a credit union or serving in the credit union supervisory department of this or some other state. He shall furnish a corporate surety bond in accordance with ~~section s.~~ 220.025.

SECTION 503. 186.26 of the statutes is amended to read:

186.26 At least once ~~in~~ each year, the commissioner of ~~banks~~ *banking* shall make or cause to be made an examination into the affairs of all such credit unions and for that purpose the commissioner or the examiners appointed by him shall have full access to, and may compel the production of, all their books, papers, securities and moneys, administer oaths to and examine their officers and agents as to their affairs. Special examination shall be made upon written request of 5 or more members, they guaranteeing the expense of the same. ~~Any such~~ *The refusal of any credit union refusing to submit to an examination ordered or requested shall be reported to the attorney general, who shall institute department of justice for the purpose of instituting proceedings to have its the charter of the credit union revoked, which refusal shall be the cause for such revocation because of the refusal.*

SECTION 504. 189.01 (1), (2), (4) and (5) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 505. 189.01 (3) of the statutes is renumbered 189.01 and amended to read:

189.01 OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER OF SECURITIES; COMMISSIONER; DEPUTY COMMISSIONER; DUTIES. The ~~director~~ *commissioner of securities* shall appoint a deputy director ~~and such other officers and assistants as may be necessary for the proper discharge of his duties and functions, and they shall be commissioner~~ under the classified service. The ~~director~~ *commissioner* may designate ~~any such~~ *the* deputy director, ~~commissioner or any officer or assistant to perform any duty or power assigned to him by the director~~ *commissioner* while he is absent from the office. ~~Acting under such designation shall not affect the status of such deputy director, officer or assistant under the classified service.~~

SECTION 506. 189.01 (6) of the statutes is renumbered 189.02 (13).

SECTION 507. 189.02 (lk) and (lm) of the statutes are created to read:

189.02 (lk) "Commissioner" means the commissioner of securities.

(lm) "Office" means the office of the commissioner of securities.

SECTION 508. 189.20 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

189.20 (1) For the purpose of facilitating enforcement of this chapter, ~~one or more of the attorneys employed by the department on July 2, 1941, shall, at the department's request, be added to the attorney general's department as commissioner shall appoint, with the consent of the attorney general and under the classified service, special assistant attorneys general, but such attorney or attorneys shall devote their entire time to the work of the department~~ *commissioner in administering this chapter. Their sac-*

CHAPTER 276

822

cessors shall be appointed by the department with the consent of the attorney general subject to chapter 16.

SECTION 509. 194.15 of the statutes is amended to read:

194.15 Upon request of the ~~motor vehicle department~~ *department of transportation*, the ~~attorney general~~ *department of justice* or the district attorney of the proper county shall aid in any investigation, hearing or trial had under the provisions of this chapter, and shall institute and prosecute all necessary actions or proceedings for the enforcement of such provisions and for the punishment of violations of the same, and the attorney general may upon request of the ~~motor vehicle~~ *department of transportation* appoint a qualified attorney employed by it as an assistant ~~attorney general~~ *attorney general* to assist in the performance of the duties imposed upon him by this section and ~~section s.~~ 195.07.

SECTION 510. 195.01 (1) and (2) of the statutes are repealed and re-created to read:

195.01 PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION. (1) TITLE. The public service commission may sue and be sued in that name, and may confer with or participate in any proceedings before any regulatory agency of any other state or of the federal government.

(2) DEFINITION. In chs. 184 and 190 to 197, "commission" means the public service commission.

SECTION 511. 195.01 (4) to (12) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 512. 195.01 (13) of the statutes is renumbered 195.01 (3).

SECTION 513. 195.03 (22) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 514. 196.665 of the statutes is created to read:

196.665 UNLAWFUL COMBINATIONS, TRUSTS. (1) The state may take possession of any dam maintained under a permit granted under s. 31.06 or 31.08 by proceedings instituted by the commission whenever such dam:

(a) Is owned, leased, trusteeed, possessed or controlled in any manner whatsoever that makes it form a part of or in any way effect an unlawful combination.

(b) Is in any wise controlled by any combination in the form of an unlawful trust.

(c) Forms the subject of any contract or conspiracy to limit the output of any hydraulic or hydroelectric power derived therefrom.

(2) In proceedings under sub. (1), the members of the commission shall be appointed to act as receivers during such period as the court determines.

SECTION 515. 200.01 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 516. 200.02 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 517. 200.03 (11) of the statutes is renumbered 165.51 and amended to read:

165.51 ADMINISTRATOR. ~~He~~ *The administrator of the division of criminal investigation* shall be ex officio state fire marshal, ~~and as such.~~ *The administrator* shall keep an itemized statement of all expenses incurred by him in the discharge of his duties; and shall audit all claims and vouchers for such expenses before they are submitted to the department of administration for payment.

SECTION 518. 200.03 (2) to (18) of the statutes are renumbered 200.03 (1) to (11), respectively, and 200.03 (2) to (6), (8), (9) and (11), as renumbered, are amended to read:

200.03 (2) ~~He~~ *The commissioner* shall examine insurance companies applying for a license to transact business, and if the affairs or conditions of any company fully meet the requirements of law, he shall issue his

certificate licensing such company to do business, otherwise he shall deny the application.

(3) ~~He~~ *The commissioner* may in person or by agent visit the general office of any licensed foreign insurance company and examine its affairs and conditions, and may revoke its license for failure to comply with the law or refusal to allow such examination.

(4) ~~He~~ *The commissioner* shall upon revocation of the license of a company give notice thereof by mail to all its agents who have been furnished a copy of such license, and shall publish notice of the revocation in the official state paper.

(5) ~~He~~ *The commissioner* shall prepare forms for annual statements for various kinds of insurance companies and societies and shall furnish them with such statement blanks.

(6) ~~He~~ *The commissioner* shall represent this state at the annual meeting of the insurance commissioners of the several states. *The commissioner shall be reimbursed for his actual and necessary expenses incurred in representing the state at this meeting.*

(8) ~~He~~ *The commissioner* shall keep in his office a complete record of all certificates of authority issued under ss. 209.04 and 206.41.

(9) ~~He~~ *The commissioner* is by law constituted the attorney for all insurance companies admitted to this state for the purpose of service of summons and all other legal processes upon such companies while licensed here and thereafter so long as there are any liabilities outstanding against them in this state.

(11) ~~He~~ *The commissioner* shall have such powers and perform such duties as are given to him or required of him and may perform such functions as he is permitted under s. 200.26, and for purposes of enforcing that section may proceed under ss. 200.13 and 200.14 and ch. 645 to the same extent and in the same manner as if such organizations were domestic insurance corporations.

SECTION 519. 200.15 (2) (d) of the statutes is renumbered 165.59 and amended to read:

165.59 ~~A~~ *The administrator shall make a detailed report to the governor each year of his official actions as ex officio state fire marshal.*

SECTION 520. 200.18 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

200.18 (1) The commissioner of insurance shall effect coverage of himself, the deputy commissioner of insurance and each employe of the ~~commissioner~~ under an official blanket bond in the penal sum of \$100,000 or under an official position schedule bond in accordance with the following schedule:

(a) The commissioner of insurance	\$100,000
(b) The deputy commissioner of insurance and assistant state fire marshal	\$100,000
(c) The administrative assistant of to the commissioner, not less than	\$100,000
(d) The actuaries and examiners, each, not less than	\$ 5,000
(e) Deputy fire marshal, each, not less than	\$ 5,000
(f) (e) The manager of state insurance fund, not less than	\$ 5,000
(g) (f) The manager of state life fund, not less than	\$ 5,000

SECTION 521. 200.19 (1) of the statutes is renumbered 165.55 (1).

SECTION 522. 200.19 (2) and (4) of the statutes are renumbered 165.55 (2) (a) and (b) and amended to read:

165.55 (2) (a) ~~The state fire marshal may~~ *division of criminal inves-*

igation shall supervise and direct ~~such~~ the investigation ~~whenever~~ he of fires of incendiary origin when the state fire marshal deems ~~it~~ such investigation expedient.

(b) The ~~state fire marshal division~~ shall ~~keep a record~~ maintain records of all fires occurring in the state, ~~which shall be~~. Such records are at all times open to public inspection.

SECTION 523. 200.20 (1), (1m), (2) and (3) of the statutes are renumbered 165.55 (3), (4), (5) and (6), respectively, and 165.55 (3) and (5), as renumbered, are amended to read:

165.55 (3) ~~When in the opinion of the state fire marshal shall, when in his opinion~~ investigation is necessary, he shall take or cause to be taken the testimony on oath of all persons supposed to be cognizant of any facts or to have any means of knowledge in relation to any case of damage to property by fire or explosives, and if he is of the opinion that there is evidence sufficient to charge any person with a crime under ~~ss. s.~~ 94.11, 943.01, 943.02, 943.03 or 943.04 or with an attempt to commit any of those crimes, he shall cause such person to be prosecuted, and shall furnish the prosecuting attorney the names of all witnesses and all the information obtained by him, including a copy of all testimony taken in the investigation.

(5) The attorney general shall at the request of the state fire marshal ~~assist~~ furnish legal assistance to district attorneys in the prosecution of all cases referred to in sub. ~~(1)~~ (3) in all courts and the expense of the attorney general or his assistants in preparation for and attendance upon such prosecutions shall be charged to the appropriation for the state fire marshal.

SECTION 524. 200.20 (4) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 524m. 200.21 (1), (2) and (3) of the statutes are renumbered 165.55 (7), (8) and (9).

SECTION 525. 200.22 of the statutes is renumbered 165.55 (10).

SECTION 526. 200.23 of the statutes is renumbered 165.55 (13) and amended to read:

165.55 (13) Any officer named in ~~§. 200.19 subs. (1) and (2)~~ who neglects to comply with any of the requirements of ~~ss. 200.19 to 200.25~~ this section shall be fined not less than \$25 nor more than \$200 for each neglect or violation.

SECTION 527. 200.24 of the statutes is renumbered 165.55 (11) and amended to read:

165.55 (11) All officers who shall perform any service at the request of the state fire marshal or his subordinates shall receive the same fees as officers in municipal courts, and such fees shall be paid in the manner witnesses are paid under section 200.21, and charged to the appropriation for the state fire marshal department of justice.

SECTION 528. 200.25 of the statutes is renumbered 165.55 (12).

SECTION 529. 201.01 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

201.01 (5) ~~“Department”~~ “Office” means ~~department~~ office of the commissioner of insurance.

SECTION 530. 201.01 (6) of the statutes is created to read:

201.01 (6) “Commissioner” means the commissioner of insurance.

SECTION 531. 209.039 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

209.039 INSURANCE AGENTS COUNCIL. (1) The insurance agents council shall make recommendations to the commissioner for the preparation and conduct of examinations pursuant to ss. 206.41 (4), 208.21 and 209.04 (2) (b). At the request of the commissioner, it may advise him concerning the relevancy of the content of examinations to the types of

licenses being sought by applicants.

(2) The commissioner may, with the assistance of the council, work with various educational institutions in the state in formulating, instituting and maintaining in such institutions courses of instruction in various fields of insurance for the education of agents and applicants for agents' licenses.

SECTION 532. 211.02 (4) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 533. 211.16 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

211.16 COUNCIL ON EMPLOYEE WELFARE PLANS. The council on employee welfare plans shall advise the commissioner with respect to the carrying out of his functions under this chapter, review the administration of this chapter and make such reports and recommendations to the commissioner as it deems necessary in the public interest.

SECTION 534. 214.01 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

214.01 (1) "~~Department~~" "Office" means the ~~state office of the commissioner of banking department~~.

SECTION 535. 215.01 (1) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 536. 215.01 (2) to (15) and (18) to (22) of the statutes are renumbered 215.01 (1) to (14) and (19) to (23), respectively, and 215.01 (4), as renumbered, is amended to read:

215.01 (4) "Commissioner" means the commissioner of savings and loan ~~associations~~.

SECTION 537. 215.01 (15) of the statutes is created to read:

215.01 (15) "Office" means the office of the commissioner of savings and loan.

SECTION 538. 215.01 (18) of the statutes is created to read:

215.01 (18) "Review board" means the savings and loan review board.

SECTION 539. 215.02 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

215.02 OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER OF SAVINGS AND LOAN.

(1) QUALIFICATIONS, APPOINTMENT AND DUTIES OF DEPUTY COMMISSIONER. No person is eligible for appointment as deputy commissioner unless he has had at least 3 years' actual experience in conducting a savings and loan association or serving in the office of the commissioner of savings and loan of this state, or a combination of both. The commissioner shall appoint the deputy commissioner, with the consent of the review board, under the classified service. The deputy commissioner shall possess all powers and perform the duties of the commissioner during a vacancy in that office and during the absence of or inability of the commissioner to serve.

(2) FULL-TIME DEVOTION TO DUTIES OF OFFICE. The deputy commissioner, examiners and clerks shall devote full time to the duties of their respective positions.

(3) SURETY BONDS OF COMMISSIONER, DEPUTY COMMISSIONER, EXAMINERS, SPECIAL DEPUTY COMMISSIONERS AND SPECIAL ASSISTANTS TO COMMISSIONER. Bonds shall be executed and filed as follows:

(a) The commissioner shall file an official bond in the sum of \$25,000 approved by the governor.

(b) The deputy commissioner, special deputy commissioners and examiners, each \$10,000.

(c) Special assistants to the commissioner, each \$10,000.

(d) The surety on every bond required under this subsection shall be a surety company licensed by this state.

(4) IMMUNITY OF COMMISSIONER. The commissioner shall not be subject to any civil liability or penalty, nor to any criminal prosecution, for any error in judgment or discretion made in good faith and upon reasonable grounds in any action taken or omitted by him in his official capacity.

(5) ACTIONS VENUE. Proceedings by any association to enjoin the commissioner in the discharge of his duties shall be had in the county where the savings and loan association is located, or in the state supreme court. All suits and proceedings arising out of this chapter, in which the state, or any of its officers or agents are parties, shall be conducted under the direction and supervision of the department of justice.

(6) DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION; PENALTY. (a) The commissioner, and all other officers and employes of the office, and members of the review board shall keep secret all the facts and information obtained in the course of examinations, except so far as the public duty of such person requires him to report upon or take special action regarding the affairs of any association, and except when called as a witness in any criminal proceeding or trial in a court of justice; and except that such officers and employes may, under rules prescribed by the commissioner, compare notes as to matters affecting an association with an examiner of the federal home loan bank or federal savings and loan insurance corporation as to any association whose share accounts are insured by the federal savings and loan insurance corporation. The commissioner may furnish to the federal home loan bank or federal savings and loan insurance corporation or to any official or examiner thereof a copy of any examination made of any association or of any report made by such association, and may give access to and disclose to the federal home loan bank, federal savings and loan insurance corporation or to any official or examiner thereof any information possessed by him about the conditions or affairs of any association whose share accounts are insured by the federal savings and loan insurance corporation.

(b) If any person mentioned in par. (a) discloses the name of any debtor of any association or any information about the private account or transactions of such association, or discloses any fact obtained in the course of any examination of any association, except as provided in par. (a), he shall forfeit his office or position and may be fined not less than \$100 nor more than \$1,000, or imprisoned not less than 6 months nor more than 2 years or both.

(7) COMMISSIONER TO ISSUE ORDERS; REASONABLE RULES. (a) In addition to performing the duties prescribed in this chapter, the commissioner shall, with the approval of the review board, issue orders prescribing reasonable rules for conducting the business of associations, subject to the requirements of ch. 227.

(b) The violation of any such rule or order may be cause for the removal of any officer, director or employe of any association.

(8) REVOCATION OF CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION OF LICENSE. Whenever it appears to the commissioner that any association or corporation which has received a certificate of incorporation or a license to do business in this state is conducting its business in violation of this chapter, he shall report the facts to the department of justice which may bring an action to revoke the certificate of incorporation or license of such association or corporation.

(9) APPROVAL OF ACTS. Whenever any association requests approval of the commissioner for any act, which by statute requires such approval, he shall have 90 days in which to grant or deny such approval. If he fails to act, approval shall be deemed to have been granted.

(10) REMOVAL OF OFFICERS OR DIRECTORS. (a) Whenever the commissioner is of the opinion that the loaning, investing or other policies or practices of any officer or director of any association have been prejudicial to the best interest of such association or its members, or that such policies or practices, if put into operation or continued, will endanger the safety or solvency of said association or impair the interests of its members, he may, with the approval of the review board, request the removal of such officer

or director. Such request shall be served on the association and on such officer or director in the manner provided by law for serving summons in a court of record or shall be transmitted to said association and officer or director by registered mail with return receipt requested. If such request for removal is not complied with within a reasonable time fixed by the commissioner he may by order, with approval of the review board, remove such officer or director, but no order of removal shall be entered until after an opportunity for hearing before the review board is given to such officer or director upon not less than 10 days' notice. An order of removal shall take effect as of the date issued. A copy of such order shall be served upon the association and upon such officer or director in the manner provided by law for service of a summons in a court of record or by mailing such copy to such association or officer or director at his last known post-office address. Any removal under this subsection shall be effective in all respects the same as if made by the board of directors or members of said association. Any officer or director removed from office under this subsection shall not be reelected as an officer or director of any association without the approval of the commissioner and the review board. An order of removal under this subsection shall be deemed a final order or determination of the review board within the meaning of s. 215.04 (4).

(b) The commissioner may appoint any member to fill the vacancies caused by removal of officers or directors. The members so appointed shall hold office until the next meeting of the members.

(11) ANNUAL REPORT TO THE GOVERNOR AND LEGISLATURE. In his annual report under s. 15.04 (4), the commissioner shall include a statement concerning the general conduct and condition of associations doing business in this state, including such facts and suggestions as he deems expedient. The annual report shall be based upon the individual annual reports of associations filed with him, and shall also include the information required in s. 215.32 (7) (a). The commissioner shall designate the number of copies of the report to be made available for distribution. Each association shall be entitled to one copy, the remainder to be for general distribution.

(12) DISPOSITION OF OBSOLETE RECORDS. The commissioner may turn over obsolete departmental records to the secretary of administration, pursuant to s. 16.80.

(13) CERTIFIED COPIES OF RECORDS; FEES THEREOF. (a) Copies of all records and papers in the office of the commissioner, certified by him and authenticated by his seal of office, shall be evidence in all cases equally and of like effect as the original.

(b) Whenever the commissioner furnishes a certified copy of any paper or record, he shall be entitled to the actual cost of making such copy and \$1 shall be charged for each certificate. All such fees shall be paid by the commissioner into the general fund to the credit of the office.

(14) FEES FOR OFFICE PUBLICATIONS. (a) Whenever extra copies of statutory reprints of this chapter, the annual report of savings and loan associations or any other publication published by the office are requested, such extra copies shall be furnished upon payment of such fee as the commissioner determines. All such fees shall be paid by the commissioner into the general fund to the credit of the office.

(b) Upon request, extra copies may be distributed free to agencies or legislators of this state or any other state, county clerks and to the courts of this state, trade organizations and any other agencies of the United States.

(15) HEARINGS, FINDINGS AND ORDERS ON COMPLAINTS AGAINST ASSOCIATIONS. (a) If a petition is filed with the commissioner stating that an association fails to pay its debts on demand, or when not less than 25 mem-

bers of an association file with the commissioner a petition stating that the association or the officers or directors of such association fail to honor withdrawal request of savings accounts under this chapter, or stating that the officers or directors are conducting the business of the association in an unsafe or unauthorized manner, or stating that by the acts or negligence of officers or directors the funds or assets of the association are or may become impaired, the commissioner shall, within 10 days after its receipt, proceed to hear such petition. A copy of the petition shall be mailed or delivered to the association at least 3 days before the hearing. Not less than 3 days before the date of hearing, a notice stating the date, time and place for the hearing shall be mailed or delivered to the association and the party petitioning.

(b) At the time and place so fixed, unless by stipulation some other time and place is fixed, the commissioner shall hear all parties interested and shall cause the testimony given to be reduced to writing, or he may designate some person employed in his office to take testimony, hear the petition and file the testimony with the commissioner.

(c) The commissioner shall within a reasonable time make findings as to all matters covered by the petition and make such order as he deems just and reasonable.

(d) The findings and order of the commissioner shall be final unless modified by the court.

(e) Chapter 286 shall not apply to associations organized under this chapter.

(16) CAPITAL FEES; ANNUAL FEES; REGULAR AND SPECIAL EXAMINATION COSTS. (a) *Capital fees.* On or before July 15 of each year, every association carrying on business in this state shall pay to the commissioner an annual capital fee of \$25.

(b) *Annual fee.* In addition to such capital fee, associations organized pursuant to this chapter shall, on or before July 15, pay an annual fee as determined by the commissioner and the review board, but not exceeding 12 cents per \$1,000 of assets or fraction thereof.

(c) *Penalty for failure to pay fees.* An association failing to pay such capital fee and annual fee to the commissioner by July 15 of each year shall, if ordered by the commissioner, forfeit \$10 for each day it fails to pay such fees.

(d) *Regular examination costs.* 1. On or before June 30 of each year the commissioner and the review board shall fix a per diem charge for the services of each examiner used in the examination of an association, for the next 12 months. Such per diem charge shall be the same for all associations. The hours constituting a day shall be that which is fixed for state employes by s. 16.275.

2. After the per diem charge for each examiner has been fixed by the commissioner and review board, each association shall be uniformly billed for examinations during the ensuing year on a fixed per diem basis for each examiner engaged in such examination.

3. Every charge so made to an association shall be paid within 30 days from the time the association receives notice of the assessment.

(e) *Special examination costs.* The commissioner shall charge any special costs and expenses incurred because of special work required by him, caused by an association not having proper or sufficient management or failing to keep its books, records and other matters in a standard and approved manner. An itemized statement of such charges must be submitted to the association.

(f) *Penalty for failure to pay examination costs.* Any association failing to pay the assessments under pars. (d) and (e) shall be subject to the penalty under par. (c) for each day it fails to pay such charge or

assessment after it becomes due.

SECTION 540. 215.04 (1), (2), (3), (10) and (12) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 541. 215.04 (4) to (9) and (11) of the statutes are renumbered 215.04 (1) to (7), respectively, and 215.04 (1) (a), as renumbered, is amended to read:

215.04 (1) (a) Advise the commissioner ~~and the~~, deputy commissioner ~~(or either of them)~~ and others in respect to improvement in the condition and service of associations;

SECTION 542. 215.33 (3) (g) of the statutes is amended to read:

215.33 (3) (g) Whenever the commissioner finds that the liability of any foreign savings and loan association or any foreign investment association on evidences of investment or contracts then outstanding or contracted for by persons residing in this state, exceeds 90 ~~per cent~~ % of the amount of the deposit under subs. (1) and (6), exclusive of any such liability under any agreement existing, created, regulated or required by the ~~industrial commission~~ *department of industry, labor and human relations* under ch. 108 or by any other department, ~~commission or division or agency~~ of state government, the commissioner shall order such association or corporation to deposit within 30 days with the state treasurer, an additional amount in cash or securities of the class mentioned in sub. (3), or such other securities as the commissioner requires and approves. If such order is not complied with within 30 days, the commissioner shall revoke the certificate of authority of such association or corporation.

SECTION 543. 217.02 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

217.02 (1) ~~“Department”~~ *“Office”* means the ~~state office of the commissioner of banking department.~~

SECTION 544. 220.01 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 545. 220.02 (1) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 546. 220.02 (2) to (8) of the statutes are renumbered 220.02 (1) to (6), respectively.

SECTION 547. 220.025 (3) to (6) and (8) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 548. 220.025 (7) of the statutes is renumbered 220.025 (3).

SECTION 549. 220.03 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 550. 220.035 (1) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 551. 220.035 (2) and (2m) of the statutes are renumbered 220.035 (1) and (2), respectively, and 220.035 (1) (a) and (d), as renumbered, are amended to read:

220.035 (1) (a) The ~~duties of the banking review board are to~~ *shall* advise ~~with~~ the commissioner of ~~banks banking~~ and others in respect to improvement in the condition and service of banks and banking business in this state and ~~to~~ *shall* review the acts and decisions of the commissioner of ~~banks banking~~, except for such acts and decisions subject to review under ~~sections~~ ss. 186.015 and 220.037, and ~~to~~ *shall* perform such other review functions in relation to banking as ~~may be~~ *are* provided by law. The banking review board may require the commissioner of ~~banks banking~~ to submit any of his official actions to ~~said board~~ *it* for its approval. The board may make rules of procedure as provided in ~~chapter~~ *ch.* 227.

(d) Each member of the board and all employees of the board shall, with respect to the disclosure of information concerning banks, be subject to the same requirements and penalties as the commissioner of ~~banks~~. ~~Three members shall constitute a quorum and a majority vote of those present shall decide. No member of such board shall be qualified to act in any matter involving a bank in which he is an officer, director or stockholder, or to which he is indebted banking.~~

CHAPTER 276

830

SECTION 552. 220.035 (4) and (5) of the statutes are amended to read:

220.035 (4) The board shall have an office in the quarters of the commissioner of banking department. The board shall choose a board's secretary, who shall keep a record of the meetings of the board and of all hearings, decisions, orders and determinations of the board. The board may make reasonable rules not inconsistent with law as to the time of meetings, time of hearings, notice of hearings and manner of conducting same and of deciding the matters presented. The board may direct that hearings and testimony be taken by any member of the board or by an examiner designated by the board.

(5) The members of the board shall receive reimbursement from the state for their actual expenses as in case of other state officers. They shall also each receive \$25 per day for each day expended in the work of the board, but such compensation for service shall not exceed in the case of any one member \$1,500 per year, exclusive of expenses. The expenses of the banking review board including salaries and expenses of members of board and employes thereof shall be paid by the state upon the presentation of properly verified vouchers approved by at least one member of the board and the secretary of the board and shall be charged to the appropriation to the banking department. The board may employ assistance necessary in the performance of its work and fix reasonable compensation therefor, subject to provisions of any statutes applicable thereto.

SECTION 553. 220.037 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

220.037 CONSUMER CREDIT REVIEW BOARD. (1) The commissioner shall delegate a department employe to keep and preserve the records of the consumer credit review board.

(2) The consumer credit review board shall counsel, advise with and review the acts and decisions of the commissioner of banking under ch. 138, 214, 217 and 218. In performing such review functions, the board shall have all the powers granted to the banking review board under s. 220.035 (1) and its final orders and determinations shall be subject to judicial review under ch. 227. The board may establish rules of procedure in accordance with ch. 227.

SECTION 554. 220.10 (1) of the statutes is renumbered 220.10 and amended to read:

220.10 Whenever it shall appear *appears* to the commissioner of banks that any bank does not keep books and accounts in such manner as to enable him to readily ascertain the true condition of such bank, he shall have power to *may* require the officers of such bank, or any of them, to open and keep such books or accounts as he *may in his discretion determine and prescribe prescribes* for the purpose of keeping accurate and convenient records of the transactions and accounts of such bank. Any bank that refuses or neglects to open and keep such books or accounts, as *may be prescribed by* the commissioner, *prescribes* shall be subject to a penalty of \$10 for each day it neglects and fails to open and keep such prescribed books and accounts.

SECTION 555. 220.14 of the statutes is amended to read:

220.14 On or before August 1 of each year, the commissioner of banks shall make an annual report to the governor of the state, which *The* report of the commissioner issued pursuant to s. 15.04 (4) shall be published and shall:

(1) Exhibit the condition of the various banks of the state as of the day of the last report made to the commissioner by such banks, and such report shall.

(2) Contain a statement of the condition of every bank from which reports have been received, with an abstract of the whole amount of

capital returned by them, the whole amount of their liabilities, the total amount of resources, and specifying the amount of lawful money held by banks at the time of their several returns, ~~and shall.~~

(3) Give a tabulated statement of the resources and liabilities of each bank, ~~and such other information as in its judgment may be required. Such report shall also.~~

(4) Contain a statement of the bank whose business has been closed during the year, the amount of their resources and liabilities, ~~and the amount paid to the creditors thereof; also~~ and a statement of any banks organized during the year; ~~and the names of the directors and officers of each bank. It shall also~~

(5) Report the names and compensation of the clerks employed by ~~it~~ *him*, and the whole amount of the expense of the banking department office during the year preceding. ~~Such report shall~~

(6) Include a report by the banking review board containing the names and compensation of *its* members and employes during the preceding year and a summary of the acts and services of such board during such year.

(7) *Give such other information as the commissioner deems necessary.*

SECTION 556. 221.18 of the statutes is amended to read:

221.18 Whenever any officer in charge of a bank ~~shall refuse~~ *refuses* to submit the books, papers and concerns of such bank to the inspection of the commissioner of ~~banks~~ *banking*, his deputy, or examiner appointed hereunder, or ~~refuse~~ *refuses* to be examined on oath touching the concerns of the bank, the commissioner may inform the attorney general ~~whose duty it.~~ *The department of justice shall be to then* institute an action to procure a judgment dissolving such corporation. In order to carry out the provisions of this ~~act~~ *section* the commissioner ~~is hereby~~ *authorized to may* commence and maintain in his own name as commissioner of ~~banks~~ *banking* any and all actions necessary or proper to enforce ~~any of the provisions of this act section.~~

SECTION 557. 221.28 of the statutes is amended to read:

221.28 Whenever the reserve of any bank falls below the amount required ~~herein~~ to be kept, such bank shall not increase its loans or discounts otherwise than by discounting or purchasing bills of exchange payable at sight or on demand, and the commissioner of ~~banks~~ shall notify any bank whose reserve is below the amount ~~herein~~ required, to make good such reserve, and in case the bank fails, for 30 days thereafter to make good such reserve, the commissioner may assess such bank \$100 for each 2-week period which the bank has been in default or may notify the attorney general and ~~he~~ *the department of justice* shall institute proceedings for the appointment of a receiver and to wind up the business of the bank. Such assessment shall be paid to the commissioner and if any such bank fails or refuses to pay such assessment the commissioner may maintain an action for the recovery ~~thereof~~ *of the assessment.*

SECTION 558. 227.05 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

227.05 (1) Except as provided in sub. (2) ~~hereof~~, the exclusive means of judicial review of the validity of a rule shall be an action for declaratory judgment as to the validity of such rule brought in the circuit court for Dane county. The officer, board, commission or other agency whose rule is involved shall be the party defendant. The summons in such action shall be served by ~~delivering a copy to the attorney general or leaving it at his office in the capitol with one of his assistants or clerks, as provided in s. 262.06 (3) and by delivering a copy to such officer or to the secretary or clerk of the agency where composed of more than one person or to any member of such agency.~~ The court shall render a declaratory judg-

ment in such action only when it appears from the complaint and the supporting evidence ~~presented in support thereof~~ that the rule or its threatened application interferes with or impairs, or threatens to interfere with or impair, the legal rights and privileges of the plaintiff. A declaratory judgment may be rendered whether or not the plaintiff has first requested the agency to pass upon the validity of the rule in question.

SECTION 559. 236.13 (2m) of the statutes is amended to read:

236.13 (2m) As a further condition of approval when lands included in the plat lie within 500 feet of the ordinary high watermark of any navigable stream, lake or other body of navigable water or if land in the proposed plat involves lake or stream shorelands referred to in s. 236.16, the department of ~~local affairs and development~~ *natural resources*, if it deems it necessary for the prevention of pollution of navigable waters, or the ~~state board of health~~ *department of health and social services*, if it deems it necessary for the protection of public health and safety, may require assurance of adequate drainage areas for private sewage disposal systems and building setback restrictions, or provisions by the owner for public sewage disposal facilities for waters of the state, industrial wastes and other wastes, as defined in s. 144.01. Such public sewage disposal facilities may consist of one or more systems as the department of ~~local affairs and development~~ *natural resources* or the ~~state board of health~~ *department of health and social services* determines on the basis of need for prevention of pollution of the waters of the state or protection of public health and safety.

SECTION 560. 251.181 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

251.181 (1) There is created a judicial council of 17 members as follows: A supreme court justice designated by the supreme court; a circuit judge designated by the board of circuit judges; a county judge designated by the board of county judges; a judge designated by the board of juvenile court judges; the chairman of the senate judiciary committee or a member of the committee designated by him; the chairman of the assembly judiciary committee or a member of the committee designated by him; the attorney general or ~~one of his assistants designated by him~~ *a representative of the department of justice designated by the attorney general*; the revisor of statutes or an assistant designated by him; the deans of the law schools of the university of Wisconsin and Marquette university or a member of the respective law school faculties to be designated by said deans; the president-elect of the state bar of Wisconsin or a member of the board of governors of the state bar designated by him and 3 additional members thereof selected by the state bar; and 2 citizens at large, appointed by the governor. The last 5 members shall serve 3-year terms. The names of the members shall be certified to the secretary of state by the executive secretary. Members shall hold office until their successors have been selected. The members of the council shall receive no compensation, but shall be reimbursed from the appropriation made by s. 20.645 for expenses necessarily incurred by them in attending meetings of the council outside the county of their residence.

SECTION 561. 251.19 of the statutes is amended to read:

251.19 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE MAY HAVE CASES PRINTED.

In all state cases to be argued in the supreme court by the ~~attorney general~~ *the department of justice*, the department may require ~~to be printed~~ the printing by the state printer, when necessary, ~~his~~ *of the* briefs and appendices of the department; and the account therefor shall be paid out of the state treasury and charged to the appropriation in s. ~~20.180 (1) (e)~~ *20.455 (1) (d)*.

SECTION 562. 276.48 of the statutes is amended to read:

276.48 When any lands ~~shall be~~ held by the state and by individuals as tenants in common proceedings for the partition thereof may be had

against the state in the circuit or county court in the same manner as against individuals, and the like orders and judgments shall be had ~~therein~~, and the proportion of the costs and expenses of such partition, adjudged to be paid by the state, shall be certified by the ~~attorney general~~ department of justice and paid out of the state treasury on the warrant of the department of administration. The summons and all notices required to be served shall be served on the attorney general, ~~who~~. An *authorized representative of the department of justice* shall appear in behalf of the state and attend to its interest.

SECTION 563. 280.02 of the statutes is amended to read:

280.02 An action to enjoin a public nuisance may be commenced and prosecuted in the name of the state, either by the attorney general ~~upon his own~~ *on information obtained by the department of justice*, or upon the relation of a private individual, or a county, having first obtained leave therefor from the court. An action to enjoin a public nuisance may ~~also~~ be commenced and prosecuted by a city, village or town in its own name, and it ~~shall~~ *is not be* necessary to obtain leave from the court to commence or prosecute such action. The same rule as to liability for costs shall govern as in other actions brought by the state. No stay of any order or judgment enjoining or abating, in any action under this section, may be had unless the appeal be taken within 5 days after notice of entry of such judgment or order or service of the injunction. Upon appeal and stay, the return to the supreme court shall be made immediately.

SECTION 564. 285.01 of the statutes is amended to read:

285.01 Upon the refusal of the legislature to allow a claim against the state the claimant may commence an action against the state by ~~-serving the summons and complaint on the attorney general or by leaving copies at his office~~ *service as provided in s. 262.06 (3)* and by filing with the clerk of court a bond, not exceeding \$1,000, with ~~two~~ 2 or more sureties, to be approved by the attorney general, to the effect that he will indemnify the state against all costs that may accrue in such action and pay to the clerk of court all costs, in case he ~~shall fail~~ *fails* to obtain judgment against the state.

SECTION 565. 285.05 (1) and (2) of the statutes are amended to read:

285.05 (1) The ~~governor and the director of the state department of public welfare constitute a commission~~ *claims board shall hear petitions* for the relief of innocent persons who have been convicted of a crime.

(2) Any person who ~~after May 10, 1913 shall serve~~ *serves* a term of imprisonment under conviction for a crime ~~against the state~~, of which crime he claims to be innocent, or any person who has been pardoned on the ground of innocence and whose imprisonment ~~shall~~ *is* thereby be shortened, may petition the ~~commission~~ *claims board* for compensation for such wrongful imprisonment.

SECTION 566. 285.06 (1) and (2) of the statutes are amended to read:

285.06 (1) The ~~governor, the chairman of the senate finance committee, the chairman of the assembly finance committee and the director of public welfare shall constitute a commission~~ *claims board shall hear petitions from law enforcement officers employed by the state who have judgments against them for damages caused while in their line of duty where they acted in good faith and who have incurred charges for counsel fees and costs in defending said action.*

(2) Any such judgment debtor may petition the ~~commission~~ *claims board*, setting forth the amount of the judgment, fees and costs which he must pay, the facts and circumstances causing the damages resulting in the judgment and the reasons for claiming relief under this section. ~~The petition may be filed in the executive office.~~

CHAPTER 276

834

SECTION 567. 286.37 of the statutes is amended to read:

286.37 Whenever the attorney general ~~shall have~~ has reason to believe that any of the acts or omissions specified in ~~section~~ s. 286.36 can be established by proof ~~he~~ the department of justice shall apply for leave, and upon leave granted bring such action in every case of public interest and in every other case in which satisfactory security shall be given to indemnify the state against the costs and expenses to be incurred ~~thereby~~. In case the attorney general on application ~~shall refuse~~ refuses to bring such action leave to bring the same by a private party shall be granted only on notice to the attorney general and the proposed defendant; and the court on granting leave in such case may require the prosecutor to give adequate security to the state to indemnify it and the defendant against all taxable costs ~~therein~~.

SECTION 568. 318.03 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

318.03 (4) The moneys received by the state treasurer pursuant to ss. 237.01, 238.136 and 318.03 (1) shall be paid to the owner on proof of his right thereto. The claimant may, within 7 years after the date of publication by the treasurer of notice of receipt thereof as provided by s. ~~14.42~~ 14.58 (15), file in the county court in which the estate was settled, a petition alleging the basis of his claim to the residue or to the legacy or share. The court shall order a hearing upon the petition; and 20 days' notice thereof shall be given by the claimant to the attorney general, ~~who shall appear for the state at the hearing~~. A duly authorized representative of the department of justice shall appear for the state at the hearing. If the claim is established it shall be allowed without interest; and the court shall ~~so~~ certify to the department of administration, who shall audit and the state treasurer shall pay the same. If real property has been adjudged to escheat to the state pursuant to s. 237.01 (7) the county court which made the adjudication may adjudge at any time before title has been transferred from the state that the title shall be transferred to the proper owners pursuant to proceedings brought ~~in the manner as~~ provided in this subsection.

SECTION 569. 341.12 (4) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

341.12 (4) (a) All registration plates issued under s. 341.25 (1) (a) and for motor trucks having a gross weight of not more than 10,000 pounds on and after January 1, 1967, shall be treated with a reflectorized material. An additional fee of 15 cents per year per set of registration plates shall be collected for cost of reflectorization and administration. The department shall prescribe the term for the use of reflectorized plates.

(b) The department, in conjunction with the department of health and social services and the department of administration, shall establish the specifications for the reflectorized material and invite bids for supplying reflectorized material. The department of administration shall establish a date for the opening of such bids and shall award the contract for supplying reflectorized material to the lowest responsible bidder. The specifications shall be drawn up for each base plate year.

SECTION 570. 343.07 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

343.07 (2) (a) Upon application therefor by a person 16 years of age or older who is enrolled in a driver education and training course in any school or who has been accepted for instruction in driving in connection with a driver education course for teachers conducted by the university of Wisconsin or any state college or university in Wisconsin, and who, except for his lack of training in the operation of a motor vehicle, is qualified to obtain a license, the department may issue to the applicant a school instruction permit. Such permit shall be valid for a period not to exceed 6 months and entitles the permittee during such period and while having such permit in his immediate possession to operate a motor vehicle upon

the highways subject to the restrictions imposed by sub. (1) upon holders of general instruction permits, except as otherwise provided in par. (c).

SECTION 571. 963.03 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

963.03 (2) (a) Upon application of an employe of the ~~commissioner of taxation or the attorney general~~ *division of criminal investigation of the department of justice* to a court of record, a warrant may be issued to search for gambling devices, fermented malt beverages or intoxicating liquors believed to be concealed on premises located in the county where the warrant is issued, or in any county adjacent thereto, and shall command that the things seized and the person in possession of them be taken before a magistrate or court of the county wherein the property is seized or the person in possession of them is found. Such warrant shall be directed to the employes of the ~~commissioner of taxation or the attorney general, as the case may be,~~ *department of justice* and shall be executed by them.

(b) Subject to such variations the warrant so directed shall be in substantially the same form as prescribed in s. 963.05. The responsibility of the ~~commissioner of taxation and the attorney general~~ *department of justice* for the default or misconduct of their employes when so acting shall be equal to but not greater than the responsibility of a sheriff for his deputies under s. 59.22. The ~~commissioner of taxation and the attorney general~~ *department of justice* may require of their employes so acting a bond in such sum and with such sureties as ~~they may prescribe~~ *the department of justice prescribes*, conditioned upon the faithful performance of their duties in and about executing such warrants, and such bond shall have the same ~~force, effect and purport~~ as a bond required by a sheriff of his deputy under s. 59.22 (2).

SECTION 572. 963.04 (8) of the statutes is amended to read:

963.04 (8) Firearms, ammunition, explosives, bombs, ~~infernal machines~~, and like devices, which have been used in the commission of crime, shall be shipped to and become the property of the ~~state crime laboratory~~ *division*. Articles mentioned in sub. (5) shall be turned over to said laboratory at the request of the ~~superintendent administrator~~, in lieu of destruction. The ~~superintendent administrator~~ may, ~~in his discretion~~, destroy any such material for which the laboratory has no use or arrange for the exchange of such material with other public agencies. In lieu of destruction, shoulder weapons ~~only~~ for which the laboratory has no use shall be turned over to the ~~conservation commission and sold~~ *department of natural resources*. ~~The sale and disposition of the proceeds shall be as provided by s. 29.06 and the proceeds disposed of as therein provided.~~

SECTION 573. Chapter 17, laws of 1853, sections 1 and 3 are renumbered section 44.01 (1) and (2) of the statutes, respectively, and amended to read:

44.01 HISTORICAL SOCIETY; CORPORATE STRUCTURE. (1) That ~~Leonard J. Farwell, Mason C. Darling, Wm. R. Smith, Charles Lord, I. A. Lapham, Wm. H. Watson, Cyrus Woodman, James D. Doty, Morgan L. Martin, Lyman C. Draper, Samuel Marshall, John W. Hunt, Albert C. Ingham and O. M. Conover, and their present and future associates, and their successors, be and they are hereby constituted and created~~ *The historical society shall constitute* a body politic and corporate, by the name of "The State Historical Society of Wisconsin," ~~and by that name shall have perpetual succession with all the faculties and liabilities of a corporation; may sue and be sued, implead and be impleaded, defend and be defended in all courts and places; and for the purposes of its institution, may do all such acts as are performed by natural persons and shall possess all the powers necessary to accomplish the objects and perform the duties prescribed by law.~~

(2) ~~Said~~ *The historical society may have and use adopt, and at dis-*

~~erection change, a common seal; may ordain and enforce, a constitution, by laws, bylaws and rules and regulations, and elect such officers as the constitution or by laws may bylaws prescribe. Provided, such constitution, by laws, rules and regulations be not inconsistent with this act, or the law or constitution of this State, or of the United States. The composition and selection of the board of curators, and eligibility requirements for membership in the society shall be determined by the constitution and bylaws.~~

SECTION 574. Chapter 17, laws of 1853, section 2 is renumbered section 44.02 (16), (17) and (18) of the statutes and amended to read:

44.02 (16) ~~The object of the society shall be to~~ To collect, embody, arrange and preserve in authentic form, a library of books, pamphlets, maps, charts, manuscripts, papers, paintings, statuary, and other materials illustrative of the history of the state.

(17) ~~To rescue from oblivion~~ preserve the memory of its early pioneers, and to obtain and preserve narratives of their exploits, perils, and ~~hardy~~ adventures.

(18) To exhibit faithfully the antiquities, and the past and present condition, and resources of Wisconsin; ~~and may take proper steps to promote the study of history by lectures, and to diffuse and publish information relating to the description and history of the state.~~

SECTION 575. Chapter 17, laws of 1853, section 4, as last amended by chapter 185, laws of 1919, and section 5, are repealed.

SECTION 576. Chapter 327, laws of 1860, as last amended by chapter 142, laws of 1867, is repealed.

SECTION 577. Chapter 135, laws of 1866, as last amended by chapter 105, laws of 1871, is repealed.

SECTION 578. Chapter 114, laws of 1877, is repealed.

SECTION 579. Chapter 298, laws of 1895, as last affected by chapter 237, laws of 1897, is repealed.

SECTION 580. Chapter 252, laws of 1897, is repealed.

SECTION 581. CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICERS AND INTERSTATE BODIES. (1) Wherever the term "executive department" appears in sections 14.17, as renumbered, 20.921 (1) (f) and 20.923 (1) (a) 6 of the statutes, the term "executive office" is substituted.

(2) Wherever the term "division of state highway safety coordination" appears in section 20.525 (2) (intro.) of the statutes, the term "division of highway safety coordination" is substituted.

(3) Wherever the term "treasurer" appears in section 14.58 (title), (intro.) and (1) (a), (b) and (d) of the statutes, as renumbered, the term "state treasurer" is substituted.

(4) Wherever the term "state board of canvassers" or "state board" appears in section 7.70 (3) (a), (c), (d), (g) and (h) and (5) (a) of the statutes, the term "board of state canvassers" is substituted.

(5) Wherever the term "committee" appears in section 14.85 (1) of the statutes, as renumbered, the term "commission" is substituted.

SECTION 582. DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION. (1) Wherever the term "board's" appears in section 71.09 (7) (n) of the statutes, the term "commission's" is substituted.

(2) Wherever the term "bureau of finance" appears in section 14.58 (18) of the statutes, as renumbered, the term "department of administration" is substituted.

(3) Wherever the term "bureau of purchases" or "state bureau of purchases and services" appears in section 50.06 (7) of the statutes, the term "department of administration" is substituted.

(4) Wherever the term "claims commission" appears in section 16.53 (8) of the statutes, the term "claims board" is substituted.

- (5) Wherever the term “director of finance” appears in section 16.27 (1) of the statutes, the term “secretary of administration” is substituted.
- (6) Wherever the term “state personnel board” appears in section 16.02 (1) of the statutes, the term “personnel board” is substituted.
- (7) Wherever the term “committee” appears in sections 16.007 (2), as renumbered, and 16.80 (2) (c), (3) (title), (intro.) and (b), (5), (6), (7) (b) and (c) and (13) of the statutes, the term “board” is substituted.
- (8) Wherever the term “commissioner” appears in sections 16.004 (title), (1) and (6), as renumbered, of the statutes, the term “secretary” is substituted.
- (9) Wherever the term “commission” appears in sections 285.05 (3) to (5), 285.06 (3) to (7) and 285.11 (2) and (3) of the statutes, the term “claims board” is substituted.
- (10) Wherever the term “director of engineering” appears in sections 88.13, 88.21 (5), 88.30 (1) (intro.) and (2) to (4) and 88.35 (7) of the statutes, the term “secretary of administration” is substituted.
- (11) Wherever the term “committee on public records” appears in sections 16.80 (2) (c) and (4), 16.81 (3), 18.01 (5) (b) and 18.03 (1) of the statutes, the term “public records board” is substituted.
- (12) Wherever the term “board” appears in sections 70.64 (1) and (5) to (12), 70.94 (3), 71.09 (7) (n), 71.12 (1), 73.01 (4) and (5), as renumbered, 73.015 and 73.07 (2) of the statutes, the term “commission” is substituted.
- (13) Wherever the term “bureau of personnel” or “state bureau of personnel” appears in sections 36.185 (5) (a), 45.365 (1), 45.50 (1) and 159.05 (2) of the statutes, the term “director of personnel” is substituted.
- (14) Wherever the term “bureau of personnel” or “state bureau of personnel” appears in section 16.21 (1) of the statutes, the term “department of administration” is substituted.
- (15) Wherever the term “Wisconsin board of tax appeals” or “board of tax appeals” appears in sections 70.64 (1), (3) (a), (4) to (6), (9), (10) and (12), 70.94 (3) (a), 70.96 (2), 71.09 (7) (k) and (n), 71.12 (1) to (6), 71.13 (2), 73.015 (title), 73.03 (25), 73.07 (2) and 227.16 (1) of the statutes, the term “tax appeals commission” is substituted.
- (16) Wherever the term “director” appears in sections 16.40 (5), 16.41, 16.42 (intro.) and (4) to (6), 16.43, 16.44, 16.46 (intro.), (5) and (6), 16.461, 16.50, 16.52 (2) and (5) to (9), 16.53 (1) (a) and (c) 4 and (3) to (9), 16.77, 16.80 (10), 16.85 (8), 16.87, 16.89, 16.90 (intro.) and 16.91 of the statutes, the term “secretary” is substituted.
- (17) Wherever the term “commissioner of administration” appears in sections 13.482 (2) (b) and 13.58, both as renumbered, 16.53 (1) (d), 24.20, 25.06, 25.40 (2), 46.106 (2), 59.395 (5), 70.57 (3), 70.58 (3), 76.13 (2) and (3), 76.48 (8), 108.15 (7) (c) and 304.21 (2) of the statutes, the term “secretary of administration” is substituted.

SECTION 583. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE. (1) Wherever the words “state department of agriculture” or “Wisconsin department of agriculture” appear in sections 14.06, as renumbered, 26.30 (5), 27.015 (3) and (12), 36.22 (2), 37.30, 59.871 (1), 60.29 (22), 61.72, 66.075 (1), 70.423 (3), 70.425 (2) and (3), 93.01 (1), 93.09 (6), 93.22 (2), 94.02, 94.14 (1) (intro.), 94.16, 94.17, 94.19, 94.40 (2), 94.72 (2) (j), 94.76 (10) (b), 94.80, 97.046 (4), 97.43 (3), (4) and (6), 100.02, 100.13 (1) (b), 100.18 (7), 101.41, 133.25 (7) (a) and (b), 146.24, 174.07 (1) and (3), 174.08 and 174.11 (1) and (2) of the statutes, the words “department of agriculture” are substituted.

(2) Wherever the word “director” appears in sections 93.05, 93.07 (19), 93.18 (6), 94.755 (1), 96.01 (6), 96.03, 96.04, 96.06 (1) (intro.) and (2), 96.07, 96.08, 96.10, 96.11, 96.12, 96.16 (2) and (3), 96.17, 96.18, 96.19, 96.20

(intro.), (2), (3) and (7) and 98.22 of the statutes, the word "secretary" is substituted.

SECTION 584. DEPARTMENT OF INDUSTRY, LABOR AND HUMAN RELATIONS. (1) DEPARTMENT. (a) In the following statutes, wherever the term "commission's" appears, the term "department's" is substituted, and wherever the term "commission" or "industrial commission" or "industrial commission of Wisconsin" appears, the term "department" is substituted: 66.191 (2) (intro.) and (c), 101.08 (1), (2) and (3), 101.09, 101.10 (intro.), (1), (5c), (5d), (8), (9a), (11), (13) (b), (f) (intro.) and (g) and (14), 101.103 (2), (4) (intro.), (5) and (6) (a) and (b), 101.104, 101.105 (4) and (5), 101.11 (1) to (3), 101.13, 101.14 (2) and (3), 101.15 (1) to (5), 101.16 (1), (2) and (3), 101.17 (1) and (2), 101.18, 101.185, 101.21, 101.22, 101.25, 101.28, 101.29 (5), (6) and (7), 101.30, 101.305 (1), 101.306, 101.60 (4) and (4m), 102.05, 102.08, 102.12, 102.13 (2), 102.14 (1), 102.15 (1) and (2), 102.16 (1) and (2), 102.17 (1) (a), (am), (as) and (c) and (2), 102.18 (1), (5) and (6), 102.195, 102.21, 102.22, 102.23 (2) and (3), 102.24 (1), 102.25 (2), 102.26 (1), (3) and (4), 102.28 (2), (3) and (6), 102.29 (1) and (4), 102.30 (3), 102.31 (1) (a), (3) and (8), 102.32, 102.33, 102.34, 102.37, 102.38, 102.39, 102.40, 102.42 (2) to (5), (7) and (8), 102.44 (2), 102.45, 102.48, 102.49 (1), (3), (5) (d), (6) and (7), 102.51 (3) and (6), 102.55 (3), 102.56, 102.565 (1) and (2), 102.57, 102.58, 102.59 (3), 102.61 (4), 102.62, 102.63, 102.65 (2) to (14), 102.66, 103.02 (1) and (4), 103.04, 103.09, 103.21 (4), 103.22, 103.23, 103.25 (1), (2), (3) and (4), 103.26 (1) and (2), 103.27 (2), 103.28, 103.29, 103.31, 103.44, 103.455, 103.49 (3) and (5), 103.50 (3) (a) and (b), (4) and (5), 103.64 (3), 103.66 (1) to (3), 103.67 (3), 103.68 (intro.) and (3), 103.69 (intro.), 103.70 (1) and (2), 103.71 (1), 103.72 (1) and (2), 103.73 (1) (a) and (2), 103.74 (1) and (4), 103.75 (1) and (2), 103.77 (2), 103.79 (2), 103.80, 103.805, 103.82, 103.85 (3) and (3m), 104.04, 104.05, 104.06, 104.07, 104.08 (2) and (3), 104.09, 104.12, 105.06, 105.07 (2), 105.08, 105.10, 105.11, 105.14, 105.16, 106.01 (5i) to (5k), (8), (9) and (10), 106.02, 108.02 (3) (b), (4) (f), (g) (intro.) and (h), (5) (c) 1 and 2, (e), (f) (intro.) and 3 and (g) (intro.), 13 and 14, (6), (7) (b), (11) and (11m), 108.03 (1), 108.04 (1) (c), (d) 2, (e) and (g) 1 and 3, (2), (4) (c), (7) (b), (c), (d) and (f), (8) (a), (af), (b) and (d), (12) (b) and (f), (13) (a), (b), (c) 1 and 2, (d) and (e), (14) and (15) (intro.) and (c) 1, 108.05 (2) (b) (intro.) and (d), 108.06 (3) (e), 108.07 (2) and (3), 108.08, 108.09 (1), (2), (2m), (4), (5), (6m) and (8), 108.10 (2), 108.13 (2), 108.14 (1) to (3), (4), (7), (8) (a) and (c), (8m), (8n) (a), (b) and (f), (8s) to (11), (12) (d) and (14) to (17), 108.141, 108.15 (3), (4) (g), (5) (b), (6) (b), (8) and (9) (a), 108.16 (1), (2) (a) and (f), (2m), (3) (a), (4), (5) (b), (6) (intro.) and (i), (6m), (8) (a), (c) and (f) and (10m), 108.161 (8) and (8m), 108.17 (1m), (2) and (3), 108.18 (2) (b) (intro.), (8) (a) and (9) (h), 108.19, 108.20 (3), (5) and (8), 108.21, 108.22 (1) to (7) and (8) (b), 108.24, 111.35 (intro.) and (6), 111.36 (1) to (3), 111.37, 132.13 (2) and 140.27 (1).

(b) In the following statutes, wherever the term "commission", "industrial commission", "industrial commission of Wisconsin", "state industrial commission" or "Wisconsin industrial commission" appears, the term "department of industry, labor and human relations" is substituted: 16.765 (5), (6), (7) and (10), 45.35 (6) and (10), 45.50 (1), 48.67 (1), 50.04 (3), 56.21, 59.23 (10), 59.42 (8) (f), 59.47 (10), 66.191 (4) and (5), 66.293 (3) (intro.), (a) and (d), 66.907 (3) (f) and (4), 101.10 (9a), 101.31 (5) (c), 101.315 (3) (a) 5, 101.37 (2), 101.41, 101.42, 101.43, 103.37 (4), 105.05, 106.01 (2), 129.14 (1), 140.51, 140.53 (1) (intro.) and (2) (intro.), 140.54 (1), 140.58, 140.59, 140.60, 145.03, 146.085, 158.01 (7), 158.09 (1) (e) and (2), 159.12 (3), 160.055, 160.09, 160.10, 167.11 (2), 167.27 (5), 201.59 (1) (b) and (d), (3) and (5), 205.02 (1), 205.05 (3), 205.08 (5), 215.04 (1) (f), as renumbered, and 227.25.

(c) In the following statutes, wherever the term "said commission", "said industrial commission", "such commission" or "the said commission" appears, the term "the department" is substituted: 102.05 (1), 102.16 (1), 102.17 (1) (am), 104.04, 105.11, 105.15 and 106.01 (9).

(2) COMMISSION. (a) Wherever the term "industrial commission", "industrial commission of Wisconsin", "state industrial commission", or "Wisconsin industrial commission" appears in sections 102.31 (7) and 102.35 (2) of the statutes, the term "commission" is substituted.

(b) Wherever the term "industrial commission" appears in sections 101.31 (3) (a) and (d) and 106.01 (4) (e) of the statutes, the term "industry, labor and human relations commission" is substituted.

(3) DIVISION OF EQUAL RIGHTS. Wherever the term "fair employment division", "fair employment division of the industrial commission" or "equal opportunities division" appears in section 16.765 (5), (6), (8), (9) and (10) of the statutes, the term "division of equal rights" is substituted.

SECTION 585. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE. (1) Wherever the term "attorney general" or "attorney-general" appears in sections 13.83 (3) (b) 3. b, 16.94, 52.10 and 208.34 of the statutes, the term "department of justice" is substituted.

(2) Wherever the term "office of the attorney general" or "attorney general's office" appears in sections 13.52 (1) (d), 16.105 (2) (bx), 35.93 (6) (f) and 957.265 (2) of the statutes, the term "department of justice" is substituted.

(3) Wherever the term "attorney-general of this state" or "attorney-general of the state" appears in sections 207.09 (2) and 269.56 (11) of the statutes, the term "attorney general" is substituted.

(4) Wherever the term "attorney-general" appears in section 206.38 of the statutes, the term "attorney general" is substituted.

(5) Wherever the term "attorney in general" appears in section 217.06 (3) (a) of the statutes, the term "attorney general" is substituted.

(6) Wherever the term "commissioner of taxation" appears in section 176.62 (1) and (5) of the statutes, the term "duly authorized employes of the department of justice and the department of revenue" is substituted.

(7) Wherever the term "commissioner of taxation" appears in sections 66.054 (5) (c) and (d) and (18), 176.01 (3), 176.05 (8a) and (13), 176.121 (5), 176.71 and 176.90 (3) of the statutes, the term "department of justice" is substituted.

(8) Wherever the term "commissioner" appears in section 176.05 (13) of the statutes, the term "department" is substituted.

(9) Wherever the term "department of taxation" appears in section 176.62 (2) (a), (b) and (c) and (3) (b) of the statutes, the term "department of justice" is substituted.

SECTION 586. DEPARTMENT OF MILITARY AFFAIRS. (1) Wherever the term "adjutant general" appears in sections 21.025 (3), 21.19 (2) and (3) and 21.616 of the statutes, the term "department of military affairs" is substituted.

(2) Wherever the term "office of the adjutant general" appears in section 21.48 (3) of the statutes, the term "department of military affairs" is substituted.

(3) Wherever "state of Wisconsin armory board" or "state armory board" appears in sections 21.612 and 21.615 (2) (i) of the statutes, the term "armory board" is substituted.

SECTION 587. DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL AFFAIRS AND DEVELOPMENT. Wherever the words "civil defense and disaster control" appear in sections 70.11 (23) and 132.17 of the statutes, the words "emergency gov-

ernment" are substituted.

SECTION 588. DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES. (1) In the following statutes, wherever the term "public service commission", "conservation commission", "conservation director", "state conservation commission", "state conservation", "department of conservation", or "commission" appears, the term "department of natural resources" is substituted: 1.035, 1.055, 13.83 (3) (b) 3. f, 24.39 (4) (c) and (f), 35.29 (2), 36.06 (8), 36.215 (4), 36.217, 44.02 (5), 44.12, 44.13 (1), 45.40 (2), 54.30, 56.04, 59.07 (1) (e), 59.635 (6), 59.715 (3), 60.18 (15), 60.29 (44) (a), 70.113, 70.118, 70.335, 70.58, 77.02, 77.04, 77.05, 77.06, 77.07, 77.08, 77.09, 77.10, 77.11, 77.16, 108.02 (5) (f) 5 and 134.60.

(2) In the following statutes, wherever the term "said commissioners" or "the said commissioners" appears, the term "the board" is substituted; and wherever the term "commissioners of the public lands" or "board of commissioners of the public lands" appears, the term "board of commissioners of public lands" is substituted: 19.11 (1), as renumbered, 23.02, 23.04, 23.06, 23.13, 24.03, 24.04, 24.05, 24.06, 24.08, 24.09, 24.10, 24.16, 24.17, 24.18, 24.19, 24.21, 24.25, 24.251, 24.27, 24.28, 24.33, 24.35, 24.36, 24.37, 24.39 (1), (2) and (4), 25.01, 25.03, 25.05 (6), 25.06, 25.10, 26.08 (1) and (2), 26.10, 30.11 (2) and (5) (b), 56.04, 66.03 (10) and (11) and 66.64.

(3) In the following statutes, wherever the term "agents" or "deputies" appears, the term "wardens" is substituted: 26.30 (4), 27.01 (8), 29.05 (1) and (4), 29.08 (2), 29.09 (6), 29.134 (9) and (10), 29.47 (5), 29.51 (2), 29.546 and 29.578 (13) and (14) (b) 5.

(4) In the following statutes, wherever the term "state conservation commission", "conservation commission", "conservation department", or "commission" appears, the term "department" is substituted; and wherever the term "said commission" or "such commission" appears, the term "the department" is substituted: 23.09 (2) (b) 1, (L) and (o), (3), (4), (5), (6), (9), (10), (11) (a) and (c) to (f), (12) (a), (d) and (e) and (13), as renumbered, 25.29, 25.30, 26.01, 26.06, 26.08, 26.10, 26.11, 26.12 (1), (2) and (4) to (7), 26.13, 26.14, 26.20 (3) and (7) to (11), 26.205, 26.22, 26.30 (3), (4) and (7) to (10), 27.01 (1), (2), (2r), and (4) to (8), 27.015, 28.01, 28.02, 28.03, 28.04, 28.05 (1), 28.06 (1), (2) and (4), 28.07, 28.11, except 28.11 (6) (b) 1, 28.21, chapter 29, except 29.01 (9), 29.04 (2), 29.05 (9), 29.06 (1), 29.07, 29.08 (1) and (4), 29.09 (9), 29.137 (5m), 29.14 (2), 29.174 (4a), 29.225 (2), (3) and (6), 29.29 (4), 29.33 (2) (a) 1, 29.51 (5), 29.544 (2), 29.545, 29.585 (2) (a), 29.60 (3), as renumbered, 29.605 (1), 29.641 and 29.65 (2); 30.15 (2), 30.24, 30.251, except 30.251 (3) (g), 30.26, 30.501, 30.51, 30.52, 30.53, 30.54, 30.55, 30.62, 30.65, 30.67, 30.74, 30.77, 30.79, 30.90, 31.02 (4) (c) and 31.33.

(5) In the following statutes, wherever the term "state department of resource development" or "department of resource development" appears, the term "department" is substituted: 29.29 (3), 30.02, 30.03, 30.06, 30.11, except 30.11 (5) (a), 30.12, except 30.12 (2) (b), 30.13, 30.14, 30.18, except 30.18 (5) and (8), 30.19, except 30.19 (3), 30.20, 30.205, 30.21, 30.31, 31.02 (5), 31.06, 31.095, 31.18, 31.19, 31.23, 31.34, 31.38 and 97.30.

(6) In the following statutes, wherever the term "state department of resource development" or "department of resource development" appears, the term "department of natural resources" is substituted: 31.01 (1), 31.33, 59.07 (75), 59.96, 60.303, 60.315, 66.33 (5) and (6), 87.01 (1), 87.02, 87.14, 87.18, 88.72 (4), 107.05 (2), 144.025 (title) and (1), 144.07 (1), 144.10, 144.14 (1), 144.21 (2), 144.56 (intro.), 146.20 (1) and (2) (a), 162.01 (1) and 162.02.

(7) Wherever the term "state recreation council" appears in section 20.370 (7) (g) (intro.) and 1 of the statutes, the term "recreation council" is substituted.

(8) Wherever the term "Wisconsin council on natural beauty" appears

in section 59.07 (59) of the statutes, the term "natural beauty council" is substituted.

(9) In the following statutes, wherever the term "state board of health" appears, the term "department of natural resources" is substituted; and wherever the term "such board" appears, the term "the department" is substituted: 60.72 (1), 66.202 (3), 66.205 (10) and 198.22 (7).

(10) Wherever the term "state recreation committee" appears in section 139.36 of the statutes, the term "recreation council" is substituted.

(11) In the following statute, wherever the term "public service commission" appears, the term "department of natural resources" is substituted; and wherever the term "commission" appears, the term "department" is substituted: 88.31 (1), (2), (3), (4) (intro.), (5), (6) and (7) of the statutes.

(12) Wherever the term "department" appears in section 59.971 (6) of the statutes, the term "department of natural resources" is substituted.

(13) Wherever the term "resource development board" appears in section 144.21 (10) of the statutes, the term "natural resources board" is substituted.

SECTION 589. DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION. (1) **DEPARTMENT.** (a) Wherever the term "state superintendent" appears in sections 13.83 (3) (b) 3. d, 20.255 (2) (v) and (3) (a) 2, 45.35 (6), 115.31 (2), (3) and (5), 115.34, 115.78, 115.80 (1) and (2), 115.81 (4) and (8), 115.82 (5), 115.83, 116.08 (4), 116.52 (3) (a), 118.01 (3), (9) and (10), 118.145 (3), 118.15 (4), 118.19 (1) and (4), 118.25 (2) (c), 120.13 (5), 120.17 (6), 120.18 (intro.) and (8), 121.02 (1) (a) and (2) (d), 121.05, 121.07 (5) (d), 121.14 (1) (b) and (2) (b), 121.15, 121.16, 121.52 (2) (c) and (3) (b), 121.55 (1) (b), 121.58 (1) and (4), 121.77 (2), 121.84 (3) (a), 159.08 (10) and 343.60 (1) of the statutes, the term "department" is substituted.

(b) Wherever the term "state superintendent" appears in sections 35.26 (1) and 59.17 (10) and (11) of the statutes, the term "department of public instruction" is substituted.

(c) Wherever the term "superintendent" appears in sections 35.86 (1), 36.227 (3) (b), 43.27 (5), 43.28 (3), 43.31 and 43.55, as renumbered, of the statutes, the term "department" is substituted.

(d) Wherever the term "state department of public instruction" appears in sections 69.32 (3), 142.01 (2), 142.03 (1) and (3) (c), 142.04, 142.05 (3), 142.07 (2) (b) and 142.08 (1m), (4) and (6) of the statutes, the term "department of public instruction" is substituted.

(2) **STATE SUPERINTENDENT.** (a) Wherever the term "state superintendent of schools" appears in sections 12.20 (1) (c), 60.29 (33), 61.34 (4), 62.12 (9), 67.12 (8) and 119.09 (4) of the statutes, the term "state superintendent of public instruction" is substituted.

(b) Wherever the term "superintendent" appears in sections 35.85 (2) (b) and (6), 37.13, 43.10 (title) and (1) (intro.), 43.24 (3) and 119.13 (3) of the statutes, the term "state superintendent" is substituted.

(3) **HANDICAPPED CHILDREN.** (a) Wherever the term "crippled children division" appears in sections 69.32 (3), 119.09 (4) and 142.03 (3) (c) of the statutes, the term "division for handicapped children" is substituted.

(b) Wherever the term "bureau" appears in sections 20.255 (3) (p), 115.53 (6), 115.57, 115.76 (2) and (3), 115.77 (2) (b), (3) and (4), 115.82 (1) (b), 115.84 (1), 115.85 (2), 142.01 (2), 142.03 (1), 142.04, 142.05 (3), 142.07 (2) (b) and 142.08 (1m), (4) and (6) of the statutes, the term "division" is substituted.

(c) Wherever the term "director" appears in sections 115.53 (6), 115.76 (3) and 115.77 (2) (intro.) of the statutes, the term "administrator" is substituted.

(4) LIBRARY SERVICES. Wherever the term "director" appears in section 43.12 (3) and (9) of the statutes, the term "division" is substituted.

(5) EDUCATIONAL APPROVAL. Wherever the term "council" or "council's" appears in sections 20.255 (1) (b) (title) and 115.40 (title), (1) (a), (2), (5), (6) (a), (7) (intro.) and (g), (8) (a), (b), (c) (intro.) 1, 2, 4 and 5, (d) and (e) and (9) (h) of the statutes, the terms "board" and "board's", respectively, are substituted.

SECTION 590. DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE. (1) Wherever the term "department of taxation", "state department of taxation" or "Wisconsin department of taxation" appears in sections 13.83 (3) (b) 3. a, 16.40 (13), 16.85 (1), 25.05 (5a), 36.30 (1) and (3), 60.81 (5), 61.187 (2), 61.189 (2), 62.075 (5), 66.018 (5), 66.021 (8) (b), 66.025, 66.026, 66.03 (2c), 66.902 (6) (b) 2, 67.03 (4), (5) and (6), 67.04 (1) (a), 68.01, 68.02, 68.03, 68.04, 70.055, 70.09 (3), 70.11 (21) (d) and (e), 70.111 (10) (b) 6, 70.345, 70.35 (2), 70.47 (7) (a), 70.53, 70.54, 70.55, 70.57 (1), 70.575, 70.58 (2), 70.60, 70.62 (2), 70.64 (4), (5), (6), (8) and (11), 70.66 (3), 70.75 (1) and (2), 70.76 (1), 70.80, 70.81, 70.82, 70.83, 70.84, 70.85, 70.92 (2), 70.94, 70.95, 70.96 (1), (3) and (4), 70.97 (1), 71.01 (3) (d), 71.03 (1) (g), 71.035 (1) (b) and (2) (a) 6 and (c), 71.04 (2a) (a) and (b), (2b) (a), (2c) (a), (5) (b), (13) (b) and (d) and (14) (d) 4. b, 71.046 (4), 71.05 (1) (b) 5. a, 71.07 (2) (intro.) and (b), (3) and (5), 71.08 (6), 71.09 (4) (b), (7) (d), (e), (i) and (m), (8) and (10), 71.10 (2), (3) (a), (3m) (a), (4), (5) (a), (7), (8) (b), (8m), (8n), (9) (intro.) and (e), (10) (f) and (g), (11) and (14) (a) and (c), 71.11 (1) to (5), (7) (b), (8) (a), (10) to (13), (15) to (17), (19) (a), (20), (21) (d), (23), (24), (40) and (44), 71.12 (1), (2), (3) and (7), 71.13 (1), (3) (a), (b), (d), (f), (g) and (i) and (4) (a), (b) and (g), 71.135 (1) and (5), 71.14 (2) (b), (3), (5) and (6) (c), 71.17 (2), (3) and (4), 71.18 (3), 71.19 (5), 71.21 (19) (b), 71.307 (1) and (2) (b), 71.312 (8), 71.333 (3), 71.334 (2) (b), 71.337 (3) (b) 2, 71.355 (1) (a) 4, 71.358 (2) (a), 71.362 (3) (b), 72.05 (1) and (2), 72.08, 72.11 (2), (3) and (4), 72.13, 72.15 (1), (2), (4), (8m), (10) and (11), 72.16, 72.17 (3), 72.175, 72.176, 72.18 (7), (8) and (9), 72.19, 72.21, 72.57, 72.76 (3) and (5), 72.81 (1) to (4), (6), (7), (10) and (13), 73.01 (4) (a) and (e) and (5), as renumbered, 73.03 (6), (20), (21) and (25), 73.04 (2) and (3), 73.05, 73.06, 73.07 (1), 74.18, 76.01, 76.02 (1), 76.03 (2), 76.04 (2), 76.06, 76.08 (1), 76.13 (1), 73.38 (1) (a), 76.39 (1) (a), 76.48 (2), (3) and (4), 77.02 (3), 77.04 (1), 77.10 (1) and (2) (a), 77.51 (19), 77.61 (1) (c) and (5) (b) (intro.) and 1, 77.62 (1), 77.63 (1), (1a), (3) (intro.) and (b) and (4) (a), 77.64 (1) (intro.), (a) and (c), 77.68 (1), 78.02, 78.41, 84.11 (5) (am), 97.73 (5), 121.06, 128.14 (1), 139.03 (5) (d), 144.21 (3) (b) 4, 185.81, 195.33 (4), 198.10 (3), 218.01 (3) (a) 3, 218.10 (6) (c), 218.22 (3) (c), 218.32 (3) (c), 227.15, 227.16 (1), 311.05 (2) (d), 313.13 (1) and 341.17 (4) (g) of the statutes, the term "department of revenue" is substituted.

(2) Wherever the term "commissioner of taxation" or "tax commissioner" appears in sections 13.52 (1) (e), 66.054 (3) (a) and (23), 66.057 (2), 70.335 (3), (4), (5), (11), (12), (13), (14), (15), (16), (17) and (18), 70.57 (1), 70.92 (2), 70.94 (1) and (3) (a), 70.96 (4), 70.97 (2) (b), 71.04 (14) (c) 2, 71.05 (4), 71.09 (3) and (7) (a) 5, (b) and (g) 3, 71.10 (14) (a), 71.11 (44) (c) 1 and (49), 71.12 (1), 71.13 (3) (g) and (4) (g), 71.135 (4), 71.14 (6) (b), 71.20 (5) (a), (10), (12) and (19), 73.01 (6) (c), 73.03 (23) (a), 76.08 (1), 76.13 (1), 76.38 (9), 77.61 (5) (b) 1, 77.62 (2), 139.05 (2a), 139.25 (4), 139.60 (2) (c), 176.03 (2), (2a) and (3), 176.04 (3), 176.041, 176.05 (1a) (intro.), (1b), (1d), (1f), (1h), (4a), (4b), (8), (14), (21) (f) and (23) (h), 176.051, 176.055, 176.18 (8), 176.38 (1) and (4), 176.402 (2) and (3), 176.403, 176.404, 176.406 (1) and (2), 176.41, 176.42, 176.43 (2), (2a) and (2b), 176.60 (3) and (4), 176.70 (1), (2) and (3) and 885.01 (4) of the statutes, the term "secretary of revenue" is substituted.

(3) Wherever the term “commissioner” appears in sections 71.04 (13) (f), 71.11 (7m), 71.20 (1), (1m) and (19), 73.03 (23) (b) and (c), 139.05 (2), (4), (5) (intro.), (b) and (c) and (7) (b), (c) and (f), 139.06 (1), (2), (3), (4) and (5), 139.061, 139.09, 139.10 (1) and (3), 139.11, 139.25 (6), 139.32 (1), (2), (3), (4), (6) and (8), 139.33 (3), 139.34 (1) and (7), 139.35 (2), 139.36, 139.38, 139.40 (1), (2) and (4), 139.44 (4), 139.60 (2) (d), 176.03 (2a), 176.05 (1a), (1d), (1h), (4a), (4b) and (23) (h), 176.055, 176.18 (8), 176.404, 176.42 (title), 176.60 (4) and 176.70 (1) and (3) of the statutes, the term “secretary” is substituted.

(4) Wherever the term “W.D.T. (meaning Wisconsin Department of Taxation)” appears in section 78.77 (1) of the statutes, the term “W.D.R. (meaning Wisconsin Department of Revenue)” is substituted.

(5) Wherever the term “commissioner” appears in section 66.054 (23) of the statutes, the term “department of revenue” is substituted.

(6) Wherever the term “commissioner” appears in section 139.05 (1) and (3) of the statutes, the term “department” is substituted.

(7) Wherever the term “commissioner of taxation’s” appears in section 70.94 (3) (a) of the statutes, the term “secretary of revenue’s” is substituted.

(8) Wherever the term “office of the commissioner of taxation” or “office of the department of taxation” appears in sections 66.054 (15) (b) and 68.06 of the statutes, the term “department of revenue” is substituted.

(9) Wherever the term “supervisor of assessments of the Wisconsin department of taxation” or “such supervisor of assessments” appears in section 66.03 (2) (a) and (2c) of the statutes, the term “department of revenue” is substituted.

SECTION 591. DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS. (1) Wherever the term “Wisconsin department of veterans affairs” or “Wisconsin department of veterans’ affairs” appears in sections 25.36 (1), 45.21, 45.30 (2), 45.35 (title), 45.352 (1), 45.36 (1) (a), 45.365, 45.396, 45.40 (1), 45.42 (1), 66.39 (1), (11) and (13), 235.70, 241.09 and 278.16 (1) of the statutes, the term “department of veterans affairs” is substituted.

(2) Wherever the term “department of veterans’ affairs” appears in sections 25.17 (3) (bg), 142.09 and 142.10 (2) of the statutes, the term “department of veterans affairs” is substituted.

(3) Wherever the term “state department of veterans’ affairs” appears in sections 25.17 (3) (bg), 51.02 (1) (b) and 51.12 (5) and (7) of the statutes, the term “department of veterans affairs” is substituted.

(4) Wherever the term “board of veterans’ affairs” appears in section 45.37 (14) of the statutes, the term “board of veterans affairs” is substituted.

(5) Wherever the term “commission” appears in section 45.60 (title) of the statutes, the term “council” is substituted.

(6) Wherever the term “director” appears in section 45.35 (12) (b) of the statutes, the term “secretary” is substituted.

SECTION 592. OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER OF BANKING. (1) Wherever the term “department’s” appears in section 214.08 (1) of the statutes, the term “office’s” is substituted.

(2) Wherever the term “banking commissioner” appears in sections 221.04 (1) (e) and 221.047 (title) of the statutes, the term “commissioner of banking” is substituted.

(3) Wherever the term “state banking department” appears in sections 186.04 (2), 220.025 (2) (a), 220.05 (2), 221.046 (title) and 221.56 (1) of the statutes, the term “office of the commissioner of banking” is substituted.

(4) Wherever the term “state commissioner of banks” appears in

CHAPTER 276

844

sections 43.28 (3), 218.01 (1) (j), 218.04 (1) (a), 218.05 (1) (a) and (b), 220.025 (2) (intro.) and 220.28 of the statutes, the term "commissioner of banking" is substituted.

(5) Wherever the term "banking department" appears in sections 186.119 (1), 186.18, 186.21, 186.29 (6), 189.06 (8), 220.02 (6), as renumbered, 220.035 (1) (c), as renumbered, 220.04 (5), 220.05 (6), 220.08 (7), 222.021 (2), 222.022 (2) and 224.10 (2) (a) and (c) and (3) of the statutes, the term "office of the commissioner of banking" is substituted.

(6) Wherever the term "department" appears in sections 20.124 (1) (g), 214.02 (1) and (3), 214.03 (intro.), 214.05 (2) and (3), 214.06 (1) (intro.) and (c) and (2) to (6), 214.07 (title), (intro.), (2), (4) and (5), 214.08 (1) and (2), 214.09 to 214.12, 214.13 (2), 214.14 (3), 214.19, 214.26, 214.27, 217.02 (7) and (8), 217.03, 217.05 (intro.) and (5) (a) and (c), 217.06 (intro.), (2) and (3), 217.07, 217.08 (2) and (3), 217.09 (1) (intro.) and (c) and (2) to (6), 217.10 (title), (intro.) and (2), 220.05 (5) and 220.06 (1) of the statutes, the term "office" is substituted.

(7) Wherever the term "commissioner of banks" appears in sections 17.07 (3), 20.912 (4), 34.01 (6), 34.026, 34.03 (1) (intro.), (d, f), (i), (L) and (n), 34.04 (1) and (3), 34.05 (1), (2) and (4), 34.08 to 34.10, 34.11, 35.86 (1), 66.412, 66.416 (2), 67.04 (9), 71.01 (3) (d), 138.07 (4), 138.09 (1) and (6), 186.02, 186.03, 186.04 (1), 186.09 (2), (7) and (10), and (10), 186.11, 186.112, 186.119 (1), 186.17, 186.19 (1), (2) and (4) (a) and (b), 186.22 (1) (intro.), (2) (intro.), (3) (intro.) and (a), (4) (d), (5) (c), (6), (10), (11) and (15), 186.24, 186.25, 186.27, 186.28, 186.29 (title), (1) (intro.), (2), (4) to (10) and (13) (a), (b) and (d), 186.30 (1), 186.31 (1), 186.315, 186.33, 217.15, 218.02 (1) (b) and (2) (a), 220.02 (title), (2), (3) and (4), as renumbered, 220.025 (1) and (2) (d), 220.035 (1) (b), as renumbered, 220.04 (1) (a) and (6) (d), 220.05 (1), 220.06 (1), 220.065, 220.07 (1), 220.075 (3) (intro.), 220.08 (1) and (3b), 220.081 (1), 220.086, 220.09, 220.12, 220.13, 220.285 (1), 221.01 (1) and (4), 221.03 (1), 221.04 (1) (intro.), (4) and (7), 221.041 (5), 221.045 (1), 221.046 (1) and (2), 221.05, 221.06 (intro.), 221.07, 221.08 (3), 221.09, 221.12, 221.14 (1), (4) (a) and (5), 221.15 (1), 221.16, 221.19, 221.205, 221.21 to 221.23, 221.24 (1), 221.245, 221.25 (1), 221.26, 221.27, 221.29 (1) (cm), 221.33 (1), 221.37 (1), 221.38 (1) (b), 221.41, 221.43, 221.49, 221.50 to 221.53, 221.56 (1), 222.02 (intro.), 222.021 (2), 222.022 (2), 222.024, 222.08 (1), 222.12 (3), 222.17, 222.20, 222.21 (2) and (3), 222.22, 223.02, 223.03 (10), 223.12 (1), 224.06 (1) and (4) (b), 224.10 (1) (c) and (2) (b), 227.15 and 227.16 (1) of the statutes, the term "commissioner of banking" is substituted.

(8) Wherever the term "deputy commissioner of banks" appears in section 220.025 (1) of the statutes, the term "deputy commissioner of banking" is substituted.

SECTION 593. EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS COMMISSION. Wherever the term "board" or "board's" appear in sections 111.02 (6) and (11), 111.05 (2) to (4), 111.06 (1) (c) and (d), 111.07 (1) to (8), (10), (12) and (13), 111.08, 111.09, 111.10, 111.11, 111.12, 111.14, 111.53, 111.54, 111.55, 111.59, 111.61, 111.63, 111.70 (4) (intro.), (b), (d), (f), (g), (h) 1, (j) and (m), 111.81 (3), (6) and (12), 111.83 (2) to (5), 111.84 (1) (d), 111.85, 111.86, 111.87, 111.88 (1), (2) and (4) and 111.92 of the statutes, the terms "commission" and "commission's", respectively are substituted.

SECTION 594. COORDINATING COUNCIL FOR HIGHER EDUCATION. (1) Wherever the term "coordinating committee" appears in subchapter I (title) of ch. 39 and sections 36.06 (10), 37.02 (5), 38.13 (5) and 38.155 (1), both as renumbered, 39.03 (7) and (8), 39.04 and 39.05 (3), (4) and (5) of the statutes, the term "coordinating council" is substituted.

(2) Wherever the term "committee" appears in sections 39.03 (intro.) to (7) and 39.04 of the statutes, the term "coordinating council" is substituted.

(3) Wherever the term “committee’s” appears in section 39.03 (1) of the statutes, the term “coordinating council’s” is substituted.

(4) Wherever the term “educational broadcasting division” appears in sections 15.641 (1) and 15.643 (1) of the statutes, the term “educational communications division” is substituted.

(5) Wherever the term “educational broadcasting board” appears in section 15.643 (1) of the statutes, the term “educational communications board” is substituted.

(6) Wherever the term “radio council” appears in section 36.063 of the statutes, the term “educational communications division” is substituted.

(7) Wherever the term “council” appears in section 39.11 (12) of the statutes, as renumbered, the term “coordinating council” is substituted.

SECTION 595. HIGHER EDUCATIONAL AIDS BOARD. (1) Wherever the term “state commission for higher educational aids” appears in sections 25.17 (3) (bf), 36.161 (1), 37.11 (12) and 38.13 (11), as renumbered of the statutes, the term “higher educational aids board” is substituted.

(2) Wherever the term “commission” appears in sections 39.28 (1) and (2), 39.29, 39.30 (2) (b) and (c) and (4), 39.31 (3) (intro.), 39.32 (2) (intro.), (3) (intro.) and (b) and (5), as renumbered, 39.33 and 39.34 of the statutes, the term “board” is substituted.

SECTION 596. HISTORICAL SOCIETY. Wherever the term “state historical society” appears in sections 16.08 (2) (c), 16.80 (13), 16.84 (10), 18.01 (5) (a) and (6), 18.03, 20.245 (1) (h), 20.923 (3) (f), 25.14 (1), 25.17 (3) (c), 27.01 (2) (d), 35.01 (3), 35.24 (1) (a), 35.84 (4) (b), 35.85 (12), 35.86 (1), 35.93 (6) (c), 36.26 (2), 43.27 (5), 44.02 (intro.), 44.03 (2), (4), (5) and (6), 44.04 (1), 44.05 (1), 44.06, 44.07 (1), 44.10 (1), 44.11, 59.17 (17), 59.716 (intro.), 59.717 (intro.), 119.235 and 220.08 (17) of the statutes, the term “historical society” is substituted.

SECTION 597. OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER OF INSURANCE. (1) Wherever the term “department’s” appears in section 200.12 (1) of the statutes, the term “office’s” is substituted.

(2) Wherever the term “department” appears in sections 201.03 (8) (c), 206.02 (4) and 206.38 (6) of the statutes, the term “office” is substituted.

(3) Wherever the term “department of insurance” appears in sections 200.04 (4), 206.02 (3) (d), 208.23 and 211.07 (2) of the statutes, the term “office of the commissioner of insurance” is substituted.

(4) Wherever the term “insurance department” appears in sections 200.04 (4), 201.45 (1), 203.16 (4), 206.40, 645.24 (3) and 645.46 (4) of the statutes, the term “office of the commissioner of insurance” is substituted.

(5) Wherever the term “council on employe welfare funds” appears in section 15.737 (2) of the statutes, the term “council on employe welfare plans” is substituted.

SECTION 598. INVESTMENT BOARD. (1) Wherever the term “state of Wisconsin investment board” or “Wisconsin investment board” appears in sections 14.58 (16), as renumbered, 16.40 (11), (12) and (13), 23.14 (6), 25.14 (1), 25.16 (1), 25.17 (5), (9), (10), (12) (g), (14), (15) and (61), 25.18 (1), 25.19, 34.01 (4), 42.243 (4) (f), 42.65, 42.66 (3), 66.82, 66.904 (1) (a) 4, 66.9065 (7) (b), 66.912 (1) (q), 66.914 (1), 67.04 (9), 70.115, 71.20 (4), 102.59 (4), 102.65 (10), 119.24 (6) (d) 6, (9) (a) 1 and (10) (a), 210.04 (6), 210.05 (2), 220.08 (15) and 231.45 of the statutes, the term “investment board” is substituted.

(2) Wherever the term “trustees” appears in sections 25.156 (title), (2), (3) and (4) and 25.16 (1), (3) and (5) of the statutes, the term “members of the board” is substituted.

(3) Wherever the term “state investment board” appears in section

66.82 of the statutes, the term "investment board" is substituted.

SECTION 599. PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION. Wherever the term "state public service commission" or "public service commission of Wisconsin" or "said public service commission" appears in sections 65.06 (17), 191.18, 192.52 (4) and 198.01 (5) of the statutes, the term "public service commission" is substituted.

SECTION 600. OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER OF SAVINGS AND LOAN. (1) Wherever the term "advisory committee" appears in sections 215.04 (1) (intro.), (2), (3) (b) and (4) to (7), as renumbered, 215.05 (1), 215.06 (1), 215.07 (2) and (18), 215.09 (7), 215.13 (26) (e), 215.16 (7), 215.19 (4), 215.21 (5) (a), 215.24 (4), 215.30 (1) and (2) and 215.32 (1) (intro.) of the statutes, the term "review board" is substituted.

(2) Wherever the term "department" appears in sections 215.03 (2), 215.04 (3) (b), as renumbered, 215.05 (5) and 215.07 (5) and (15) of the statutes, the term "office" is substituted.

(3) Wherever the term "commissioner of savings and loan associations" appears in sections 220.023, 227.15 and 227.16 (1) of the statutes, the term "commissioner of savings and loan" is substituted.

(4) Wherever the term "savings and loan department" appears in sections 189.06 (8) and 268.16 (7) of the statutes, the term "office of the commissioner of savings and loan" is substituted.

(5) Wherever the term "savings and loan advisory committee" appears in section 227.16 (1) of the statutes, the term "savings and loan review board" is substituted.

SECTION 601. OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER OF SECURITIES.

(1) Wherever the words "department of securities" appear in section 201.74 (1) (c) of the statutes, the words "commissioner of securities" are substituted.

(2) Wherever the word "department's" appears in section 189.17 (title) of the statutes, the word "commissioner's" is substituted.

(3) Wherever the word "director" appears in sections 189.02 (11), 189.04 (1) (b) and (7) (b), 189.13 (11), 189.17 (4), 189.21 (1) to (3) and 189.27 of the statutes, the word "commissioner" is substituted.

(4) Wherever the word "department" appears in sections 189.02 (3) (a) 3 and (b), (11) and (12), 189.04 (1), (2) (intro.), (h), (i) and (k), (3), (4), (5), (6) and (7) (a) and (b), 189.05, 189.07 (13) (a) and (b), (14) (a) and (b), (18) (a) and (b), 20 (a) and (b), 21 (a) and (b), (22) (a) and (b) and (23) (a) and (b), 189.08 (1) (d) 4, (2), (3), (4) and (5), 189.09 (1) (a), (2) and (3), 189.10 (3) and (4), 189.11 (1), 189.12, 189.13 (2) (3) (intro.) and (h), (4) (intro.) and (a), (5), (6), (9), (11) and (12), 189.14, 189.15, 189.16, 189.17, 189.18 (1), (3), (5) and (6), 189.19 (1) (a) and (b), (2) (a) to (h), (3) and (4), 189.20 (2) and (3), 189.21 (1), (2), (3), (4) and (7), 189.22, 189.25, 189.27, 189.28 (2), (3), (5) (intro.), (a) and (b) and (6) and 189.29 of the statutes, the word "commissioner" is substituted.

SECTION 602. BOARD OF REGENTS OF STATE UNIVERSITIES. (1)

Wherever the term "state college" or "state colleges" appears in sections 13.48 (2) (f), 14.40 (1), as renumbered, 16.08 (2) (d), 16.53 (7), 17.07 (6), 20.265 (1) (g), 20.920 (2) (b), 20.923 (3) (j), 21.56 (2) (b), 25.14 (1), 25.21, 25.25, 32.02 (1), 35.84 (5) (f) and (8) (b) (intro.), 35.85 (11), 35.91 (1), 36.17, 36.27, chapter 37 (title), 37.02 (3), (4) and (5), 37.05, 37.07, 37.09, 37.10 (2), 37.11 (8) (a), (ac) and (b), (10), (11), (15) and (17), 37.115 (1), (2) and (3), 37.12 (1), 37.13, 37.29, 37.30, 38.36, as renumbered, 39.03 (1), (2), (3), (6) and (7), 42.20, 42.242, 42.243, 42.245, 42.27, 42.35 (1), (3) and (4), 42.40 (7), 42.45, 42.49, 42.51 (3), 44.10 (1), 44.14 (1) and (2), 45.35 (6), 45.396, 66.51 (1) (a), 67.04 (1) (a) and

(2) (zp), 67.05 (5) (b), 84.27, 93.07 (5), 143.17 (1), 169.22 (1), 340.01 (22) and (46) and 887.23 (1) of the statutes, the terms "state university" and "state universities", respectively, are substituted.

(2) Wherever the term "college" or "colleges" appears in sections 37.11 (2), (3), (4), (6), (9), (15) and (17), 37.115 (1) and (3), 37.13 and 44.20 (12) of the statutes, the terms "state university" and "state universities", respectively, are substituted.

(3) Wherever the term "state teachers college" appears in section 38.44 (1) of the statutes, as renumbered, the term "state university" is substituted.

(4) Wherever the term "board" appears (except as part of the phrase "board of regents") in sections 37.02 (2) and (3), 37.05, 37.07, 37.10 (2), 37.11 (7), (8) (a), (11), (16) (c) and (d) and (17), 37.12 (1), 37.13 and 37.31 (1m) of the statutes, the term "board of regents" is substituted.

(5) Wherever the term "regents" appears (except as part of the phrase "board of regents") in sections 20.265 (4) (g) and (h) and (9) (u) and (um), 37.05 (title) and 37.115 (1) and (3) of the statutes, the term "board of regents" is substituted. If "regents" carried a plural verb, the singular verb is substituted.

SECTION 603. BOARD OF REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN. (1) Wherever the term "state university" appears in sections 13.48 (2) (d), 36.11 (1), 36.18 (1), 36.20 (1), 36.22 (intro.), 36.27, 36.34 (3), 37.30, 38.55, as renumbered, 44.02 (10), 44.14 (1) and 143.17 (1) of the statutes, the term "university of Wisconsin" is substituted.

(2) Wherever the term "university" appears (except as part of the phrase "university of Wisconsin") in sections 13.48 (2) (f), 16.08 (2) (d), 16.31 (3) (c) (intro.), 16.84 (10), 20.435 (8) (k), 20.725 (9) (c) 1, 25.17 (9), 35.001 (4), 35.84 (5) (c) (intro.) and (e) (intro.) and (8) (a) (intro.), 37.29, 39.03 (1), (2), (3) and (7), 46.042 (1), 46.115, 66.30 (2m) (a) and (b), 66.51 (1) (a), 67.04 (1) (a), 84.27, 92.04 (4) (c) and (h), 94.14 (1) (intro.), 140.05 (2), 142.03 (4), 142.07 (4), 142.08 (2), 142.10 (3) and 887.23 (1) of the statutes, the term "university of Wisconsin" is substituted.

(3) Wherever the term "regents" appears (except as part of the phrase "board of regents") in sections 20.285 (1) (j), (2) (g), (h), (i), (k), (kz), (m) and (n), (7) (a) and (9) (h), (u) and (v), 32.02 (1), 36.05 (title), 36.06 (title), (6) (a) 1 and 2 and (7) to (9), 36.065, 36.12, 36.14, 36.16 (1) (c) and (d) and (2), 36.161 (title), 36.18 (3), 36.185 (1), (2), (4), (5) (intro.), (a) (c), (d) and (e) and (6), 36.19 (2), 36.20 (1), (2), (3), (5) (intro.) and (6), 36.215 (3), (4) and (5), 36.34 (1), (1a), (2) and (4), 39.03 (6) and (7), 39.05 (2) and (4), 44.11, 115.53 (4) and 140.05 (2) of the statutes, the term "board of regents" is substituted. If "regents" carried a plural verb, the singular verb is substituted.

(4) Wherever the term "board" appears (except as part of the phrase "board of regents") in sections 36.05, 36.06 (2) to (5), 36.16 (1) (d) and 36.36 of the statutes, the term "board of regents" is substituted.

(5) Wherever the term "state laboratory of hygiene" appears in sections 36.225 (title) and (2), 46.13, 50.11, 143.04 (9), 143.06 (4), 143.07 (10), 162.03 (1) (d) and 245.06 (1) (b) of the statutes, the term "laboratory of hygiene" is substituted.

(6) Wherever the term "Wisconsin psychiatric institute" appears in section 36.227 (1), (2), (3) (intro.) and (5) and 51.235 of the statutes, the term "psychiatric institute" is substituted.

(7) Wherever the term "state soil and water conservation committee", "state committee" or "committee" appears in sections 88.22 (3), 92.04 (2) and (4) (intro.) and (c), 92.08 (2), 92.09 (2), 92.12 (3) (a) and (b), 92.15 (3) and 92.20 of the statutes, the term "soil conservation board" is substituted.

(8) Wherever the term "board" appears in section 92.12 (2) to (4) (b) of the statutes, the term "board of adjustment" is substituted.

SECTION 604. BOARD OF VOCATIONAL, TECHNICAL AND ADULT EDUCATION. (1) Wherever the term "state board of vocational and adult education" appears in sections 115.40 (6) (b) 2, 159.08 (10) and 343.60 (1) of the statutes, the term "board of vocational, technical and adult education" is substituted.

(2) Wherever the term "state board of vocational, technical and adult education" appears in sections 39.03 (3), (6) and (7), 39.31 (1), 45.35 (6), 45.396, 115.40 (6) (b) 2, 118.22 (1), 158.03 (4) and 343.06 (3) of the statutes, the term "board of vocational, technical and adult education" is substituted.

(3) Wherever the term "state board" appears in sections 38.13 (5), (8), (9), (10) and (11), 38.14 (1), 38.15 (7), (9) (a) 1, (ba) 2 and (e), (13) and (18) (b), 38.155 (1), (3) (a) and (b), (5) (c) and (9), 38.17 (1), 38.19 (1) (e), (3) and (8), 38.21 (1) (b) (intro.), 1, 2 and 3 and (2) (a) and (b), 38.215 and 38.60 (1) and (3) of the statutes, all as renumbered, the term "board" is substituted.

(4) Wherever the term "board" appears in section 38.155 (5) (d), (8) (a) and (b), (9), (10), (11), (12) (a), (b), (c) and (d), (13) and (14) of the statutes, as renumbered, the term "district board" is substituted.

SECTION 605. CROSS REFERENCE CHANGES: CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICERS AND INTERSTATE BODIES. In the sections listed in column A below, the cross references to the sections in column B are changed to the cross references shown in column C:

A Statute sections	B Old cross references	C New cross references
8.25 (4) (b), as renumbered	14.01	par. (a)
13.45 (2) (intro.)	14.69 (6)	14.40 (6)
13.482 (1) and (3), as renumbered	14.89	13.488
13.486 (1) and (2), as renumbered	14.86	13.482
13.54 (1)	14.69 (6)	14.40 (6)
14.58 (1) (b), as renumbered	14.41	14.62
15.191 (intro.)	14.225, 14.752 (1)	14.06
16.85 (1)	14.89	13.488
(10)	14.86	13.482
19.10, as renumbered	14.01	8.25 (4) (a)
20.315 (1) (a) and (g) and (3) (a) and (g)	14.752	14.82
20.455 (1) (b) and (c)	14.13	14.11 (2)
20.525 (2) (m)	14.234	14.21
20.710 (1) (g) and (v)	14.86, 14.89	13.482, 13.488
20.725 (1) (a) and (c) and (2) (u)	14.72	13.58
20.765 (1) (a) 4	14.752	14.82
66.433 (6)	14.90	66.77
209.01 (7) (a)	14.42	14.58

SECTION 606. CROSS REFERENCE CHANGES: ADMINISTRATION. In the sections listed in column A below, the cross references to the sections in column B are changed to the cross references shown in column C:

A Statute sections	B Old cross references	C New cross references
20.865 (1) (b)	16.305 (6)	16.305 (5)
70.64 (1)	73.01 (5) (a)	73.01 (4) (a)
71.09 (7) (n)	73.01 (6)	73.01 (5)
(7) (n)	73.01 (6) (a)	73.01 (5) (a)
71.12 (2)	73.01 (5) (a)	73.01 (4) (a)
73.01 (5) (c), as renumbered	sub. 5 (a)	sub. (4) (a)

SECTION 607. CROSS REFERENCE CHANGES: INDUSTRY, LABOR AND HUMAN RELATIONS. Wherever the reference to section "101.01 (12)" appears in sections 146.085 and 963.10 (2) of the statutes, the reference to section "101.01 (8)" is substituted.

SECTION 608. CROSS REFERENCE CHANGES: JUSTICE. In the sections listed in column A below, the cross references to the sections in column B are changed to the cross references shown in column C:

A Statute sections	B Old cross references	C New cross references
15.161 (3) and (5)	14.53 (5m)	165.25 (4)
15.461	14.53 (5m)	165.25 (4)
20.455 (1) (a)	14.525	165.065
(2) (g)	165.01 (8)	165.76 (3)
59.07 (44)	14.53 (3)	165.25 (3)
59.456 (5)	14.53 (3)	165.25 (3)
67.02 (3)	14.53 (5a)	165.015 (3)
893.23	14.53 (5a)	165.015 (3)

SECTION 609. CROSS REFERENCE CHANGES: LOCAL AFFAIRS AND DEVELOPMENT. In the sections listed in column A below, the cross references to the sections in column B are changed to the cross references shown in column C:

A Statute sections	B Old cross references	C New cross references
15.101 (4)	22.03	22.22
15.281 (1)	27.31	22.42
16.80 (3) (d)	22.162	22.22
20.545 (2) (b)	27.30 (5)	22.40 (4)
(2) (um)	27.305	22.41

SECTION 610. CROSS REFERENCE CHANGES: NATURAL RESOURCES. In the sections listed in column A below, the cross references to the sections in column B are changed to the cross references shown in column C:

A Statute sections	B Old cross references	C New cross references
15.191 (intro.)	23.99	23.28
15.461	23.99	23.28
16.08 (2) (j)	46.70	23.30
20.370 (1) (g)	23.09 (7) (d) (3) and (16)	23.09 (2) (d) 3 and (10)
(vm)	23.09 (18)	23.09 (12)
(vn)	23.09 (15)	23.09 (9)
(2) (g)	23.09 (7) (d) 1 and (16)	23.09 (2) (d) (1) and (10)
(k)	23.09 (17)	23.09 (11)
(3) (a)	23.09 (7) (d) 2	23.09 (2) (d) 2
(g)	23.09 (7) (d) 2 and (16)	23.09 (2) (d) 2 and (10)
(u)	23.09 (7) (d) 2	23.09 (2) (d) 2
(4) (a), (u) and (z)	23.09 (7) (L)	23.09 (2) (L)
(9) (j)	46.70	23.30
22.32 (2), as renumbered	23.09 (7) (L)	23.09 (2) (L)
23.09 (13), as renumbered	23.09 (7) (d)	23.09 (2) (d)
29.085	23.09 (7)	23.09 (2)
29.56	23.09 (7) (b)	23.09 (2) (b)
59.01 (1)	23.09 (7) (d)	23.09 (2) (d)
59.07 (1) (a)	23.09 (7) (d)	23.09 (2) (d)
70.113	23.09 (7) (d) 1 or 3	23.09 (2) (d) 1 or 3

SECTION 611. CROSS REFERENCE CHANGES: VETERANS AFFAIRS. In the sections listed in column A below, the cross references to the sections in column B are changed to the cross references shown in column C:

A Statute sections	B Old cross references	C New cross references
16.18 (1)	45.35 (5a)	45.35 (5)
45.01	45.35 (5a) (a) to (g)	45.35 (5) (a) to (g)
45.352 (4b)	45.35 (5a)	45.35 (5)
45.37 (1a)	45.35 (5a) (a) to (g)	45.35 (5) (a) to (g)
45.42 (1) and (2)	45.35 (5a) (a) to (g)	45.35 (5) (a) to (g)
45.43 (1)	45.35 (5a) (a) to (g)	45.35 (5) (a) to (g)
63.05 (2)	45.35 (5a)	45.35 (5)

SECTION 612. CROSS REFERENCE CHANGES: BANKING. In the sections listed in column A below, the cross references to the sections in column B are changed to the cross references shown in column C:

A Statute sections	B Old cross references	C New cross references
220.02 (3), as renumbered	sub. (3)	sub (2)
221.01 (6)	220.035 (2)	220.035 (1)

SECTION 613. CROSS REFERENCE CHANGES: COORDINATING COUNCIL FOR HIGHER EDUCATION. (1) Wherever the reference to section "20.225 (3) (u)" appears in section 20.710 (2) (fp) of the statutes, the reference "20.225 (2) (u)" is substituted.

(2) Wherever the reference to section "43.60" appears in section 15.641 (1) of the statutes, the references "39.11 and 39.13" are substituted.

SECTION 614. CROSS REFERENCE CHANGES: PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION. In the sections listed in column A below, the cross references to the sections in column B are changed to the cross references shown in column C.

A Statute sections	B Old cross references	C New cross references
31.21 (1)	31.22	196.665
31.33 (1)	31.22	196.665
196.92 (1), as renumbered	31.15	196.91
196.93 (3), as renumbered	31.15	196.91

SECTION 615. CROSS REFERENCE CHANGES: SAVINGS AND LOAN. In the sections listed in column A below, the cross references to the sections in column B are changed to the cross references shown in column C:

A Statute sections	B Old cross references	C New cross references
215.07 (18)	215.04 (4) (d) and (7)	215.04 (1) (d) and (4)
215.10 (5)	215.02 (15) (a)	215.02 (10) (a)
215.31 (5)	215.02 (21)	215.02 (16)
272.18 (22)	215.01 (18)	215.01 (19)

SECTION 616. CROSS REFERENCE CHANGES: VOCATIONAL, TECHNICAL AND ADULT EDUCATION. In the sections listed in column A below, the cross references to the sections in column B are changed to the cross references shown in column C:

A Statute sections	B Old cross references	C New cross references
20.255 (2) (e)	41.36 to 41.46	38.36 to 38.46
(2) (e)	41.44	38.44
20.292 (1) (b)	41.13 (11)	38.13 (11)
(1) (bm)	41.13 (10)	38.13 (10)
(1) (c)	41.14	38.14
(1) (d)	41.21	38.21
(1) (e)	41.60	38.60
(1) (u)	41.21 (1) (b) 1	38.21 (1) (b) 1
38.146, as renumbered	41.15 (9) (ba) or (d) or 41.155	38.15 (9) (ba) or (d) or 38.155
38.15 (4), as renumbered	41.19	38.19

A Statute sections	B Old cross references	C New cross references
(9) (a) 2, as renumbered	41.19	38.19
(9) (b), as renumbered	41.155	38.155
(10), as renumbered	41.16 (2m)	38.16 (2m)
(16), as renumbered	41.13 to 41.20	38.13 to 38.20
38.18 (2), as renumbered	41.16	38.16
38.19 (7), as renumbered	41.16	38.16
(8), as renumbered	41.21	38.21
38.20 (3), as renumbered	41.19	38.19
38.21 (2) (a), as renumbered	41.60	38.60
38.42 (2), as renumbered	41.43	38.43
38.46, as renumbered	41.45	38.45
38.47 (1), as renumbered	41.47 to 41.58	38.47 to 38.58
45.396	41.15	38.15
59.07 (40)	41.15	38.15
65.02 (1)	ch. 41	ch. 38
66.042 (5)	41.16 (5)	38.16 (5)
66.199	41.15	38.15
67.04 (1) (z)	41.155	38.155
(4) (b)	41.47 to 41.55	38.47 to 38.55
67.05 (6m) (intro.) and (a)	41.155 (7)	38.155 (7)
118.23 (1)	ch. 41	ch. 38
119.23	41.175	38.175
200.17 (4m)	41.14	38.14

SECTION 617. MERGING DUPLICATIVE APPROPRIATIONS. The unencumbered balances of the appropriations, as they existed prior to enactment hereof, listed in column A are transferred to the appropriations, as affected by this act, listed in column B:

A	B
20.225 (2) (a)	20.225 (2) (a)
(g)	20.225 (2) (g)
(m)	20.225 (2) (m)
(3) (a)	20.225 (2) (a)
(h)	20.225 (2) (g)
(m)	20.225 (2) (m)
(u)	20.225 (2) (u)
(v)	20.225 (2) (v)

SECTION 619. RECONCILING CONFLICTS. (1) The treatment of section 14.53 (5m) of the statutes by this act supersedes the treatment of that provision by chapter —, laws of 1969 (Senate Bill 352).

(2) The treatment of section 66.903 (2) (a) 1. b of the statutes by this act is superseded by the treatment of that provision by chapter —, laws of 1969 (Senate Bill 352).

SECTION 620. RELATION TO 1969 SENATE BILL 355. Wherever a 1969 act treats a provision of statutory law and states that it treats such provision "as affected by chapter —, laws of 1969 (Senate Bill 355)" or a similar statement, the statement shall be deemed to also be a reference to this act.

Approved December 1, 1969.